TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
September 24, 2020 - 3:30 o'clock p.m.

In accordance with the current State of Emergency and the Governor’s Executive
Order N- 25-20, of March 4, 2020, and N-33-20 of March 19, 2020 a virtual platform and/or
teleconferencing will be used by the Board members and appropriate staff members
during this meeting. Members of the public will be able to participate by telephone,
using the following dial in information:

Dial in #: (669-900-6833) To Listen and Address the Board when called upon:
Meeting ID: 923 6261 0493; Passcode: 018673

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda [tem Allotted Requestor

Call to Order 3 min. Standard

Approval of agenda

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 3 min. Standard

Public Comments — Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of

Directors. Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.

NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.

August 2020 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO

New Business — None - -

Old Business — None - i

Chief of Staff 5 min. cos

a) September 2020 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving
the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Commitiee
on September 21, 2020

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please nolify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasomnable accommodations.



Time
Agenda Item Allotted Requestor

Consideration of Consent Calendar 10 min. Standard

Requested items to be pulled require a second,

(1) Consideration to approve the addition of Dr. Arash Calafi to the
currently existing On-Cali Coverage Panel for Orthopedics for a term of 20
months, beginning November 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022.

{2) Consideration to approve the addition of Vmax Chest, Inc. {Marius
Viseroi, M.D.) to the currently existing On-Call Coverage Panel for
Pulmonary and ICU, for a term of 12 months, beginning October 1, 2020
through September 30, 2021.

(3) Consideration o approve the renewal of an agreement with Dr. Gehaan
D’Souza as the Medical Director for Plastic Surgery Consuitative and
Procedural Services for a term of 12 months beginning October 1, 2020
through September 30, 2021, for a total cost for the term of $55,440.

(4) Consideration to approve the renewal of an agreement with Dr. Martina
Klein for the Co-Medical Directorship for Outpatient Behavioral Health for a
term of 22 months, beginning September 1, 2020 \through June 30, 2022,
for an hourly rate of $144 and an annual cost of $82,944 and a total cost for
the term of $152,064.

(5) Consideration to approve the renewal of an agreement with Dr. Dennis
Ordas for the Co-Medical Directorship for Outpatient Behavioral Health a
term of 22 months, beginning September 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022 for]
an hourly rate of $144 and an annual cost of $82,944 and a total cost for
the term of $152,064.

(6) Consideration to approve the addition of the Regents of the University of
California to the Spine ED On Call Coverage Panel for a term of 24 months,
beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022,

(7) Administrative & Board Committees

A. Policies

1) Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures
a) Chain of Command Policy
b} Chest Tube Management Procedure
c) Dialysis, Acute Treatment of the Inpatient Policy
d) Malignant Hyperthermia Management Procedure
€) Medications Brought in By the Patient Policy
f) Research Activities: Investigational Medications

2) Administrative Policies & Procedures
a) EMTALA Emergency Medical Screening 506

3) Unit Specific - Emergency
a) EZ-10 Intraosseous (10) Infusion System Procedure

4) Unit Specific - Home Care
a) Disposal of Needles & Syringes, Hazardous Materials
b} Home Total Parenteral Nutrition TPN
¢) Infusion Program

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2- September 24, 2020



Time

Agenda ltem Allotted Reqguestor
d) Look Alike Sound Alike Medications (DELETE)
e) Subcutaneous Insertion and Site Maintenance for infusions
via Patient Controlled Analgesia Pump (DELETE)
f) Vitamin Additives to TPN Bag (Delete)
5) Unit Specific — Infection Control
a) Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control
Plan
b) Mold Abatement IC 13.3
6) Unit Specific — NICU
a) Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline
Catheters Insertion (DELETE)
b) Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters, Dressing Change,
Maintenance and Removal of
7) Unit Specific — Outpatient Specialty Clinic
a} Adverse Reaction Medication Event
b} Medical Administration and Pharmacy Monthly Inspections
¢) Removal of Skin Lesions using Liquid Nitrogen
8) Unit Specific — Surgical Services
a) Medications in Surgery Policy
9) Unit Specific —- Women & Newborn Services
a) Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome, Pharmacological Treatment
of (DELETE)
10) Unit Specific - Wound Care
a) Physician Orders
{8) Board Committees
A. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee CHAC Comm.
Director Chavez, Committee Chair
{No meeting held in September, 2020)
B. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee FO&P Comm.
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(No meeting held in September, 2020)
C. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Audit, Comp. &
Director Younger, Committee Chair Ethics Comm.
Open Community Seats — 0
(No meeling held in September, 2020)
(9) Minutes — Approval of: Standard
a) August 27, 2020, Regular Meeting
b) August 27, 2020, Special Meeting
(10) Meetings and Conferences — None
(11} Dues and Memberships - None
a) CDPH License Renewal - $293,360

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

September 24, 2020



Time

Agenda ltem Allotted | Requestor
(12) Reports
(a) Dashboard - Included
(b} Construction Report — None
(c) Lease Report — (August, 2020)
(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (August, 2020)
(e) Seminar/Conference Reports — None
10 | Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 10 min. | Standard
11 | Comments by Members of the Public 5-10 Standard
NOTE: Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3) | minutes
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on
any item not on the agenda.
12 | Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. Standard
13 | Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. | Standard
14 | Report from Chairperson 3 min, Standard
15 | Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 1 hour
16 | Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4

September 24, 2020



||) f@)) -Il\-ﬂe(c:jlltgal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT

September 9, 2020

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 9/25/2020 - 7/31/2022)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 9/25 /2020 through 7/31/2022:

. alan ergen edici TeamHealth
. DIER nbD rgen dici mHealt
s LA D, Gabriel B/GYN (North Coun h

¢ LEON ue MD/OB/GYN (Vista Communi lini

11



(’3, Tri-City
Medical Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER ,
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4

September 9, 2020

— —
o i ey

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS; (Effective Dates 10/01,/2020 -9/30/2022)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 10/01/2020 through 9/30/2022, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring.and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

. E. Neville rth di tiv

EDROSIAN, Diane, MD/ Pediatrics/Activ

o P A rew, dic Sur, Activ

. RRY n, MD /Physi edici hab r and Follow
. HERTY, Davij rthopedi ctiv

. VI m hthalm Active Affjliat

o INI, Ahmad Pediatric Cardi ctiv iliat

. R mil ici tive Affiliat

» A ud D T ici ive

. P nshu Plastic Sur ive

s |YE riniv D /Ophthalmol tiv

KHALESSI, Alexander, MD /Neurological Surgerv /Refer and Follow

o Wi mil icin fi F w

. T i, MD radi tiv liat:

PENDLET R rt, MD hthalmol Activ

. 1 than i ici iv
® T )] iv
Page 1 of 2

s



(’p) Tri-Gity |

 f Medical Center "

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4
September 9, 2_020

— =
T

Attachment B

. eef, 1 i iv il

. t i I iv

e SHOWAH, Hen MD/Emergen edicine /Activ

. R elin Infectious Di ive
o TI te Farnil icin ran low
. ERI t )] Immungl tiv liat

ZIMMERMANN, Andres, MD/Internal Medicine /Refer and Follow

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 9/30/2020 unless otherwise noted)

Automatic:

e WHITNEY, [anet DO /Wound Care

Voluntary:

° NZER, Glen ice & Palliativ icin
* SAMADY, Joseph, MD/Dermatology

. I Rvan Em C icin

Page 2 of 2



l|

[ S =T

)
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
September 9, 2020

The following practitioners were given six months from the last reappointment date to complete their
outstanding proctoring. These practitioners failed to meet the proposed deadline and are approved for an
additional 6 months to complete their proctoring for the privileges listed below. Failure to meet the proctoring
requirement by March 31, 2021 would result in these privileges automatically relinquishing.

« ABBOUD.Jean Paul. MD Ophthalmology

The following practitioners were given two extensions months from the last reappointment date to compiete
their outstanding proctoring. These practitioners failed to meet the proposed deadline and are approved for an
additional 3 months to complete their proctoring for the privileges listed below. Failure to meet the proctoring
requirement by December 31, 2020 would result in these privileges automatically relinquishing.

« AFRA,Robert, MD hopedic Sur

. T Davi ntern edicin

e CQHEN, David, MD Cardiology

e JAMSHIDI-NEZHAD, Mohammad, DO General and Vascular Surgery
. V, Anton Qtolaryngology

e SHI in diatric Sur

ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGE REQUEST (Effective 9/25/2020)

The following practitioners requested the following privilege(s) and met the initial criteria for the
privilege(s):

* SUNTAY, Berk MD OB/GYN

14



C’A Tri-City

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3
September 9, 2020

s

PROCTORING RECOMMENDATIQNS

» BIERMAN, Andrew NP Allied Health Professional
e BROWN, Kaley PAC Allied Health Professional
» CAMPBELL, Leticia MD OB/GYN

* KOTAK, Kamal MD Cardiology

e LANE, Richard MD Neurology

e LAUFIK, Martin MD Radiology

¢ NASIRI Arian MD Radiology

s PATEL, Cecil MD Radiology

e YUNG, Aaron MD Interventional iol

o ZHANG, Clarice DO er Medicin

15



@) Tri-City Medical Center

TCHD Board of Directors
DATE OF MEETING: September 24, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — Orthopedics

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Status of Agreement New Agreement ;eer\lie\::tle-s X Eztneeswal ~Same
Physician’s Name: Arash Calafi, M.D.
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Orthopedics
Term of Agreement: 20 months, Beginning, November 1, 2020 — Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Addition of new physician to current shared call panel; no increase in expense
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
Monday-Friday: 51,500 FY21 & FY22: 522 $783,000
Saturday-Sunday: $1,650 FY21 &FY22: 208 $343,200
Total Term Cost: $1,126,200

Position Responsibilities:

» Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Orthopedics specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Call; Duties of the On-Call Physician)

® Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Gene Ma, Chief
Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors approve the addition of Arash Calafi, M.D. to the currently existing ED
On-Call Coverage Panel for Orthopedics for a term of 20 months, beginning November 1, 2020 and ending June 30,
2022,



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

‘é}?}) o g = FOR
Tri-City Medical Center R YOU

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: September 24, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Pulmonary & ICU

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement zeei\::‘l::tle_s :::eeswal gl
Physician’s Name: Vmax Chest Inc., (Marius Viseroi, M.D.)
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Pulmonary & ICU
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, October 1, 2020 — Ending, September 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage: Pulmonary & ICU
No Additional Cost to the District B

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year Panel Annual
Cost
October 1, 2020-
31,500 September 30, 2021 $547,500
Total Term Cost $547,500

"osition Responsibilities:
¢ Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Pulmonary & ICU specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Cail: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted ltem: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager-Medical Staff Services / Gene Ma, M.D., Chief
Medical Officer

Motion: | move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Vmax Chest Inc., (Marius Viseroi, M.D.).,
to provide ED On-Call coverage for the Pulmonary and ICU panel, for a term of 12 months, beginning October 1, 2020
and ending September 30, 2021, at a daily rate of $1,500 for a total term cost of $547,500.



ADVANCED HEALTH cARE

Tri-City Medical Center FYOU

[ TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: September 24, 2020
MEDICAL DIRECTORSHIP AGREEMENT FOR PLASTIC SURGERY - CONSULTATIVE & PROCEDURAL SERVICES

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel X Other: Consultlr}g &
Procedural Services
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Gehaan D’'Souza, M.D.
Area of Service: Hospital Inpatient, Observation & Qutpatient Units
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, October 1, 2020 — Ending, September 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
| Hours per | Hours per | Monthly | 12 month
:Rate/Hotlr Month Year Cost (Term) Cost
$210 22 264 54,620 $55,440

Position Responsibilities:

* Physician to provide Plastic Surgery Services (Consultative and Procedural) for registered TCMC
Hospital patients (inpatient, observation, and outpatient units)

* Provide medical direction and services for plastic, wound care and reconstructive surgery

¢ Recommend to the medical staff that patients receive evidence-based plastic, wound and
reconstructive care

* Participate in in-service training, utilization review, and service as a liaison for the community

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director Business Development / Steve
Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize Dr. Gehaan D’Souza as the Medical Director for Plastic
Surgery Consuitative and Procedural Services for a term of 12 months beginning October 1, 2020 and ending
September 30, 2021, for a total cost for the term of $55,440.



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

@) Tri-City Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: August 27, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT Co-Medical Director — Outpatient Behavioral Heaith Services

Type of Agreement X | Co-Medical Directors Panel X gct::?': LIS
Renewal - Renewal —Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X
New Rates Rates

Physician’s Name: Dennis Ordas, M.D.

Area of Service: Outpatient Behavioral Health-Morning, Afternoon and Evening Program
Term of Agreement: 22 months, Beginning, September, 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly Fair Market Value. This agreement reduces hours from 63 to 48 (Plus 4 hours per manth of
vacation coverage, if needed). Hours cover medical director and Case Care Management duties per CMS Manual (Pub 100-02)

Rate/Hour Hours per Hours Monthly | Annual 22 month
Manth per Year Cost Cost (Term) Cost
e $144 32 384 $4,608 | $55,296 | $101,376
Duties
C [of M t

o Other e | 8144 16 192 | $2,304 | $27,648 | $50,688

—
acation Coverage $144 4 48 $576 | $6,912 $12,672
Total: 52 624 $7,488 | $89,856 | $164,736

Co-Medical Director Responsibilities:
. Provide medical supervision and direction to the unit, including the maorning, afternoon and evening programs
Supervise and promote the quality of care and evaluate delivery systems.
Oversee the development of evidence-based clinical services and provide psychiatric expertise.
Facilitate weekly problem solving and treatment team meetings with clinical staff.
Review all treatment plans at least monthly to determine appropriateness of problems and treatment goals.
Evaluate and review policies and procedures and make suggestions for changes as appropriate.
Provide education to other physicians and departments regarding intensive outpatient level of care

Care Management and other Duties:

. Take on utilization management duties and respond to insurance authorization calls for 1OP and communicate clinical determination of medical necessity

*  Evaluate patients at least once per month for medieal necessity and discharge readiness

. Evaluate whether patients are medically stable and meet inclusion/exclusion criteria for IOP on admission and monthly thereafter.

. Prepare reports and records as requested by hospital and regulatory bodies

. Provide professional guidance to staff Monday through Friday and evaluate sisk/protective factors and recommend whather a patient needs inpatient
treatment or can be managed with safety planning. Respond to calls Mondays through Fridays, 8 am-5 pm.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

-son respansible for oversight of agreement: Sarah Jayyousi-Operations Manager, Qutpatient Behavioral Health / Candice Parras, Chief Patient Care Services
Motion:

I move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Dennis Ordas for the Co-Medical Directorship for a term of 22 months, beginning
September 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2022 for an hourly rate of $144, an annual cost of $89,856, and a total cost for the term of $164,736



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center FYOU

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: August 27, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT Co-Medical Director — Outpatient Behavioral Health Services

: Increased
Type of Agreement X | Co-Medical Directors Panel X Sl €
Hours
Renewal - Renewal - Sam
Status of Agreement New Agreement N X € €
New Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Martina Klein, M.D.
Area of Service: Outpatient Behavioral Health-Morning and Afternoon Program
Term of Agreement: 22 months, Beginning, September, 1, 2020 - Ending, June 30, 2022
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly Fair Market Value. This agreement increases hours from 32 to 48 per manth (Plus 4

hours per month of vacation coverage if needed). (Taking on Dr. Ordas’s reduced hours}. Hours cover Medical Director and

Case Care management duties, per CMS Manual (Pub. 100-02)
T
Me"‘gﬂé:;“‘” $144 32 384 $4,608 | $55,296 | $101,376
Case Caf; x;';aﬂeme"t $144 16 192 $2,304 | $27,648 $50,688
Vacation Coverage $144 4 48 S576 $6,912 $12,672
Total: 52 624 $7,488 $89,856 $164,736

Co-Medical Directar Responsibilities:
. Provide medical supervision and direction to the unit, including the morning, afternoon and evening programs
Supervise and promote the quality of care and evaluate delivery systems.
Oversee the development of evidence-based clinical services and provide psychiatric expertise.
Facilitate weekly problem solving and treatment team meetings with clinical staff.
Review all treatment plans at least monthly to determine appropriateness of problems and treatment goals.
Evaluate and review policies and procedures and make suggestions for changes as appropriate.
Provide education to other physicians ahttps:]/kasa-snIutIons.com/proposed-!egislation-aIlows-Imft-lmhc-bill-medicarelncl departments regarding
intensive outpatient level of care
Case Care Management and other Duties:
*  Take on utilization management duties and respond to insurance authorization calls for IOP and communicate clinical determination of medical
necessity
Evaluate patients at least once per month for medical necessity and discharge readiness
Evaluate whether patients are medically stable and meet inclusion/exclusion criteria for IOP on admission and monthly thereafter,
Prepare reports and records as requested by hospital and regulatory bodies
Provide professional guidance to staff Monday through Friday and evaluate risk/protective factors and recommend whether a patient needs
inpatient treatment or can be managed with safety planning. Respond to calls Mondays through fridays, 8 am-5 pm.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No

Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No

Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Budgeted ltem: X Yes No
Persfm responsible for oversight of agreement: Sarah Jayyousi-Operations Manager, Outpatient Behavioral Health / Candice Parras, Chief Patient Care
e

I mave that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Dr. Martina Klein for the co-medical directorship for a term of 22 months, beginning
Seotember 1. 2020 and ending June 30. 2022. for an hourlv rate of $144. an annual cost of $89.856. and a total cost for the term of $164.736.



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center FYOU

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: September 24, 2020
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE- SPINE

Type of Agreement Medical Director X | Panel - Spine Other:
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Renewal — New Rates zzr:swal il
Vendor's Name: The Regents of the University of California
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Cali: Spine
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning July 1, 2020 ~ Ending June 30, 2022
Maximum Totais: Within hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Addition of Medical Group to current call panel: SPINE. No additional cost to district.
Panel
Rat Panel D er Year
e/Day gysiperive Annual Cost
$450 FY21: 365 days $164,250
FY22: 365 days $164,250
Total Term Cost $328,500

~-sition Responsibilities:

® Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Spine specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy #8710-
520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Cali Physician)

® Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Susan Hadley-Director, Network Development / Gene Ma, M.D., Chief
Medical Officer

Motion:
I move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with The Regents of the University of California for

Spine ED Call Coverage Physician Services for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2022 at a
daily rate of $450, an annual cost of $164,250, and a total term cost of $328,500.

10



(@) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

September 14", 2020
CONTACT: Candice Parras, CPCS

FOR SO

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Chain of Command Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

2. Chest Tube Management Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

3. Dialysis, Acute Treatment of the Inpatient Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

4. Malignant Hyperthermia Management Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

5. Medications Brought In By the Patient Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

6. Research Activities: Investigational Medications

NEW

Administrative Policies & Procedures/Pay Practices

1. EMTALA_Emergency Medical Screening 506

3 Year Review

| Unit Specific

| Emergency

1. EZ-I0 Intraosseous (I0) Infusion System-Procedure

3 Year Review

via Patient Controlled Anaigesia Pump

Home Care

. . . 3 Year Review,
1. Disposal of Needles & Syringes, Hazardous Materials Practice Change
2. Home Total Parenteral Nutrition TPN 3 Year Review

. 3 Year Review,

3. Infusion Program Practice Change
4. Look Alike Sound Alike Medications DELETE
5. Subcutaneous Insertion and Site Maintenance for Infusions DELETE

6. Subcutaneous Medication Administration - Subcutaneous
Catheter

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

7. Vitamin Additives to TPN Bag

DELETE

| Infection Control

1. Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control
Plan

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

2. Mold Abatement IC 13.3

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

NICU

b ———

1. Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline
Catheters Insertion

DELETE

2. Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline
Catheters, Dressing Change, Maintenance, and Removal of

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Outpatient SEecialt; Clinic

1. Adverse Reaction Medication Event

3 Year Review,

Page 1

16



(@) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

September 14™, 2020
CONTACT: Candice Parras, CPCS

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Practice Change

2. Medical Administration and Pharmacy Monthly Inspections

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

3. Removal of Skin Lesions using Liquid Nitrogen

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Surgical Services

1. Medications in Surgery Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Women & Newborn Services

1. Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome, Pharmacological
Treatment of

DELETE

Wound Care

1. Physician Orders

3 Year Review

Page 2

1



@ iy ved
Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

12/01 SUBJECT: Chain of Command

REVISION DATE: 06/03, 12/04, 10/05, 03/10, 06/13 ROLICY NUMBER.J

07116, 09/17

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 04/14705/20
Clinical Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 06/4705/20
Nurseing LeadershipkExesutive-Counscil Approval: 07/11708/20

Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: nfa

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/M1708/20
Administration Approval: 09/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0847 nla

Board of Directors Approval: 09/17

A PURPOSE:

1.

Chain of Command provides employees an expeditious process to resolve administrative,
clinical, or other patient safety or service issues in order to provide safe patient care. Al
employees are encouraged to use the chain of command to present an issue of concern and
pass it up the lines of authority until a resolution is reached. In situations where the safety of the
patient or of employees, visitors, and others does not allow time for use of the chain of
command, employees shall take the concern to the highest level he/she deems necessary.

B. POLICY:

1.
2,

Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) will not tolerate any acts of reprisal against those who raise

issues concerning quality patient care.

All TCHD employees and health care providers (HCP) are responsible for ensuring that patients

receive quality care and should implement chain of command to obtain necessary patient care

interventions when the quality of care or safety of a patient is in question.

Examples of when to implement the chain of command may, include but are not limited to the

following:

An unresolvable issue creating a patient care/safety concem.

A conflict delaying or preventing the provision of patient services.

A disruption in service(s) that cannot be resolved in an appropriate timeframe.

A conflict exists concerning the plan of care/physician orders for the patient.

The plan of care is unclear and caregiver is unable to get clarification from physician.

Qualified care professional providers are unavailable: Registered Nurses (RNs),

physicians, and other essential care providers.

Unprofessional behavior by or impairment of the healthcare providers that jeopardize

patient care.

h. Instances where a physician has not responded in a timely manner to a deteriorating
patient condition.

i The RNs assessment of the patient varies significantly from physician's assessment.

j- In clinical situations where the RN believes the physician has not responded in a manner
to fully address the issues raised, that may present an immediate risk to the patient.

Occurrence of an event in an area that disrupts operations and affects the public or may warrant

regulatory notification:

-0 oo oD

2]

18



Patient Care Services
Chain of Command

Page 2 of 3

a. Contact immediately, Monday through Friday, Area LeadershipManager/Direster who
will call their Area Chief.-and The Area Chief is to notify Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

b. Contact immediately nights, holidays, Saturday and/or Sunday, Administrative
Supervisor (AS) who will call the Clinical Administrator on Call and Administrator on Call
to notify the CEQ.

o The next level of authority shall be contacted if issues are not resolved in an appropriate time
frame. Progression continues through the levels of authority until the issue is resolved.

a. In some instances, one or more levels may be passed over up to the area Chief or CEQ
due to extremely sensitive subjects or when the higher level of authority may be the
individual involved.

6. For conflicts that cannot be resolved between employees related to patient care/safety issues,
the order in which the lines of authority shall be contacted are as follows as applicable:

a. The employees shall attempt to address and resolve conflict outside of the patient care
area.

b. If unresolved, then the Supervisor on Duty/Department LeadershipSupesviser is
notified.

If unresolved, then the Manager and/or AS is notified.

If unresclved, then the Director is notified.

If unresolved, then the Senior Director is notified.

If unresolved, then the Area Chief is notified.

7. For conflicts involving physicians/Allied Health Professionals (AHF’) the order in which the lines
of authority shall be contacted upon initiation of chain of command is as follows as applicable:
a. The HCP shall contact the Department Supervisor/LeadershipMarnager in a confidential

manner to express concerns.

L[ 3

b. If unresolved, the Manager and/or AS is notified.

c. If unresolved, the Director is notified.

d. If unresolved, the Senior Director is notified.

e. If unresolved, the Clinical Administrator on Call and Administrator on Call is notified.

f. If unresolved, the Department/Division Chair of the identified department/division is

notified.

g. If unresolved, the Chief Of Medical Staff, Chief Medical Officer and CEO are notified

8. The AS is available as a resource when contacting all levels of authority.

C. PROCEDURE FOR CONTACTING PHYSICIANS:
1. For instances when a call is placed to a physician and the physician has not responded in a
timely manner:
a. Urgent situations:

i. I the physician has not returned the call within five (5) minutes, the HCP will
contact Private Branch Exchange (PBX) for assistance in contacting the
physician.

i. PBX will make several attempts to contact the physician. If the physician has still
not responded within thirty (30) minutes, PBX will notify the AS of the lack of
physician response. The AS will contact the HCP for additional information
regarding the situation.

il. The AS will contact the Chief of Service.

iv. The AS will contact the Clinical On-Call as needed.

b. Non-urgent situations:

i. If the physician has not returned the call within thirty (30) minutes, the HCP will
contact PBX for assistance in contacting the physician.

i. PBX will make several attempts to contact the physician. If the physician has still
not responded within one (1) hour, PBX will notify the AS of the lack of physician
response. The AS will contact the HCP for additional information regarding the
situation.

iii. The AS will contact the Chief of Service as needed.




Palient Care Services
Chain of Command

Page 3 of 3
D. DOCUMENTATION:
1. The HCP shall document the following in the medical record under clinical notes without
including personal opinions:
a. Date, time, and name of person contacted
b. Events and observations objectively as they ocour
c. Specific facts and accurate times

2. Quality review report (QRR) shall be completed and submitted to Risk Management.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Administrative Policy: Incident Report — Quality Review Report (QRR) RL Solutions 396

20



(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution:
Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CHEST TUBE MANAGEMENT

Purpose:

To define the nursing interventions for assisting with the insertion of chest tubes for the
adult and adolescent patients. To define nursing management of adult and adolescent
patients with chest tubes.

Supportive Data:

Closed chest drainage systems are used to facilitate the evacuation of fluid, blood, and
air from the pleural space, the mediastinum or both; to restore negative pressure to the
pleural space; and promote reexpansion of a collapsed lung.

Mosby's-Online Skill Chest Tube Insertion Procedure

Mesbys-Online Skill Chest Tube: Closed Drainage System Procedure

Equipment:

1. One 250mL bottle of Normal Saline
2. Chest Tube Dressing Change Equipment
a. Siivasorb Gel or Povidone-lodine Ointment
b. 2-inch silk tape or micropore
c. Normal Saline
d. 4x4 gauze sponges
e. 4x4 gauze drainage sponges
3. Chest Tube Removal Kit
Suture removal kit
ChioraPrep (triple swabsticks)
Silvasorb Gel-Bacitracin-Zincand-Rovidens-lodine-ointmeont
2 Kelly-plastic cltamps
4x4 gauze sponges (package of 10)
Chux
2 zip holders
. 1large red bag
k. 2-inch paper tape

Fa@mooo o

A PROCEDURE:

1. Assisting with the Insertion of a Chest Tube
a. Place Chest Tube Insertion Cart in patient's room.

i. Set up chest drainage device (Refer to Online Clinical Skills Chest-Tube: Closed
Drainage System Management).

i Assisting physician/Allied Health Professional {AHP) (Refer to Online Clinical
Skills Chest Tube Insertion).

| ii. Ensure chest x-ray is completed post-insertion per physician/AHP's order.
2. Chest Tube Monitoring, Nursing Assessment and Care
a. Refer to Online Clinical Skills Chest-Tube Insertion.
b. Ensure a Chest Tube Removal Kit is readily available in patient's room.

i. Aftach Chest Tube Removal Kit to Intravenous (IV) pole on Telemetry, Acute
Care Services (ACS), and Progressive Care Unit.

C. Secure chest drainage system to the IV pole using two zip holders. Silk tape may be
used to secure the drainage system.

d. Monitor the amount and type/color of drainage per the physicians/AHP' orders,

e. Mark the collection chamber at the end of every shift and PRN with the date, time,

and initials. Document the drainage amount in the medical record.

i. The amount of drainage within the first two hours after insertion may be
approximately 100 to 300 mL the amount of drainage should begin to decrease
over the next few hours and days.

I . Clinical ;‘&f’““ Madical Staff | Pharmacy& | Medical Admini | Professional | o
oo | ol | Srocie | Dot | e | Esvcuve | 0| At | Soorded
11?2%’, 2;;{22,0 06”0%,', ;gns, 06”025,%”6' e ola w”o%: ggns, o0 11112:1,! ;ons, 12112, 11718

21



| Patient Care Services Rrocedurs-Manuat

Chest Tube Management

| Page 2 of 4

f.

Assess the patient per physician/AHP as-ordersed-afier-chesttubeinsertion. If no order

for assessment, assess as outlined in Online Clinical Skills Chest Tube: Closed

Drainage Systems.

Discuss with the physician/AHP and obtain an order to perform range of motion

exercises for shoulder on the side of the chest tube site to prevent frozen shouider

secondary to immobility.

Discuss the need for physical therapist assistance with the physician/AHP. Ambulate

patient per physician/AHP's order.

i. If there is no order to ambulate, ensure patient sits on the side of bed to enhance
ventilation, maximize lung inflation, and improve gas exchange.

i. Discuss the need for activity orders with physician/AHP.

Patient positioning:

i, Elevate head of the bed (HOB) 30 to 45 degrees or per physician/AHP’s order.

ii. Lobectomy and all other lung surgeries: position patient on the non-operative
side or per physician/AHP’s order.

ii. Pneumonectomy: position supine or on the operative side.

iv. Reposition patient at least every two hours

Incentive Spirometry (I1S)

i. Ensure patient uses the IS as ordered by physician//AHPAlied-Health
Rrafessional

Dressing Change: Chest Tl..lbe Insertion Site

a.

~7 @mppog

Change chest tube insertion site dressing every other day and PRN, unless ordered
otherwise by physician/AHP.

Remove dressing and discard in appropriate receptacle.

Clean chest tube insertion site with normal saline applied to sterile 4x4 gauze sponge.
Pat insertion site dry with 4x4 gauze sponge.

Apply Silvasorb gel or follow physician/AHP'’s order.

Anchor chest tube to patient’s skin.

Apply one to two 4x4 drain sponges underneath the chest tube and 1-2 on top of the
chest tube. Ensure chest tube is not kinked.

Apply two to three 4x4 gauze sponges on top of the drain sponges.

Apply silk tape or micropore over 4x4 dressing. (Do not use paper, foam ferm-or
elastoplast tape to secure chest tube dressing.)

Ensure drainage tubing is visible, not kinked, and properly positioned. Do not position or
secure drainage tubing behind patient's back.

Do not reinforce chest tube dressing. If dressing becomes saturated or soiled:

i. Remove dressing

i Assess connections

ii. Apply a new dressing

iv. Notify physician/AHP

Chest Tube Removal: Assist

a.

b.

Ensure a Chest Tube Removal Kit is readily available and assist physician/AHP as
needed.

Monitoring the patient post-removal for-the-following:

i Obtain chest x-ray as ordered.

i Ensure adequate respiratory status. Assess the following:

1) Breath sounds
2) Heart rate
a) Monitor cardiac rhythm on Cardiac Monitoring Units

3) Respiratory rate and quality
4) Oxygen saturation
5) Notify physician/AHP for abnormal findings
. Monitor insertion site for bleeding. If bleeding is found, apply pressure and place
a tight occlusive dressing over site. Notify the physician/AHP for persistent

22



| Patient Care Services Rrocedura-Manual
Chest Tube Management
Page 3 of 4

bleeding. (Persistent bieeding from the insertion site could mean the chest tube
was against a vein of the chest wall before removal.)

iv. Monitor suture site and surrounding skin. Notify physician/AHP for abnormalities
such as excessive redness, dark or inflamed skin with necrotic areas.

V. Monitor the site for signs of infection.

vi. Monitor insertion area for development of subcutaneous emphysema (Crepitus),
which is an indication of an air leak into the surrounding tissues.

vii. Monitor for signs and symptoms of pericardial effusion or cardiac tamponade. i.e.

distant heart tones, decreased blood pressure, tachycardia, pulsus paradoxus,
narrowed pulse pressure
viii.  Assess pain and medicate per physician/AHP orders

5. Heimlich-ChestBrain\alve

a.

b.

C.

d.

e.

f.

g

h.
Distah DELETE
cennected-te—razlateds
- . ot}
can-be-used-toremove
SoeFeiens JM

| P
Heimlich Chest Drain Valve

EXTERNAL LINKS:
1. Online Clinical Skills: Chest Tube Insertion
2, Online Clinical Skills: Closed Drainage System Management

23,

Z1.  Elsevier: Online Clinical Skills Nursing Skills. (2006-20450ctober 2018). Chest tube insertion.
Retrieved from Tri-City Medical Center-ateranat Intranet.

23



| Patient Care Services Rrocedura-Mamuat
Chest Tube Managemenit

: Page 4 of 4

Elsevier: Online Clinical Skills Nursing Skills. (20062045 November, 2018). Chest tube: Ciosed
drainage-device system management.: Retrieved from Tri-City Medical Center Intrane

ValveRets 1§ Tri-City Modeal-Contes Int :
Teleflex Medical. (20202008). Understanding chest drainage. Retrieved from
http:/fiwww.teleflex.com/en/usa/ucdi/index.php

Urden, L.D., Stacy, K. M., & Lough, M. E. (2014). Critical care nursing. Diagnosis and Management. (7
ed.). St. Louis, MO: Elsevier

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1.

Online Clinical Skills $ermery-Mosby)}-Chest Tube Insertion

24



(c\) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 3/02 SUBJECT: Dialysis, Acute Treatment of the
Inpatient
REVISION DATE: 10/02, 6/03, 4/06, 7/08, 5/11; 6/14 POLICY NUMBER: IV.FF
08/14, 07/15
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 10119
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  05/511/119
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 05/1504/20
Medical Staff Department or Division Approvat: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 85/4505/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/1508/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 8715 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 07/15
A. POLICY:
1. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) has a contractual agreement with San Diego Dialysis (Fresenius)
to perform acute hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for inpatients.
2. Dialysis will be done in the patient’s room.
3 Emergency situations:
a. The dialysis registered nurse (RN} will implement a Rapid Response or Code Blue if
necessary by dialing 66 via the phone to report a Code Blue and initiate Basic Life
Support (BLS) to the dialysis patient.
b. In case of emergent situation, the Nursing Leadership or designeeAssistant-Nurse
i on the unit will be notified immediately by the dialysis nurse.
c. The Rapid Response Team (RRT) will be contacted to provide care for the dialysis patient
if the dialysis nurse becomes incapacitated until a replacement dialysis RN can be found
or treatment is discontinued.
4, TCMC's direct care responsibilities for patients undergoing dialysis treatments are as follows:
a. Delivering nursing care normally provided to patients while not receiving dialysis, unless
otherwise contraindicated during dialysis. This includes treating pain and providing
immediate emergency response in the event a patient on dialysis treatment suffers a
sudden change in condition.
b. Administering medications:
i. The primary RN will be responsible for administering all routine intravenous (1V)
medications
ik, Review the electronic medication administration (EMAR) for post dialysis 1V
medications. Post Dialysis 1V medications are to be administered by the primary
RN uniess patient has no IV access.
1) If no IV access, the dialysis nurse will administer the post dialysis IV
medications
C. Providing the dialysis staff with equipment and supplies outlined in Dialysis Supplies and
Equipment Provided by TCMC. .
d. Providing written physician orders for the necessary dialysis services and making these
orders available to the dialysis staff at the time services are to be rendered.
e. Obtaining a signed consent for hemodialysis from the patient or appropriate designee

prior to the first treatment.

25



Patient Care ServicesAcule Dialysis Treatment - IV.FF

Page 2 of 2

f. Providing access for treatment. The physician who inserts a dialysis catheter is
responsible for proper placement via chest x-ray that is confirmed by a radiologist.

5. Fresenius Medical direct care responsibilities for patients undergoing dialysis are as follows:

a, Providing specially trained and competent nursing staff that will perform all patient care
functions directly related to the dialysis services ordered.

b. Adhering to TCMC policies and procedures, and all regulatory requirements

C. Providing those items in Dialysis Supplies and Equipment Provided by Fresenius,

d. Maintaining equipment required for dialysis treatments, including set-up, take down, and
cleaning.

e. Obtaining and reviewing physician orders directly related to the dialysis services for
appropriateness, and directly contacting ordering physicians for any order clarification
required.

i. Review for post dialysis medications and request all of the medications from
pharmacy.

f. Administering medication and blood products that are ordered during dialysis.

g. Contacting the physician and the primary nurse for any urgent or emergent changes in the
patient condition.

h. Documenting nursing services provided during treatment per Fresenius policy.

i. The following shall be documented in the electronic health record:
1) Intake/Out
2) Vital signs
3) Medications and blood products administered during dialysis and post
dialysis if no intravenous access
4) Central line dressing change (if performed by dialysis RN)
5) Appropriate dialysis service charges

i Assures patient is medically stable before leaving at completion of treatment.

i Participates in a hand-off report with the patient’s primary nurse pre and post dialysis
treatment.

B. HANDOFF COMMUNICATION

C.

1. Before the dialysis treatment starts, the primary RN will provide a handoff report to the dialysis
RN that will include but not limited to:

Seme a0 o

Vital signs

Weight

intake/output

Most recent blood sugar as applicable

Review of medication orders, including medications given
Orientation, level of consciousness

Dialysis access

Code status

2. When the patient has completed the dialysis treatment, the dialysis RN will provide hand off
report to the primary RN that will include but not limited to:

@mpooop

How patient tolerated treatment

Intake/output including dialysis output

Vital signs

Medications given during dialysis

Blood products administered

Post dialysis access care (i.e. bleeding) and status of dressing
Review of post dialysis medication orders.

FORMS/RELATED DOCUMENT:
1. Dialysis Supplies and Equipment Provided by TCMC and Fresenius

26



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Dialysis Supplies and Equipment

The following exhibit set forth such equipment and supplies to be provided by Hospital (Tri-City Medical
Center) pursuant to the contract;

Electrodes and monitoring equipment

Non-invasive blood pressure monitoring machine

IV infusion pumps and tubing

IV administration sets

Normal Saline

Anticoagulant Citrate Dextrose — Formula A Solutions

Priming and Replacement fluids

Hemoperfusion Cartridge

Syringes as needed

10. Hypodermic Needles as needed

11. lodine swab sticks and Alcohol swabs

12. Tape as needed

13. 2X2 and 4X4 gauze pads (sterile & non) as needed

14. Non sterile gloves, various sizes and latex non-powder same sizes
15. Sterile gloves, various sizes

16. Surgical masks or N 95 masks as needed

17. Blood administration sets and appropriate blood filters

18. Pressure wrap bandage

19. Bed pans and urinals

20. Drinking cups and straws

21. Any other supplies not provided by provider, which are necessary to perform the service.

O O

In instances where any of the foregoing are unavailable, the Hospital shall provide reasonable substitute
products.

The following exhibit sets forth such equipment and supplies to be provided by Provider (Fresenius) pursuant
to the contract:

Dialysis Supplies

. Artificial Kidneys
Arterial and Venous Blood Lines
Transducers
Dialyzing Fluids
Fistula Needles
Universal Connectors
Extension Clamps
Adapter Seal Clamps
Convertible Adapters
10. Drain Set

11. Del Clamps

12.  Treatment Record

NP AWM=

Apheresis Supplies (general)

Blood Cell Separator

Blood Cell Separator Tubing set
Machine Maintenance

Blood Warmer and Blood Warmer Tubing
AV Fistula needles

Treatment Record

SOk WN =



Page 2 of 2 Dialysis Supplies and Equipment

Immunoadsorption Therapy Supplies (in addition to the above apheresis supplies):

1
2
3.
4
)
6.
7.
8.
9
1

0.

Provider and Hospital agree as new state-of-the-art supplies or equivalent equipment may be substituted as

Plasma transfer sets with spike and needle adapter (Fenwal or equivalent)

: Transfer pack container 2000 mL with coupler (Fenwal or equivalent)

Transfer pack unit 600 mL with needle adapter (Fenwal or equivalent)

. Y-type blood component recipient set (Fenwal or equivalent)
. Spike to Syringe Adapter

PXL8 Leukocyte fitters (Pall or equivalent)
Extension Set 3.0 mL 51 cm

Needle Lock Device (Baxter or equivalent)
Male to male adapter

3-way stopcock

may be worked between both parties.

Revised: 05/2017
Dialysis, Acute Treatment of the Inpatient Policy

28



)
(G‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:  MALIGNANT HYPERTHERMIA MANAGEMENT

Purpose: To provide guidelines for the Registered Nurse caring for a patient at risk for or
presenting with Malignant Hyperthermia.

Supportive Data:  Malignant Hyperthermia Association of the United States (MHAUS)
MH Hotline: 1-800-644-9737

Equipment: Malignant Hyperthermia Cart - located in Operating Room (OR) and Obstetrics Post

Anesthesia Care Unit (OB-PACU)

Crash Cart

Cardiac Monitor

Pulse Oximeter

Electronic temperature measuring device with appropriate probes for measuring central
temperature

Capnography

Ice

Refrigerated Normal Saline IV fluids (at least 10 liters)
Refrigerated Normal Saline irrigation

Hypothermia unit

Blood collection tubes for laboratory tests

Criticore Foley machine

CVP line set

Alaris Infusion Pump

Arterial Line Set

A DEFINITION:

1.

Mailignant Hyperthermia (MH) is a rare, life-threatening complication that may arise from
medications commonly used in anesthesia. MH is most frequently triggered by inhalation
anesthetics (e.g., Desflurane, Sevoflurane, Isoflurane, and Halothane) and succinylcholine, but it
may also be induced by trauma, strenuous exercise, or emotional stress. MH is genetically
transmitted and the incidence of MH increases in patients with central core disease and some
muscular dystrophies.

MH syndrome begins with a hypermetabolic condition in skeletal muscle cells that involves
altered mechanisms of caicium function at the cellular level. The triggering agent causes a series
of chain reactions in the body resulting in sustained muscle contraction, increasing body
termperature, and massive production of lactic acid and carbon dioxide. Onset is acute and rapid
in progression. Early diagnosis and intervention is critical. Signs of MH may occur during
induction or maintenance of anesthesia, although MH can occur postoperatively or after repeated
exposures to anesthesia. .

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Patients are screened pre-operatively for personal and familial history of MH. Prepare for an MH
susceptible patient in the following manner:
a. Bring the MH cart to the OR/treatment area.
b. Remove anesthetic vaporizers from the anesthesia machine. If unable to remove the
vaporizers, tape them in the OFF position.
c. Flush volatile anesthesia vapors from the anesthesia machine according manufacturer's
instructions for use (IFU).
d. Replace the carbon dioxide absorbent in the anesthesia machine.
e. Replace the anesthesia circuit and reservoir bag.
C
Departmant Pollllgl':: l& LeNal:;::t?Iapﬁ Depa;tfm a .rhh:r::::ﬁ{] :s ET:::;?‘L Admin Pm;:f"‘:l::"al Board of
Review Procedures rocutive Anesthesiol Committae Committee stration Committee Dirsctors
Committes Commitiee ogy
Ozﬁg:s&’lﬁ‘;o 20818, | 01, a7i20 05/18 na A 09720 812 0718, | a2, o718

29



Patient Care Services
Malignant Hyperthermia Management

Page 2 of §
ef. Insert activated charcoal filters onto the inspiratory and expiratory limbs of the
breathing circuit.
2. Monitor for the following signs and symptoms of MH:
a. Increasing end-tidal carbon dioxide (ETCO,) despite increasing (e.g., doubling) minute
ventilationhyperventiatien
b. Trunk or total body rigidity
ac. Masseter spasm (trismus)
bd. Tachycardia
c-e. Tachypnea (may not be seen in a paralyzed patient)
B 2 7
. Mixed respiratory and metabolic acidosis (note: MH can occur without significant
metabolic acidosis)
g. Increased temperature (may be an early or late sign)
m:h.  Brown or cola-colored urine (Mmyoglobinuria)
3. Immediate interventions upon diagnosis of MH:

a. Notify surgeon/procedural physician to stop the procedure as soon as possible and the
anesthesia provider shall discontinue MH triggering agents (i.e., volatile inhalation
anesthetic agents and succinylcholine). For emergency procedures, continue with non-
triggering anesthetic technique. .

b. Hyperventilate with 100% oxygen at flows of at least 10L/minute e~mere-to flush volatile
anesthetics and lower ETCO,.

i. lavailable-iInsert activated charcoal filters (located on MH cart) into the
inspiratory and expiratory limbs of the breathing circuit.
i. Do not waste time changing the breathing circuit and CO, absorbent.

c. Call for all available help.

d. For MH onset occurring outside of Surgical Services, call Code Blue and notify Surgery of
the MH emergency. Request Surgery to send the MH cart and available staff to assist.

e. For MH onset occurring in Surgical Services, alert the OR i
EANM)Supervisor/Charge Nurse/designee and Unit Secretary of the MH emergency.
They will:

i. Recruit all available staff (recommend at least ten additional staff members),
including RN's, techs, and transporters.

i. Page “Any available anesthesiologist STAT" to appropriate area for assistance.

ii. Code Blue may be called if additional assistance is required.

f. Call MHAUS MH Hotline (1-800-644-9737) for expert consultation, as needed.

i. Send MH cart (from Surgery Equipment Room- or OB-PACU) and Crash Cart to
treatment area. The MH cart contains the initial dose of dantrolene sodium and
other necessary supplies.

g. Call pharmacy for all available dantrolene sodium to be sent STAT to the treatment area.
h. Send for at least 10 liters of refrigerated normal saline for infusion (located in Surgery

Open Heart refrigerators, ED or ICU).

i. Set-up pressure lines for an arterial line, central fine, and/or pulmonary artery catheter,

i Designate three (3) nurses/designees to mix dantrolene sodium in rapid assembly line
preparation. Initial dose is 2.5mg/kg IV, to be given rapidiy through large-bore IV, if
possible-:

30



Patient Care Services
Malignant Hyperthermia Management

Page 3 of 5

i. Each 20mg vial of dantrolene sodium is reconstituted with 60mL sterile water for
injection (without a bacteriostatic agent). There are 3 grams of mannitol in each
20mg vial of dantrolene sodium.

ii. To mix dantrolene sodium in rapid, assembiy line fashion:

1) First nurse/designee draws up sterile water and injects 60mL into each
20mg vial of dantrolene sodium.
2) Second nurse/designee shakes the vials to dissolve (not readily soluble).

3) Third nurse/designee draws up the dantrolene sodium ready for
administration.
k. Send for hypothermia unit (located in ED and ICU).
l. Send bags and buckets of ice to treatment area (from an ice machine; in the OR this is
located in the central core behind OR 5/6).
m. Designate nurse to record assessments, treatments, events, and medications
administered (including times given and doses).
Treat the patient per physician/AHP orders:
a. Administer dantrolene sodium rapid IV push (through large-bore |V, if possible), starting
with 2.5mg/kg, per physician/AHP order.
i. Dantrolene sodium should be repeated until signs of MH are reversed, per the
order of the treating physician/AHP. More than 10mg/kg (up to 30mg/kg) of
dantrolene sodium may be necessary.

jii. Signs of MH reversal include significantly decreased ETCO,, temperature
stopped increasing, and rigidity, if present, should resolve.
b. Treat metabolic acidosis with bicarbonate, per physician/AHP order. It is recommended to
start with 1-2mEq/kg if blood gas values are not yet available.
ct Cool the patient if core temperature reaches greater than 39°C;

i. Ensure external warming sources (i.e., forced-air warming unit, warm blankets) are
removed from the patient.

. Apply ice to body surfaces (head, axillae, groin, patient's side). Gel cold packs are
located in the MH cart refrigerator for immediate application. Additional bags of ice
may be utilized as necessary.

iii. Infuse refrigeratedcold Normal Saline (0.9%) intravenously at a rate of 1 liter every
10 minutes x 3 liters. Refrigerated Normal Saline is located in the MH cart
refrigerator. DO NOT administer Lactated Ringer (LR) solution, which may
contribute to acidosis.

iv. Lavage open body cavities with eeldcool saline, as applicable.

V. Utilize other cooling techniques per the order of the treating physician/AHP.
Examples of other cooling techniques include:

1) Insert a nasogastric tube and lavage with cold saline irrigation.
2) Insert a rectal tube and lavage with cold saline irrigation.
3) Apply a hypothermia unit/cocling blanket.

vi. Discontinue cooling measures if the patient's temperature drops lower than 38°C
and falling to prevent hypothermia. Resume cooling measures if the temperature
begins to rise again.

d. Treat dysrhythmias per physician/AHP order, including anti-arrhythmic agents and
defibrillation as necessary. Avoid calcium channel blockers, which may cause
hyperkalemia or cardiac arrest in the presence of dantrolene sodium.

e. Treat hyperkalemia per physician/AHP order, including:

i. Hyperventilation

i, Bicarbonate 1-2mEq/kg IV (maximum dose of 50mEq)

ii. Calcium chloride 10mg/kg IV (maximum dose of 2000mg) or calcium gluconate 30
mg/kg IV push (Maximum dose 3,000 mg) for life threatening hyperkalemia

iv. Regular insulin 10 units IV push plus Dextrose 50% 50 mL IV push

v Check glucose levels hourly

f. Continue to monitor ETCO,, minute ventilation electrolytes, blood gas values (venous

blood gas values may document hypermetabolism earlier than arterial values),

31



Patient Care Services
Malignant Hyperthermia Management

Page 4 of §

electrelytes, creatine kinase (CK), core temperature, urine output and color, coagulation
studies, and serum studies as ordered by the physician/AHP. Treat as ordered by the
physician/AHP .-Meniterlabrasultsfor:

Prepare and assist physician/AHP with insertion of arterial line and central line.

Insert temperature monitoring indwelling urinary catheter (i.e., Criticore Foley) and monitor

urine output (amount and coilor).

i. If urine output falls to less than 0.5mL/kg/hour, or CK and/or K* values rise more
than transiently, induce diuresis to greater than 42mL/kg/hour to prevent

myoglobinuria-induced renal failure, per physician/AHP order.—l-is

.......... o) rl -t ol a alheda a¥a alnMalde

lobinusiaind I Lfailure.
ii. Administer furosemide (0.5mg-1mg/kg; maximum dose of 40mg) per

physician/AHP order, as needed to maintain urinary output.
Transfer patient to ICU after stabilized, per physician/AHP order.

| C. TREATMENT POST-MH CRISISACUTE PHASE:
Continuously evaluate the patient for signs of MH relapse for at least 24 hours following cessation
of asute-phasesigns of MH. Signs of MH relapse include;

1.

a. Increasing muscular rigidity in the absence of shivering or inadequate sedation. This
can occur even with complete paralysis with conventional paralytics (e.g.,
vecuronium, cisatracurium).

b. Inappropriate hypercarbia with respiratory acidosis

c. Metabolic acidosis without other cause

d. Inappropriate temperature rise

Immediately notify the physician/AHP for signs of MH relapse and implement interventions per

physician/AHP orders.

a. 25% of MH events relapse, which can be fatal. Do not delay treatment if MH relapse

occurs.

Monitor the patient post-MH acute phase per physician/AHP orders. Monitoring
recommendations post-MH acute phase include:

4.

Temperature, blood pressure, heart rate, and respirations every hour for 24 hours post-
acute phase. May progress to every 4 hours, if stable.

32



Patient Care Services
Malignant Hyperthermia Management
Page 5 of 5

b. Frequent blood gases are recommended as per clinical signs. CK is recommended every
six (6) hours, or less often as the values trend downward. Monitor lab values for
improvement of electrolyte imbalance, acidosis, enzyme elevations, renal damage,
coagulopathies, etc. Report and treat abnormal values as ordered.

ct Assess for thrombophlebitis at peripheral IV sites from dantrolene sodium, and for
possible bleeding coagulopathies.

d. Assess for alterations of neurological status. Report neurological deterioration.

e. Assess for residual muscle pain/swelling. Administer analgesia as ordered and provide
appropriate comfort measures.

f. Monitor urine output. Report low urine output and treat as ordered.

4, Dantrolene sodium may be administered post-acute phase MH, per physician/AHP order.

a. Recommended dantrolene sodium administration rate is 1 mg/kg IV every 4-6 hours, or
0.25 mg/kg/hour continuous infusion.

b. Dantrolene sodium administration may be continued for 24 hours post-acute phase MH, or
longer as clinically indicated.

c. Discontinue dantrolene sodium administration per physician/AHP orders.

Recommendations for dantrolene sodium discontinuation include:
i. Consider increasing the interval between doses to every eight (8) hours or twelve
(12) hours prior to discontinuation.
i Consider discontinuation of dantrolene sodium if all of the following criteria are
met;
1) Metabolic stability for 24 hours
2} Core body temperature is less than 38'C
3) CK is decreasing
4) No evidence of myoglobinuria
5) Muscle is no longer rigid

D. PATIENT/FAMILY EDUCATION:
1. The physician/AHP shall explain the following to the patient/family:

a. MH and therapeutic interventions
b. Precautions for future surgeries/procedures
c. Genetic transmission of MH and implications for first degree relatives.

2. The physician/AHP shall complete the Adverse Metabolic Reaction to Anesthesia (AMRA) form
at www.mhregaus.orgiregistry. A foliow-up letter should be sent to the patient and his/her
primary care physician.

3. The patient/family shall be referred to the North American MH Registry and the Malignant
Hyperthermia Association of the United States (MHAUS) for follow-up. Current MHAUS contact
information is available at www.mhaus.org.

E. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document all patient assessments, interventions, responses and medications administered in the
madical-electronic health record (EHR).
2. Document patient and family education in the medical-recordEHR.

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Malignant Hyperthermia Cart Checklist

G. REFERENCE(S):
1. Rothrock, J. C. & McEwen, D. R, (2019). Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 16"

Edition. St. Louis, MO: Elsevier. o
Elsgder

' 2. “Emergency Therapy for Malignant Hyperthermia” (February 20452019). Malignant Hyperthermia
Assaciation of the United States (MHAUS). Protocol ordered from www.mhaus.org.

33



ve

UNIT:_

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER MALIGNANT HYPERTHERMIA CART CHECKLIST MONTH:

YEAR:

ICE BUCKETS & BAGS

2

3

4 5

6

7

]

9

10

11

12

13

14

i5

16 | 17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 1 26 | 27 | 28 | 29

30

31

NEXT MEDICATION
EXPIRATION DATE

NEXT SUPPLY
EXPIRATION DATE

BLACK LOCK ON RED
SUPPLY BAG

BLACK LOCK ON
SUPPLY DRAWER

MEDICATION DRAWER
YELLOW LOCK #
Check maik indicales
unchanged fiom prior
day

MEDICATION DRAWER
Yellow Lock # matches
orange sticker #

REFRIGERATOR
YELLOW LOCK #
Check mark indicates
unchanged from prior
day

REFRIGERATOR
Yellow Lock # matches

|_orange sticker #

SIGNATURE OF
EMPLOYEE CHECKING
CART

-

PROBLEM/ACTION/RESOLUTION DOCLUMENTATNION - Record with reference to above date

Date

Problem

Action Taken

Resolution Achieved

Revision Date(s): 8/12, 7/18




& - .
(c‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 12/81 SUBJECT: Medications Brought In By the
Patient

REVISION DATE: 09/97; 12/00; 03/01; 02/05; 04/05; PROLICY-NUMBER:— N.DD
03/07; 10/09; 06/11; 08/13; 10/17

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 0344703/20
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 0844+705/20
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Gommittes Approval: 05/4706/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 085/4707/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06M1708/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 10H4F nla
Board of Directors Approval: 10117
A POLICY:
1. As part of the *Conditions of Admission,” the patient understands and agrees personal

medications (including non-prescription, prescription, and herbal) will not be consumed by
patient during their hospital stay.

a. This applies to both inpatient and outpatient services.

b. The hospital pharmacy department may request a patient provide their personal
medications for administration if the medication is unobtainable by the hospital pharmacy
department.

c. During the admission process, patients are asked to provide all medications (including

non-prescription, prescription, and herbal} that he/she is currently taking.

+d.  After review of the patient's personal medications by admitting staff, medications will be
returned to the patient's family or patient's representative for storage at patients’
residence. If the patient does not have family members or a representative present upon
admission, the hospital pharmacy department will store the medications in the pharmacy
department.

2. If it is deemed necessary to administer a patient's own medication while the patient is in the
hospital (inpatient or outpatient) the following conditions must be met before the medication is
administered to the patient:

a. The patient's physician has ordered the drugs and the order has been entered in the
patient’s medical record. The order shall contain the name of the drug, strength, route,
frequency, and the time the order was written.

b. The medication containers are clearly and properly labeled.

C. The contents of the containers have been examined and positively identified after arrival
at the hospital, by the patient's physician or the hospital pharmacist. The pharmacist or
physician will initial the vial, attach the medication checked by label, and affix the label to
the medication container.

d. The integrity of the medication has been visually evaluated by the pharmacist or the
physician.
e. If the pharmacist or physician cannot positively identify or assure the medications’
integrity, administration of the medication is not allowed.
3. All medications are administered by the nurse and recorded on the patients’ medication
administration record.
4, If the medication is a non-controlied medication, it shall be stored in a secure area at the nursing

35



Patient Care Services
Medications Brought in by the Patient — IV,.DD

Page 2 of 2

station (locked medication room). If the medication is a controlled medication, it shall be stored
in the Pyxis Medstation. The pharmacist shall inventory and add the controlled drugs to the
Pyxis Medstation under patient's own medications (POM's). If a Pyxis Medstation is not
available, the controlled medication will be stored in a locked, secure area at the nursing station
and the medication counted and remaining drug noted after every dispensation to the patient to
maintain accountability.
Parenteral medications may not be administered to patients unless prepared by or acquired by
the Pharmacy Department at Tri-City Medical Center.
When the patient's own medications are brought into the hospital insluding-Crisis-Stabilization
Yrit{E8J}-a family member shall take the medications home.
When patient's own medication(s) cannot be taken home, the nurse shall:
a. Place a patient label on all 3 pages of the Patient's Own Medication Record form.
b. List medications by name on the form;
i. Any controlled substances need to be verified and counted by a nurse and
pharmacist or pharmacy technician. Pharmacy personnel will provide a counting
tray.

fi. Non-controlled drugs do not need to be counted.
ifi, Indicate if any bottles are empty upon receipt.

c Call pharmacy to pick up patient's own medications and the attached form. When the
pharmacy technician or the pharmacist arrives to pick up the medications, the nurse and
pharmacy personnel shall verify that the non-controlled drugs listed on the form are
present and will verify and count any controlled drugs that may be listed on the form,
The quantity of the controlled drug counted shall be listed on the form attached to the

and-each-sigh-and-date-the form-

d. Patients own medications are to be stored inside of security bags using unique
numbered locks. The lock number shall be transcribed onto the form after verification of
the medications is complete. Then the pharmacy personnel and nurse shall label the bag
with a patient sticker and place the patient's own medications inside of the security bag
which will be locked in the presence of both parties.

e, If)ocument tﬁat patient’s meds have been stored in Pharmacy in the medical record.
Give pink copy to patient, and piace yellow copy in chart.

SR
When patient is discharged:
a. The nurse shall ensure the pharmacy is notified to retrieve patient's medications upon
discharge.
b. If patient's own medications are ordered as discharge medications, the nurse shall
instruct the patient accordingly.
c. Pharmacy personnel will deliver the bag of patient's own meds to the nursing unit.

Pharmacy personnel with the discharging nurse shall verify the lock number and that no
tampering of the bag has occurred.

d. 1"he patient'é own medications shall be returned to the patient with their other
belongings.
e. The patient's own medications that are not retrieved will be disposed of per Pharmacy

Policy: Unusable Medications.

B. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Pharmacy Policy: Unusable Medications

36



Q
@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Research Activities: Investigational
Medications

REVISION DATE:

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 05/20
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  05/20

Nursinge Leadership-Exesutive Council Approval: 06/20

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 07/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval; 08/20
Administrative Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

A PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for coordination of medical, nursing, administration, and pharmacy staff in
providing for the safe use and dissemination of investigational medications, biologics and
devices within the Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD).

2. To provide guidelines for coordination of medical, nursing, administration, and pharmacy staff in
hospital-driven research-.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1. Clinical Research Site refers to the external organization that is conducting the Clinical Trial or
Study.
2, Informed Consent Form (ICF): A document which explains the following:
a. Details of the study
b. The potential risks and benefits
c. Rights and responsibilities
3. Investigational Drugs and Biologics — New drugs or biologics which have been issued an

Investigational New Drug (IND) number by the FDA. These medical treatments are for
investigational use only

4. Investigational Review Board (IRB): An-1RB-is-A committee established to review and approve
research involving human subjects. The purpose of the IRB is to ensure that all human subject
research be conducted in accordance with ali federal, institutionat, and ethical guidelines,
Waestern IRB is TCHD's IRB of record.

5. Principal Investigator (P1) — Physician(s) with privileges at Tri-City Healthcare DistrictMedisal
Genter (TCHD) who are responsible for the conduct of the clinical study. In the case of drug
studies, the Pl would sign the FDA Form 1572 and TCHD would be listed on the Form as a site.

6. Research Subject: All patients enrolled in a clinical trial are referred to by trial personnel as a
study subject per FDA guidelines.
7. Research is a systematic investigation, including research development, testing and evaluation,

designed to develop or contribute to generalizable knowledge. Activities which meet this
definition constitute research for purposes of this policy, whether or not they are conducted or
supported under a program which is considered research for other purposes.

8. Sponsor: An individual, company, institution or organization which takes responsibility for the
initiation, management and/or financing of a clinical trial.

C. POLICY:



Patient Care Services
Research Activities: Investigationa! Drugs

Page 2of 5

1.
2.

6.

D.  PROCEDURE / ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Eall S

2L

All IRB requests are to be made through the TCHD Chief Medical Officer.

Clinical trials are administered only in accordance with protocols approved by TCHD.

a. Investigational drugs, radiation, biologics or devises shall be used only under the
supervision of the principal investigator and/or sub-investigator, who assumes the
burden of responsibility for the proper conduct of the clinical trial and securing the
necessary ICF consent.

b. The principle or sub-investigator must be a member of the Medical Staff of TCHD for all
investigational drug protocols approved by TCHD.

c. Investigational medications are administered only under the supervision of the
authorized investigator and according to protocol. They are to be distributed by the
Pharmacy.

The IRB and the Pharmacy and Therapeutics (P&T) Committee have oversight over established
investigational medication use policies and procedures.

TCHD's Director of Pharmacy or designee is responsible for providing information on storage,
labeling, distribution and waste. The Director of Pharmacy or designee shall review the
Investigational Drug Fact sheet with nursing personnel as requested.-

If not specified in the protocol, investigational medications are assessed for hazard
characteristics to direct safe handling and disposal. if the information provided is deemed .
insufficient to make an informed decision, the investigational drug is considered hazardous.
Verbal orders for a study medication are not acceptable.

placed in the health recordthis-section.

a. IF THERE IS NO CONSENT and the patient does not have one available, the RN or
Healthcare provider needs to call the clinical trial site to obtain a copy.
b. No precedures or trial-related medications may be administered until this consent is on

file in the heaith record.
Prior to the initiation of the clinical research study, sufficient education is provided to the
pharmacy and nursing staff charged with dispensing and administering the medication.
Copies of the orders are to be provided to iab and radiology when appropriate.
Sponsor:

a. Provides information on storage, labeling, and distribution to pharmacy
Principal Investigator:
a. Provides a nursing summary and drug fact sheet to the nursing in one-page outlines.
The information provided shall include:
i. Dosage form
ii. Route of administration
iii. Strength
iv. Actions
' Uses
vi, Side effects
vii. Adverse effects
viii. Interactions
iX. Symptoms of toxicity
b. Obtains fully executed ICF and places a copy in the health record.
c. Upon study initiation, the Pl shall provide a written order to the {DS-Pharmacy.

i. If oral study medication has been provided to study subject they may take their
own study drug.
i An order from the PI for the oral drug can be provided by the site or IBS

Pharmacy.
Pharmacist:
a. Review the Investigational Drug fact sheet with nursing personnel as requested.
b. Process all investigational medications

38



Patient Care Services
Research Activities: tnvestigational Drugs
Page 30of 5

i. The TCHD Pharmacy address must be listed as the receiving party for all
investigational drug study medications.

ii. Study drug distributor/Sponsor must notify pharmacy as to expected date of
receipt, and every attempt must be made by distributor to deliver during narmal
business hours.

if. Once received in the pharmacy, investigational study medications shall be
inspected for damage, quantity verified, documented on the study master
accountability form, and stored at appropriate temperature by the pharmacist or
delegated pharmacist trained on the study.

iv. Investigational study medications shall be stored in a separate locked room
within the pharmacy, accessible only to pharmacists and other pharmacy
personnel under the supervision of a pharmacist.

1) Highdew-tTemperature logs shall be maintained in this room for drugs
stored under ambient and refrigerated conditions per Pharmacy
Procedure: Patient Medication Refrigerators.

V. An inventory record shall be kept on each investigational drug. A record shall be
kept for each dose of investigational drug dispensed.

vi, inventory of investigational drugs shall be kept and include the following:

1) Quantities dispensed

2) Identities of patients

3) Quantities of medications returned, lost, or destroyed

vil. Clinical trial materials and/or investigational drugs shall be returned or destroyed
per protocol and sponsor direction.

viii. Information on current Drug and Study Protocols is maintained in the Pharmacy.
Information on closed studies is maintained in the Pharmacy for a period of at
least one year following the study close-out. After one year, the information may
be moved to on-site storage for at least another year before transfer to off-site
storage. All lDS-study documentations are to be kept permanently.

c. Dispenses Investigational drugs (TCHD licensed pharmacist only)

i. All investigational drugs shall be properly labeled, with auxiliary labeling if
necessary:

1) Name of drug or identification of investigational protocal.

2) Strength

3) Expiration date of the drug. If no expiration date is available, a re-test
date shall be used as the expiration date. In the event that an expiration
or re-test date is not available, a memo from the sponsor shall be
obtained stating that they assume responsibility for notifying the
pharmacy prior to the drugs expiration date.

4) Expired or damaged medications are isolated from all other study
medications. These medications are not placed into storage with non-
study medications

ii. For intravenous investigational agents the following process shall be followed:
1) A pharmacist, IBS-or intravenous (IV) room pharmacist, shall prepare or

directly supervise preparation of all IV investigational infusions.

2) For any IV doses not dispensed during the IV room pharmacist shitt,
communication will be made to the evening pharmacist of any pending
investigational infusions.

3) IV infusions for investigational drugs should be infused via a separate site
and clearly labeled as “Investigational Drug” whenever possible. If IV
infusions for investigational drugs are infused into a line with other
medications, the line must be flushed with normal saline, or flushed per
study protocol if specified by the sponsor.

ifi. For studies without a study-specific transportation log, a TCHD electronically
monitored dispensing/transportation log shall be completed whenever

39



Patient Care Services

Research Activities: Investigational Drugs

Page 4 of 5

investigational medications are delivered by pharmacy personnel to nursing

units. The pharmacy personnel and receiving nurse will sign the log.

iv. Procedures pertaining to the disposition of any remaining study drug or study
drug preparation shall be determined prior to patient enroliment.

1) Medications not used by the patient shall be returned to the pharmacy or
may be retained by the patient per physician's order.

2) When the protocol is closed, the medications shall be returned to the
sponsor, physician, or destroyed through standard hospital procedure, as
directed by the sponsor or PI.

All pharmacists involved in investigational drug dispensation must complete training by

the Director of Pharmacy or designee and sign-off that they have received training.

i. Training and delegation logs shall be maintained in the pharmacy study binder.

i Curriculum Vitae (CV)'s and California pharmacist license shall be maintained
in the pharmacy study binder if required by the sponsor.

iii. Staff education is provided in the departments and to the staff involved.

Two pharmacists check the final prepared study medication prior to dispensing. In the

event that two pharmacists are not available, a pharmacist and another licensed clinician

perform the final check.

7. Study Coordinator:

a. Provides an in-service to nursing when all items are finalized.
b. Study requirement checklist must be completed by the P or research coordinator prior to
enroliment of patients.
c. Staff education is provided in the departments and to the staff involved.
i. Pharmacists involved in study drug dispensing or monitoring shall be educated
on study procedures. This shall include:
1) Documentation
2) Monitoring (if required by the study)
3) Randomization (when pharmacy is the responsible party)
4) Blinding
5) Proper storage, preparation, and dispensing of the study drug.
8. Nursing:
a. Reviews orders, the nursing summary, and drug fact sheets
b. Coordinates distribution of the information and in-service education to the nursing staff.
9. Registered Nurse administering medication(s):
a. Verifies informed consent.
i. A copy of the consent is retained in the IDS pharmacy and healthmedical record
underthe-researchtab
b. Reviews the Pre-Printed Order (PPO), drug fact sheet and nursing summary
c. Administers IV infusions for investigationa! drugs via a separate site and clearly labeled
as “Investigational Drug”
B-i. Investigational drugs can only be infused into a line with other medications with
approval from the Pl and {BS-Pharmacist.
E. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Documentation in the health record shall include:
a. Signed copy of informed consent-filed-underresearch-tab
b. Physician’s order for the investigational drug including:
i. Name
ii. Dose
fii. Route
iv. Duration of administration (included on the PPO)
V. Frequency of administration
vi. Acceptable rescue medications for an adverse drug reaction
C. Order for disposition of any unused medication

40



Patient Care Services
Research Activities: Investigational Drugs
Page S5of 5

F.

G.

H.

d. Completed Medication Administration Record (MAR)

e. All side effects and adverse reactions to the investigational drug shall be noted in the
nursing notes and reported to the physician.

f. Results for all tests ordered at TCHD as part of the research protocol

PATIENTS ENTERING TCHD WHO ARE PARTICIPATING IN AN OUTSIDE CLINICAL TRIAL:

1. For patients entering TCHD who are in an outside clinical trial (not recognized or approved by

the TCHD SRC), the pharmacy shall adhere to the following guidelines:

a. The Pl shall be notified and evaluate the appropriateness of the patient's continuance in

the investigational study.

i. If no contraindication exists, the investigational study medications may be
continued during hospitalization.

i. If the P does not have privileges at TCHD this information must be
communicated to the admitting physician or hospitalist assuming care of the
patient.

b. The admitting physician or Allied Health Professional (AHP) shall provide a written order

for “patient may take own study drug" or similar wording.

The IDS pharmacist shall verify identity and confirm the study drug.

The Pl shall complete the Investigational Drug Fact Sheet for nursing and pharmacy.

e. The TCHD SRC and pharmacy shall accept a copy of the original informed consent
i. A copy shall be placed on the patient's medical chart

f. Sufficient education is provided to the pharmacy and nursing staff charged with
dispensing and administering the medication.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Pharmacy Procedure: Patient Medication Refrigerators

REFERENCE(S):

1. https://www.fda.gov/regulatory-information/search-fda-guidance-documents/clinical-
trials-guidance-documents

2. https://support.nim.nih.goviknowledgebase/category/?id=CAT-01242
3. http:/iwirb.com/Pages/default.aspx

= oY eorahat o

an

41



@ri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE ROLICY-MANUAL
COMPLIANCE
ISSUE DATE: 05/00 SUBJECT: EMTALA: Emergency Medical
Screening
REVISION DATE: 06/03; 01/06; 08/09; 02/11 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-506
Administrative Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 02M1705/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 82/4707/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0347 n/a
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 84/47 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/17

A PURPOSE:

1.

To ensure compliance with the Federal requirements contained in the Emergency Medical
Treatment and Labor Act (EMTALA). EMTALA waiver allows hospitals to direct or relocate
individuals which would normally be prohibited under EMTALA of individuals with unstable
emergency medical conditions if necessitated by the circumstances of the declared emergency.
CMS will provide notice of the waiver.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

Individual who presents with an emergency medical condition: An individual who presents with an
emergency medical condition anywhere on Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) campus, even if
the individual presents at a location other than the Emergency Department (ED). TCHD's campus
includes ambulatory services departments located on or adjacent to the campus, as well as the
medical center parking lots, sidewalks, and access roads.

Emergency Medical Condition:

a. A medical condition manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity (including
severe pain, psychiatric disturbances, and/or symptoms of substance abuse) such that the
absence of immediate medical attention could reasonably be expected to result in either
placing the health of an individual (or with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of her
unborn child) in serious jeopardy; serious impairment of bodily functions; or serious
dysfunction of any bodily organ or part; or

b. With respect to a pregnant woman who is having contractions, there is adequate time to
affect a safe transfer to another hospital before delivery or the transfer may pose a threat
to the health or safety of the woman or her unborn child.

Medical Screening_ Exam (MSE): The process required to reach, with reasonable clinical

confidence, the point at which it can be determined whether an emergency medical condition

does or does not exist. MSE requires an evaluation by a qualified medical provider, within the
capability of the hospital’'s ED, to determine whether an emergency medical condition exists, or if

the person is in labor. The MSE is a dynamic process and represents a spectrum ranging from a

simple process involving only a brief history and physical, to a complex process that involves

performing ancillary studies and procedures, depending on the patient's presenting symptoms.

Stabilization: Stabilization includes the provision of such medical treatment for the condition,

necessary to assure within reasonable medical probability that no material deterioration of the

condition is likely to result from, or occur during, the transfer of the individual from a facility, or
that the woman has delivered the child and placenta. Stabilization may include either stabilization
for discharge or stabilization for transfer.

Triage. Determines the order in which patients will be seen.

42



Administrative Policy Manual
EMTALA: Emergency Medical Screening — 8610-506
Page 2of 3

POLICY:

C.

1.
2.

Collection of financial information in the ED must be performed in accordance with this policy.
Hospitals may not delay in providing a medical screening examination (MSE) or necessary
stabilizing treatment by inquiring about an individual's ability to pay for care. Individuais who have
an emergency medical condition must be offered, and if desired, receive a MSE regardless of
answers the individual may give to questions asked during the registration process. In addition, a
hospital may not delay screening or treatment to an individual while information is verified.
However, hospitals may continue to follow reasonable registration processes for individuals
presenting with an emergency medical condition. Reasonable registration processes may include
requesting information about insurance as long as these procedures do not delay screening or
treatment.

Each patient seeking treatment in the ED is entitled to an emergency MSE. When collecting

financial information in the ED setting, the following guidelines must be followed:

a. A MSE and necessary stabilization may not be refused by TCHD for any reason, even if a
managed care plan refuses to authorize treatment or pay for services the MSE must be
completed despite ability to pay.

b. A MSE for an ED patient may not be delayed in order to:

i. Inquire about an individual's ability to pay

i. Inform the patient that he/she must pay a co-pay or deductible if they choose to be
treated

ii. Perform insurance verification and authorization

iv. Inform the patient that his/her care will be free or at a lower cost if another facility
is used

C. The MSE must be the same for all individuals presenting to the ED with the same
condition, regardless of financial status or payment source. Triage does not qualify as an
appropriate medical screening exam.

The registrar or Triage RN must refrain from making any comments that the patient might

interpret to mean that services might not be provided based on ability to pay. For example, the

registrar must not say, "We don't accept XYZ insurance here."

The registrar shall not request co-pays, deductibles, or past due balances from the patient until

the MSE and necessary stabilization have occurred.

If a patient expresses the intent to leave the ED, the patient shall be encouraged to remain in the

ED until the MSE and necessary stabilization are completed. If a patient leaves TCHD as a result

of questions asked prior to receiving the MSE, it may be interpreted that the there was a

suggestion that the patient leave the ED. This must be well documented by the Triage RN.

If a patient presents to the ED with a life-threatening emergent condition (i.e., patient arrives via

ambulance in cardiac arrest) the MSE and necessary stabilization will begin immediately. The

registrar may obtain the information identified in C.10 below from a source other than the patient

(i.e., next of kin). Otherwise, financial information shall be obtained after the patient has received

a MSE and necessary stabilizing treatment. Financial information may be discussed with the

patient only after stabilization.

In case of an emergent situation or active labor identified after the MSE, stabilization and

treatment will begin immediately. The registrar may obtain the information identified in C.10

below, as well as insurance verification and authorization, provided that the necessary

stabilization and treatment are not delayed. When the physician determines that an emergency
medical condition no longer exists, the patient may:

a. Accept treatment and financial liability.

If the MSE determines that the patient does not have an emergency medical condition, or the

patient is not in active labor, the patient shall be informed of his/her treatment options. The

registrar may obtain the information identified in C.10 below, as well as insurance verification and
authorization. After the MSE is completed, and once the physician has made the determination
that an emergency medical condition does not exist, the patient may be informed of his/her
potential financial liability. The patient may;

a. Accept treatment and financial liability.

43



Administrative Policy Manual
EMTALA: Emergency Medical Screening — 8610-506

Page 3 of 3
b. Refuse additional treatment. If freatment is refused, the physician may refer the patient to
another facility.

10. The registration process may be initiated as long as the process does not cause a delay in the
provision of a MSE and necessary stabilization for an emergency medical condition. Basic
identifying information may be gathered and entered into Affinity to allow for processing of tests in
the order entry system. Basic information obtained may include:

a. Patient's full name

b. Patient's date of birth

c. Social Security number

d. Family physician

e. Insurance plan information, if applicable

11, If patient's information is already present in Affinity, the registrar will verify the existing
information.

12. An Advance Beneficiary Notification Notice (ABN) shail not be obtained when rendering
emergency medical treatment.

13. Signage indicating payment is due at time of service, or indicating that the patient’s insurance
may not pay for the service may not be placed in the ED lobby or treatment area.

14. Registration/ patient access management personnel must educate all registration staff
responsible for registering, billing, and maintaining patient records.

186. The Registration supervisor shall observe registrars at regular intervals during the orientation
period and at least annually thereafter to ensure compliance with this policy. Deviations from the
policy will result in corrective action.

D. REFERENCES:

1. Social Security Act, Section 1867, 42 U.S.C. 1395dd, Examination and Treatment for Emergency
Conditions and Women in Labor.

2. Social Security Act, Section 1867, 42 U.S.C. 1395cc, Emergency Medical Treatment and Active
Labor Act.

B Federal Register 489.24, Special Responsibilities of Medicare Hospitals in Emergency Cases.

4, Federal Register 489.53, Terms of Provider Agreements, Acceptance of Program Beneficiaries,

5, Current California Hospital Association (CHA) Consent Manual — Chapter: Patient Transfer,
Discharge, or Temporary Absence

6. EMTALA Answer Book 20202048, Author Mark M. Moy

44



e

® Tri-City Medical Center Emergancy Department

PROCEDURE: EZ-I0 INTRAOSSEOQUS (I0) INFUSION SYSTEM 7010-015

Purpose: To outline the procedure on use and care of Intraosseous infusions

Supportive Data:  Intraosseous infusion has been proven to be a safe and effective way to administer
medications, fluids and blood products in both adults and pediatric patients that require
rapid access for fluid resuscitation when standard 1V access has not been achieved in a
timely manner.

Equipment; Adult or pediatric Intracsseous Infusion Systems, EZ-10 drill device, appropriate size 10
needle for age, local anesthetic (optional but should be considered if the patient is
conscious), Chlorhexidine prep, syringe for aspiration, normal saline flush syringe for
irrigation, dressing supplies, EX connect extension tubing, IV tubing and fluids, pressure
infusion bag, rapid infuser or Alaris pump. For removal of IO device a 10mL syringe,

__gauze and medical tape.

Issue Date: 08/07

A DEFINITIONS:

1.

Intraosseous (10) infusion is indicated when rapid access to the circulation for administration of
medications is needed and other standard attempts to obtain IV access have failed. 10 infusion
should be given any time intravenous (IV) cannulation is either too difficult or too time consuming
to accomplish. 10 needles are recommended for any age group.

B. POLICY:
1. The use of the EZ-10 drill and needle for insertion is performed by a physician/Allied Health
Professional (AHP) or Registered Nurse.
2. Infusion through and removal of the IO after insertion is within nursing scope of practice.
25 DO NOT leave the EZ-IO catheter in for more than 24 hours. The |0 catheter must be removed

within 24 hours after initial insertion. Wristband, which is included in the kit, is placed on the
patient at time of insertion indicating the time the catheter must be removed.

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Insertion of an |0 using the EZ-10 is performed only by a physician/Allied Health Professional
{AHP) or Registered Nurse.

2. The physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) or Registered Nurse will select the appropriate
site for insertion of the 10 needle.

38 Nursing should position the patient (depending on the site) and stabilize the area for insertion.

4. Cleanse the area with Chlorhexidine antiseptic solution (Chloraprep).

5. The clinician inserting the IO may use local anesthetic (20-40mg of 2% Lidocaine) for patient
comfort as necessary.

6. The clinician inserting the IO will insert a 15G x 1" needie for adult or 15G x 0.6" for pediatric,
using the EZ-10 device.

7. After insertion, the placement is confirmed by aspirating blood or marrow contents with a syringe.
Syringe bolus (flush) of 10 device with 10ml normal saline should infuse easily without resistance.

8. Connect the EZ connect tubing (included in the EZ-10 needle kit). The end with the angle
attaches to the 10 device catheter and the straight end to the standard IV tubing.

9. Secure tubing and catheter. Apply a sterile dressing.

10.  Date dressing. (Must be removed within 24 hours).

1. While every attempt will be made to remove IO catheters prior to admitting patients to Intensive
Care Unit (ICU), there may be the occasion when the catheter must remain until another route
may be established, such as standard IV access or appropriate central access device.

12.  Pediatric patients may be transferred to other facilities with the 10 device in place.

13. Removal of the catheter is accomplished by following the steps listed below:

- Department of Pha d Maeadical Professional
TR | Emegeney | TUUOCS | B | admmevston | wa | Boardol
10114, 02/20 11/14, 03/20 01115, 05120 02/15, 08/20 08720 0315, va 08iar: 9211,

45



Emergency Depariment
EZ-10 Intraosseous (1C) Infusion System

Page 2of 2

a. Supporting the patient’s limb with the catheter.

b. While maintaining aseptic technique connect a sterile 10ml luer-lock syringe to the hub of
the catheter to provide a handle to withdraw the IO catheter device from the bone.

ct Rotate the syringe and catheter clockwise while gently pulling. DO NOT ROCK the IQ
catheter while removing. Rocking or bending the catheter with a syringe may cause the
catheter to separate from the hub.

D. SAFETY:
1. Contraindications and Cautions:

a. An 1O is not recommended in any fractured extremities because of the risk of fluid and
medication infiltrating into the surrounding tissue.

b. To decrease the risk of infection, avoid placing the 10 line through burned or infected
tissue.

c. General contradictions may include patients with bone disorders, such as osteoporosis
and osteogenesis imperfecta.

d. Do not infuse marrow toxic medications, (such as certain antibiotics) via the 10 route.

2. Age Specific Considerations:

a. 10 access is widely recommended for use in pediatric population (AHA, 2002).

b. Itis now recommended in the management of adult patients who are critically ill (Waisman
& Waisman, 1997| Frascone et al., 2001).

3. Complications:

a. Unsuccessful attempts to penetrate the bony cortex or bending the needle by use of
excessive force delays vascular access.

b. Puncture of the posterior cortex as a result of excessive pressure during insertion of the
needle.

c. Fluid leakage from the infusion site. Fluid exiravasation may occur, especially if the
insertion was difficult or both cortices were penetrated. This fluid extravasation may lead
to compartmental syndrome.

d. Fat embolism resulting from use of high-pressure volume infusions.

e. Potential osteomyelitis, which appears to be associated with prolonged continuous
infusions.

f. Clot formation within the bone marrow needle, causing slowing of the rate of infusion.
The use of a pressure bag often alleviates this issue.

g. Tibia fractures.

E. REFERENCE LIST:

@emoooopw

Semonin-Holleran, R (2004); Intraosseous Access (pg.302-307), 3" edition,

In Proehl, J.A. Emergency Nursing Procedures, Saunders; AHA, 4™ edition {2008),

Pediatric Advance Life Support manual, Dallas Author; AHA, (2011),

Advanced Cardiac Life Support manual, Dallas Author; Stanley, R. (2011 ).

Intraosseous Infusion (pg.475-485), In Roberts J.R. & Hedges, J.R (Eds),

Clinical Procedures in Emergency Medicine, 6" edition (2013), Philadelphia, W.B. Saunders.
Lewis GC, Crapo SA, William JG. Critical skifls and Procedures in Emergency Medicine- Vascular
Access Skills and Procedures. Emerg Med Clin N Am 2013;31:59-86 Retrieved

from: Http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.emc.2012.09.006

Ibrahim M, Cairney K. Intraosseous (/0) Infusion as a Means of Vascular Access. British J of
Resuscitation. Autumn:23-6 (2012)

Rogers J, Fox M. The Safety of Intraosseous Vascular Access. Emergency Medicine Patient
Safety Foundation Forum. Fall 18-21(2012)

Weiser G, Hoffmann Y, Galbraith R, Shavit |. Current Advances in Intraosseous Infusion — A
Systematic Review. Resuscitation; 83(1):20-6. doi:1016/}.resusitation.2011.07.020 (2012)

46



Dot bution—Patiort Core Sor
, @Tri-City Health Care District .
PROCEDURE: DISPOSAL OF NEEDLES & SYRINGES; HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
Purpose: To properly dispose of syringes and needles to prevent injury/accident to employees,
patients, and caregivers.
_Eupperiva-Bate:
Equipment: A locked puncture proof container with a slot in the top for dropping in syringes and
needles.
[ Issue Date: 09/03

A PROCEDURE:

| 1.

with a slot in the top. Home Care uses commercial containers.
2. Entire used syringe and needle is dropped into the container. The needie is not recapped.
3¢ Container is transported by the Home Care nurse into the home when it is anticipated that

syringes will be used.

4—Used syringes and needles will be placed in a puncture resistant hazardous waste container

4, Patients and families are instructed to use the locked puncture proof container supplied by
infusions companies if needles and sharps are used by Rtpatient or G/Geare giver. Note:
Families with smail children in the home should be cautioned to place barrier over opening of
the puncture resistant container.

month by Facilities Department.
9, Containers are ordered from the purchasing department.
10.  No other biohazardous material is transported by agency staff.

5. Used containers are stored in-the-Radiation-Departmentand are-placed in a biohazardous

waste receptacle within a locked area in suite 212 outside of the Home Health Office.
6. Any employee transporting sharps and specimens must carry an Agency copy of Limited
Quantity Hauler Exemption.

01106, 12/08, 0812,
06/20

Pharmacy &
Department Review Therapeutics Medical Executive Administration Professional Affairs Board of Directors
) Committee Committee
Committes
08196, 11/97, 08/98,
Lol Bl e S 07/20 08/20 08/20 n/a 08/12

47



]
(CU Tri-City Medical Center

Home Health Care

3-2.
4:3.
54,

PROCEDURE: HOME TOTAL PARENTERAL NUTRTION (TPN)
Purpose: To provide total energy and nutrient requirements in amounts sufficient to maintain a
proper metabolic state and positive nitrogen balance intravenously
Supportive Data: ~ When a patient requires TPN accurate, safe and consistent measures must be
implemented to reduce risk of infection, metabolic complications and maintain integrity
of the central venous catheter. Proper monitoring allows for the assessment of the
patient’s tolerance of the nutritional support.
1. Dressing Changes (See long-term venous catheters procedure)
2. Initiating Home TPN (Continuous/Cyclic Infusion)
Proper initiation of TPN per guidelines reduces the risk of metabolic complications, i.e.
hyperglycemia, fiuid overload
Equipment: + Non-sterile gloves s Infusion pump
s Alcohol prep pads (3) e« TPN tubing
s Chloroprep swabs e 1.2 micron filter
* 12ml syringe with needleless syringe cannula filled ¢ |sopropyl alcohol
with 10ml of normal saline e Paper towel
» Vitamins/additives already have been added to TPN  « Trash can
solution bag — Remove from refrigerator s Needle discard
approximately 30-60 minutes before infusing container
Normal Saline * Micropore tape — 1"
= [V poles
Issue Date: 97
A. HOME TOTAL PARENTERAL NUTRTION (TPN):
+—STERS
21. Hand Hygiene.

Verify label on TPN solution with TPN profile from pharmacy.
Inspect solution and container for integrity, i.e. punctured bag, contaminates or precipitates.
Clean working area thoroughly with an approved disinfectant, such as sani-cloth and isopropy!

alcohol.

6-5.
+6.

Remove protective cap from TPN bag.
Open tubing package, close roller clamp/slit clamp. Remove protective cap from spike and insert

spike into bag port.

87.
8.
40-9.
+H-10.
211,
1312,

Attach 1.2 micron filter to tubing prn.

invert bag and hang on IV pole.

Follow instructions for pump, prime tubing via pump.
Cleanse injection cap on end of catheter with 3 alcohol pads.
Release clamp on extension set/central venous catheter.
Flush catheter with 10cc of N.S. If immediately hanging a new TPN bag, may flush catheter with

5 ml of NS.

44:13.
15-14.
46-15.
4+16.
1817.
18-18.

Connect tubing to injection cap on catheter.

Administer TPN as ordered. Tapering up and down. Check pump for program accuracy.
IV Pump and tubing have built in safeguards to prevent bolus infusions.

IV tubing, filter and solutions changed every 24 hours.

Monitoring guidelines per MD-Pharmacy order: i.e. weights.

The patient/caregiver will receive education regarding TPN.

REFERENCES:

1. Perry, et.al. Clinical Nursing Skilis and Technigues.Mosby, Inc.: St. Louis, 2006

Review

Maedical
Executive
Committee

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committes

Board of

Revisaed Directors

Administration

11/97, 09/00,
06/06,08,09

06/03, 06/08,

08/12 07720

08/20 09/20 nia 97,03,06, 09




Home Health Care
Home Total Parental Nutrition

Page 2 of 2
2. Gorski et al Pollmes and Procedures for Infusuon Therapy, lnfusmn Nurses Socnety, Inc.,
MA 2016
3 Gorski, et.al. Journal of Infusion Nursing. Infusion Therapy Standards of Practice,
Infusion Nurses Society, Inc., MA 2016
[aled HAO7-000:6/06:08.09 | 6:03.-6/06-8412 0502, Be 0

49



(@’)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

P SPECIRIC POLICY MANIIAL
HOME HEALTH CARE
ISSUE DATE: 01/99 SUBJECT: Infusion Program
REVISION DATE(S): 10/04, 4/05, 11/07, 8/08, 2/10, POLICY NUMBER: 314
01/12
Home Health Care Approval: 06/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 07/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 01/12
A, POLICY:
1. Itis the policy of the Agency to ensure that patients are properly assessed and screened prior to

acceptance for home intravenous therapy, using a defined set of criteria. Medical and
psychosocial evaluations are equally important in determining the efficacy and safety of
parenteral fluid and medication administration in the home.

B. PURPOSE:
1. To provide Intravenous services within the parameters defined by Home Health Best Practices

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Tri-City Home Health will only provide infusion therapies for which appropriate procedures have
been written. Services provided are also dictated by the fact that infusion therapies must be
administered by an RN who has completed the educational and performance objectives for
Intravenous Therapy Administration,

2. Examples of therapies that may be administered in the home by Tri-City Home Health are:
a. Pain Management, including PCA
b. Antibiotic Administration * (See first dose antibiotic administration criteria)
c. Antiviral and Antifungal Therapy on a case-to-case basis, after consultation with
pharmacist
d. Hydration
e. Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN) Central
f. Specified IV Push Medications
i. Diphenhydramine hydrachloride (Benadryl)
i Furosemide (Lasix)
iii. Metoclopramide (Reglan)
iv. Methyiprednisclone (Solu-Medrol)
V. Nalaxone (Narcan)
g. Hydrocortisone (Solu-cortef)
3. Therapies not to be administered in the home by Tri-City Home Care:
a. IV cardiac drugs
b. IV aminophylline
c. IV calcium

50



Home Care
Infusion Program
Page 2 of 4

IV potassium bolus

Any experimental medications

Blood or blood products to include: Whole blood, packed RBC's, saline washed RBC's,
frogen-deglycerolixed RBC's, fresh frozen plasma, all types of Platelets, Granulocytes,
Cryoprecipitates-factorVIIl, Factor VII! concentrates, Factor 1x concentrates, Albumin,
immune Serum Globulin ( IgG) nonspecific, IgG RH immune globutin (IgG anti-D) IgG
hepatitis B immune globulin.

d. IV pitocin

e IV cancer chemotherapy

f. IV phenothiazine derivatives
g. IV mercurial derivatives

h. IV heparin drips

i. IV insulin drip

j.

k.

I

D. ADMISSION CRITERIA

1.

2.

10.

1.

i2.

13.

General admission criteria for admission to Home Care services must be met in order to qualify
for admission to, and retention in the Home Infusion Program.

The physician who is primarily responsible for the patient's IV fluid regimen at home has
ordered appropriate fluids, evaluated the patient, and determined that 1V fluids are medically
necessary. He or she will also monitor and evaluate the course of therapy.

The infectious disease diagnosis has been established and is supported by results of cultures
whenever possible.

The patient's medical condition is stable, and all care needs can be met at home and meet the
Home Care criteria for admission. He or she has no other medical problem necessitating
continued hospitalization.

The patient or caregiver (or both) has willingly agreed to participate in home therapy and-signs
thetnfusion-CensentForm

The patient and/or caregiver shall be competent, motivated, and compliant individuals who are
willing to undergo training and assume responsibility for home infusion therapy

The patient or caregiver (or both) is capable of learning and performing all required procedures.
The patient's home environment is adequate for the requirements for the patient’'s specific IV
therapy. Some medications will require freezer or refrigerator storage. Telephone access must
be available.

The patient and or caregivers psychosocial status has been assessed and is judged to be
appropriate for home therapy with regard to the following:

a. Availability of support person or caregiver if needed.

b. Sufficient level of motor skills (especially with regard to ambulation and manual dexterity)
when required.

C. Compliance with established policies.

d. Functional mental status (especially with regard to long and short-term memory,
absence of depression, ability to concentrate).

e. Ability to follow written instructions.

f. Stability and safety of home setting.

Eligibility for reimbursement for home infusion therapy has been assessed, and the patient or
responsible party has been advised of resuits of the assessment and is willing to assume
financial responsibility when appropriate.

Geographic areas need to be identified as safe for home visitation by agency personnel, prior to
admission to the program.

The preferred time for skilled nursing visits to be made is between the hours of 7:30 to 21 :00,
although the patient and/or caregiver will have access to a home care registered nurse 24 hours
per day; wthe £ ne-list-and-previ Sine sctienrts.
Consideration for home therapy will be cancelled or not accepted if one or more of the following
conditions is present:

a. Unstable medical condition

= Ao nro Aan to Al herney e ala) mta

91



Home Care

Infusion Program

Page 3 of 4

| E.

14.

b. Care needs in excess of home care capabilities
c} Psychosocial instability (poor compliance or motivation, improper home environment)
d. Known recent or currently active IV drug abusers.

The first dose of antibiotic may need to be given in the physician’s office, hospital setting or
under the supervision of a physician or his/her designee, based on information received from
the first dose antibiotic checklist and consultation with RN, MD and Pharmacist.

ADMISSION/INITIAL HOME VISIT

1.

3:2.

Clinician Taking Referral:
a. Schedule visit time in close proximity to delivery of medication and equipment by
pharmacy. Timing is to be coordinated by intake clinician and/or hospital Case Manager
with pharmacy and admitting RN.
b. It is policy that anaphylaxis kits are ordered for the home of patients receiving first dose
IV antibiotics. The following is the first dose antibiotic administration and appropriate
treatment for anaphylaxis:
4i.  Prior to IV medication administration check the first dose antibiotic administration
criteria checklist carefully. Obtain baseline nursing assessment and vital signs.
Have anaphylaxis kit within reach.

2}ii.  During IV administration, observe for anaphylactic response. If response occurs
stop the flow of the drug and call 911 immediately. Administer anaphylactic kit
medications as ordered by physician. -epirephrine-0-3mg-{1-1000}-sgq—May

a¥alalal¥ el lalaatla

= Adrimicts

B/—give-deepdM-Monitor patient until the arrival of paramedics checking vital
signs and patency of airway. Initiate CPR if necessary. The physician is notified
when patient is stable. All interventions are documented and an QRR-unusual
occurrence form submitted.

c. All orders for IV medications and solutions must include the name of the medication

solution, dosage, dilution, route, frequency of administration, and rate of infusion.

2-d. Laboratory work as indicated for each medication or solution shall be ordered by the

physician.
RN Doing Skilled Nursing Visit:
a. Orders for IV medications and solutions, intradermal anesthesia with lidocaine 1%

without epinephrine, and orders for anaphylaxis must be obtained before the RN can
perform |V administration of medications and solutions.

b. Case by case evaluation will occur to determine the type of IV line patient will need to
have in place based on the medications and solutions to be administered.
c. Medications and solutions prepared by the pharmacy should arrive in the home as

expected and shall be properly labeied with the patient's name, name of drug, dosage,
diluent, date of preparation, expiration date, initials of preparer, and any special
instructions. Emergency medications/supplies must be replaced by the pharmacy and
sent to the home as soon as possible after their use.

d. Complete standard admission assessment and paperwork as required for all home
health patients. Assess and document specific information as needed for successful
home infusion.

e. Assess the patient's/caregiver's physical ability to perform intravenous administration
procedures, as necessary.

f. Assess environment for minimal necessities to perform intravenous procedures
(electrical, refrigeration, plumbing, phone).

g. Assess the patient's and/or caregiver's ability to comprehend instruction of intravenous

administration procedure. The components of education will include aseptic technique,
catheter care, infusion pump set-up and use of alarms, administration of parenteral
medications, metabolic complications, catheter complications, TPN and disposal of used
equipment.

52



Home Care
Infusion Program
Page 4 of 4

Initiate basic instruction in administration of intravenous therapy in the home and
document-en-the-Home-Infusien-Patient-Edusation-Recerd: instruction provided,
return demo and level of understanding in the patient medical record.

Develop individual patient treatment plan for administration of intravenous therapy in the
home, documenting responses, interaction, patient physical status and all pertinent
information including need for follow up RN visit(s) to provide additional
instruction and verify patient/caregiver satisfactory return demonstration.

53



DELETE - follow Patient Care

Services Policy: Medications, High
TRI-CITY Healthcare DISTR =~ . L
Oceanside, California Risk/ High Alert/ Look Alike Sound

Alike
UNIT SPECIFIC POLICY MANUAL
HOME HEALTH
ISSUE DATE: 1/20/05 SUBJECT: Look Alike/Sound Alike Medications
REVISION DATE: 1/07, 2/08 POLICY NUMBER: 320

REVIEW DATE: 3/05, 9/06, 1/07, 2/09, 3/10, 10/11 ~ APPROVAL: 4/05, 1/07, 4/08, 5/09, 5/10, 1/12

Home Health Care Approval: 06/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 07/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

54



55



2.
® Tri-City Medical Center

Home Healih Care

PROCEDURE: SUBCUTANEOUS CATHETERS
Purpose: Subcutaneous access is utilized to administer medication via injection or
continuous small volume infusion into the subcutaneous tissue where
medication is absorbed through both adipose and connective tissue.
Equipment: General Supplies
¢ Gloves
¢ Alcohol prep pads
e Sharps container
» Syringe
Site Dressing
s Gauze
» Transparent semipermeable membrane (TSM)
e Tape
Subcutaneous Infusion Equipment
¢ Subcutaneous needle 25-27 gauge, %: inch
e 10% providone-iodine swabs
e Subcutaneous access infusion kit
e Extension tubing, if necessary
+ Prefilled medication container or cassette
s Infusion pump
Issue Date:
A. SUBCUTANEOQUS CATHETERS:

1. Patient Assessment and Education

a.

b
c
d
e.
f
2. P
a
b
c
I
a

.

Verify patient's identity.

Obtain and verify physician's order.

Provide patient/ CG with educational material/information regarding procedure.
Obtain patient’s consent.

Assess patient.

Place patient in reclining position.

rior to Beginning Procedure

Wash hands.
Don mask and gloves.
Use aseptic technique and observe Standard Precautions throughout procedure.

nsertion Site and Device Selection

Select insertion site with adequate subcutaneous tissue: a fat fold of at lease 1 inch (2.5
cm) when thumb and forefinger are pinched together. Site selection is also based on
patient’s anticipated mobility and comfort. Sites may include:

i. Supraclavicular area

ii. Anterior chest wall

iii. Lower abdomen

iv, Outer aspects of the arms and thigh

b. Avoid areas that are:

i, Scarred

ii, Infected

fii. Irritated

iv. Edematous

V. Bony
Pharmacy & Medical Profassional Board of

Review Ravision Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs Directors
Committee Committee Committee
e 08/12 07720 08/20 09/20 nia 03/04

56



Home Health Care
Subcutaneous Catheters

Page 2 of 3
vi, Highly vascularized
vii. Near the waistline
C. Select access device with a 25-27 gauge, % inch steel needle or catheter.
4, insertion Site Preparation

a. Wash insertion site with antiseptic soap and water if necessary.

b. Remove excess hair from insertion site via clipping if necessary.

c. Disinfect insertion site (see Chapter 5, Policy on Site disinfection). Chiorprep.

5. Device Placement and Therapy Initiation
a, Follow manufacturer’s guidelines for access device placement.
b. Inspect access device for defects.

6. For Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion:

a. Prepare equipment and medication to be administered.

b. Lift skin up into small mound between thumb and index finger.

C. Insert primed subcutaneous infusion system with attached access device into the skin.

d. Stabilize access device.

e. Secure connection junctions.

f. Dress access site using transparent dressing to allow for site observation and palpation.

a. Initiate therapy.

7. For Subcutaneous Injection:

a. Use syringe with 25-27 gauge, ¥ inch disposabie needle containing medication to be
administered.

b. Grasp skin firmly to elevate subcutaneous tissue.

c. Position needle bevel-up and insert at a 90 degree angle.

d. Release grasp on skin once needle is inserted.

e. Pull back slightly on the plunger to aspirate; if blood appears, withdraw needle. Prepare
second access site and repeat procedure.

f. Slowly inject medication. (Note: Only medications recommended for subcutaneous
administration may be given.)

g. After injection is complete, gently but rapidly remove access device and discard in
appropriate container.

h. Apply pressure to injection site and dress with sterile gauze.

8. Site Care and Maintenance

a. Inspect access site and equipment:

i. Observe site for bleeding, bruising, inflammation, drainage, edema, or cellulites
i Monitor patient for complaints regarding burning or itching at site
i Observe old sites for signs of irritation or infection

b. Change administration set immediately upon suspected contamination: otherwise, change
administration set, including add-on devices and tubing, every 3-5days aslong as a
closed system is maintained.

c. Change access site dressing immediately upon suspected contamination; otherwise,
change transparent semipermeable membrane (TSM) dressing every 3-5 days during site
rotation.

d. Rotate access site every 3-5 days. Select new site at least 1 inch from previous site,
preferably dependent on patient comfort.

9. Post-Insertion

a. Do not fiush subcutaneous access device.

b. Discard used equipment and supplies.

c. Remove gloves.

d. Wash hands.

e. Document in patient’'s medical record.

F—Cenpersl Supslics

a—Glovas
b——Alcohol-preppads

1.4 A



Home Health Care
Subcutaneous Catheters
Page 3of 3

58



Tri-City Homecare

Distribution:

RNs, LVNs

PROCEDURE:
SUBCUTANEOUS INSERTION AND SITE MAINTENANCE FOR INFUSIONS VIA

DELETE - no longer needed

PATIENT CONTROLLED ANALGESIA PUMP

Pharmacy &
l Department Review Therapautics Medical Executive Administration Professional Affairs Board of Directors
Committes Committee
Commiittee
06/20 07/20 08/20 09120 nfa 0712

59



60



Tri-City Homecare

PROCEDURE:

Distribution: RN

DELETE ~ not needed in
Home Health

VITAMIN/ADDITIVES ADDITION TO TPN BAG

R

N

' I

&

9.

18-
Pharmacy & Medical Executive Professional Affairs

Department Review Therapeutics Administration Board of Diractors
Committea Committee
Committee
06/20 07120 08/20 nia 07112

61



Page 2

62



(@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL

ISSUE DATE: 09/95

REVISION DATE(S): 09/01, 09/02, 10/03, 10/06, 10/08,
07/09, 10/09, 07/11, 08/14, 01/16
01/17, 02/18, 09/18

Infection Control Department Approval:
Infection Control Committee Approval:
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval:
Medical Executive Committee Approval:
Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval:

SUBJECT:

06H805/20

0FH1905/20
n/a

07/1908/20

081909/20
n/a

08/19

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases
and Tuberculosis Control Plan

A TUBERCULOSIS AND AEROSOL TRANSMISSIBLE EXPOSURE CONTROL PLAN

INTRODUCTION:

1. Legal mandates and regulatory agencies such as California Code of Regulation Title 8,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) have set the standards for the implementation of an Aerosol
Transmissible Diseases (ATD) including Tuberculosis Exposure Control Plan.

B. PURPOSE AND POLICY:

1. Itis the policy of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) to provide care to patients with ATDs with a
minimum risk of transmission to others. The Infection Control Committee will provide assistance
in ensuring compliance with the policy. The plan includes:

a. Source Control Procedures including cough etiquette / respiratory hygiene.
b. Implementation of an effective triage system and early identification of suspects and

active cases
Engineering control measures
Respiratory protection programs

@=poo

Education and training of employees
Evaluation and treatment of employees exposed to ATDs
Protection of patients, employees and visitors from exposure to ATDs. These include:

i. Pathogens requiring Airborne Precautions;
i See Type and Duration of Precautions - Disease Specific (formerly Short

Sheet)

fi-ii.  Diseases requiring Droplet Precautions;
fre See Type and Duration of Precautions - Disease Specific (formerly Short

Sheet)

wiii. Ebola disease: Requires Sspecial considerations: Please seerefer-toTr-Gity
Medieal-Genter Infection Control Ebola Plan RPpolicy for management of a patient
with eerfirmed-or suspected or confirmed Ebola. *Requires a negative

pressure room.

63



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy

Page 2 of 15
C. SCOPE:
1. The Tuberculosis Control and Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Plan applies to all inpatient and

outpatient services

D. RESPONSIBILITY:
1. The Tuberculosis Control and Aerosol Transmissible Disease Program will require the
participation of the following personnel:

a. The Infection Control Officer and the Infection Preventionist are responsible for
overseeing the plan. This includes, but is not limited to implementation of the plan for the
facility, development of policies and procedures to support the implementation of the
plan; reporting of suspected and diagnosed cases of ATDs and Tuberculosis as defined
in under CA title 22 to the infection Control Committee and county department of health.
Itis also the responsibility of the Infection Preventionist to evaluate the risk assessment
at least annually.

b. The Environment of Care Officer is responsible for implementation and maintenance of
current standards to meet the requirements of the California Code of Regulation Title 8,
Title 24 and the guidelines from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

C. Employee Health Services is responsible for employee TB skin testing and
interpretations; conducting investigation regarding employee exposure to ATDs and TB;
maintaining employee TB skin test conversion data; reporting employee conversion and
diagnosed cases to the Infection Control and Safety committees annually; and managing
and counseling staff who have active ATDs. Employee Health is responsible for
developing and implementing policies and procedures related to the respiratory
protection program. Employee Health is also responsible for screening, testing, and
provision of immunizations as indicated and seasonal influenza vaccination
administration and declination statement documentation.

d. Department Directors and Managers are responsible for implementation of the TB and

ATD Control Plan in their respective areas, providing educational training to all
employees before exposure to a source case: maintaining documentation of personnel
training; netification-ofth igr-F iori 7

A lnto wta aviantioun ala 0o L

trative Supervisor is responsible for patient placement in a negative pressure

f. Case Management reports to the County TB Control for suspected and confirmed
TB cases, during the weekdays, weekends and holidays.

9.  The Director of Education is responsible for including TB and ATD contro! plan in
orientation of new employees and annual OSHA required training related to ATDs.

g-h. The Manager Direster of Environmental Services is responsible for developing,
implementing and monitoring procedures for cleaning rooms occupied by a patient with
ATDs.

k. The Facilities ManagerDirestor is responsible for monitoring and verifying air pressures
daily on Airborne Infection isolation Rooms (AlIR), when in use, and reporting of air

64



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy
Page 3 of 15

changes and air pressures to the Infection Ceontrol and Safety committees annually.

i. The BirecterManager of Pulmonary Services is responsible for training, implementing
and monitoring respiratory staffs’ adherence to the ATD and TB Control plan including
protection for high-hazard procedures.

| k. The Facilities ManagerbBirester is responsible for maintaining and cleaning of portable
HEPA recirculators and providing portable HEPA recirculators to units as needed.

| ko, Microbiology Supervisor is responsible for the notification toef the local health authority
according to California and Federal regulations of ATDs and TB.

| Em.  The Employees are responsible for early identification of suspects and active cases of

ATDs and TB; early implementation of Airbomne Precautions; knowledge of Tuberculosis

and ATD control plan; of-cases-to-the-rtestionRroventionist-and/or the i

Health-Nurse: compliance with all protective practices; attendance of New Employee

Orientation Program and annual OSHA required education; and reporting

noncompliance and unusual occurrences using a quality review report.

| fen.  The Physicians play an important part in TB and ATD Control by maintaining a high
index of clinical suspicion.

i Physicians should place all HIV positive patients with infiltrates in Airborne
Precautions until three sputum concentrated smears are negative for AFB or until
a diagnosis other than tuberculosis is clearly established.

ii. Place all new admits with a history of fever, weight loss and cough or pneumonia
greater than 2-3 weeks in Airborne Precautions if no clear etiologic agent is
identified.

iii. Treat all highly suspected tuberculosis cases with anti-tuberculosis medications
pending sputum results.

iv. Consider ATD in patients with temperature greater than 100 degrees F and
cough. ATD may also be considered in the presence of rash with fever.
Vv, Implement control measures when ATD is suspected.

E. AVAILABILITY OF THE PLAN:
1. The Tuberculosis and ATD Control Plan will be available via the Intranet in the Infection Control
| Manual infor all staff. every-depariment. OSHA required education will be conducted at the
new employee orientation program and all other employees are required to complete an annual
review. The written plan will be reviewed and updated annually and as indicated by regulations.

F. FUNDAMENTALS OF TUBERCULOSIS INFECTION CONTROL:

1. Some segments of the U.S. population have a higher risk for TB because they are more likely to
have been exposed or because their infection is more likely to progress to active TB after
infection. TB is carried in the air after being generated when persons with pulmonary or
laryngeal TB sneeze, cough, speak or sing. These particles are carried on air currents and stay
afloat for a long time. Infection occurs when a person inhales the germs into their lungs. Usually
within 2-10 weeks after infection, the immune response limits further multiplication and spread
but some bacteria can remain dormant for years (latent infection). People with normal immune
systems have a 5-10% lifetime risk of the latent infection progressing to active disease. Factors
that influence infection include the concentration (number) of the bacteria in the air and duration
of exposure. Exposure in a relatively small space with inadequate ventilation can increase the
risk of infection. Persons who are immunocompromised are more likely to become infected and
to also develop active disease. The transmission, epidemiology and pathogenesis of TB were all
considered in our plan. An effective program requires early identification, isolation and effective
treatment of persons who have active disease.

a. The most effective control measure is to ensure rapid identification, isolation, diagnostic
evaluation and treatment of persons likely to have TB.

b. The next level of effective control is the use of engineering controls (i.e. airflow, dilution,
filtration and exhaust of air)

c. The final and least effective control is the use of respiratory protection.

65



Infaction Control

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy

Page 4 of 15

G.

TUBERCULOSIS RISK ASSESSMENT:

Risks assessment will be performed annually by the Infection Preventionist and reviewed by the
tnfection Control and Environment of Care Committees. The purpose of this assessment is to
evaluate the risk of transmission of Tuberculosis so that appropriate interventions can be
developed. The assessment will include:

1.

Poo o

Community TB profile from public health department data

Number of infectious TB patients treated in outpatient and inpatient areas.

Drug susceptibility patterns of TB patients

Analysis of staff PPD test results by area

Review medical records for appropriate precautions, timing of specimens, duration of

precautions and timely communication with public health.
f. Observation of practice and review of engineering controls.
Considerations for determining the hospital’s risk classification will be based on the following:

VERY LOW RISK There are no TB patients admitted to the facility during the preceding
year

LOW RISK The employee PPD conversion rate in an area is not higher than in
areas with increased occupation exposure to Tuberculosis
Fewer than 6 patients were admitted to area during the preceding year
There is no evidence of person-to-person transmission
No clusters of staff PPD conversion

INTERMEDIATE Same as Low Risk with the addition of six or more TB patients

RISK admitted to the area during the preceding year.

HIGH RISK PPD conversion rate is higher in areas without occupational exposure

to Tuberculosis.

Clusters of staff PPD conversion.

Evidence of person-to-person transmission.
More than 6 patients admitted to an area.

Early identification of suspected and active TB patients can initiate prompt treatment and
prevent transmission of the disease. This is the most effective method for controlling the spread
of tuberculosis, an Administrative Control. A suspected case of TB is defined as:

a. A patient with unexplained cough, cough with bloody sputum, and/or a cough lasting
longer than 3 weeks

b. A patient with unexplained fever, night sweats, weight loss and anorexia

c. Readmission of patients recently diagnosed with Tuberculosis

A high index of suspicion for Tuberculosis should be maintained for the following

a. Patients requiring high-risk procedures such as aerosolized pentamidine and sputum
induction for Acid Fast Bacilli (AFB)

b. Patients who belong to a group with a higher prevalence of TB infection: medically

under-served, foreign born from a developing country, homeless, current or past justice
involved , alcohalic, injecting drug-user, elderly, or extended contact with an active TB

case,

(3 Patients who belong to a group with a higher risk to progress from latent TB to active
disease: immunocompromised (HIV, organ transplant, or on high dose steroids),
silicosis, status post gastrectomy or jejuno-ileal bypass surgery, >10% below body
weight, chronic renal failure, diabetes mellitus, infected within past two years, or child >5

years old.

In outpatient areas where patients with undiagnosed Tuberculosis may be present, precautions
must be taken to minimize the risk of transmission.

a. Instruct patients to cover their mouths with a handkerchief or tissue, and give them a
surgical mask to wear. Tissues and masks must be readily available in the waiting areas.

b. Questionnaires will be utilized in all outpatient areas and Emergency Department to
assist in the early identification of suspected cases.

c. Patients with symptoms suggestive of Tuberculosis will be removed from the common

area and placed in a designated waiting area.

66



Infection Control

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy

Page 5of 15
6.
7.
8.
9.
H.

d. Patients unable to wear a mask can be placed outside with appropriate supervision unitil
an appropriate room is available.

For departments in main hospital building without a built in negative pressure room, staff

shallcan obtain a HEPA filter (recirculator) from the Engineering department to enhance

circulation in the exam or treatment room.-te-be-used-by-tho-patient: Contact Engineering for

placement assistance. Please note: The patient must be placed in an AlIR room within 5 hours

of identification.

a. Staff wear N95 particulate respirators and visitors wear surgical masks when entering
this area,

b. If the patient is suspected or known to have infectious TB, the room must remain vacant
per Section M: Room Shut Down Time. The door is to remain closed and the filter
running.

c. Personnel may enter the area but must continue to wear respiratory protection until the

time has lapsed.

For off-site areas, the patient will be asked to wear a surgical mask while inside the building.

Any possibility of TB as a diagnosis should be communicated by telephone to other

departments, prior to transporting the patient to those areas.

Patients seen in the ED with confirmed or suspected Ppulmonary ex~karyrgeal TB are masked

and placed in C-26, a negative pressure room. Staff must wear an N95 respirator when

entering the room.

a. These patients might require hospitalization to control the spread of infection. Patients
confirmed or suspected with pulmonary TB, will be masked if transporting
throughout the facility.

L)

MANAGEMENT OF HOSPITALIZED PATIENTS WHO MAY HAVE ACTIVE TB:

1.

a-3.

F

Staff who are the first points of contact should ask questions that will facilitate identification of
patients with signs and symptoms suggestive of TB. See the Admission Assessment Patient
History form>TB Screening form>to assess for TB risk factors and symptoms.

Upon identification of a patient with active or suspected Tuberculosis, the nurse must place the

patient in an AlIR (i.e. negative pressure room: C-26, 143, 243, 287, 387, 443, 487, Maternal

Child room 200, 201and Progressive Care Unit (PCU) Rooms 301, 312 and 326,) The door

must be closed and-the-HERA filter+unning. Post the Airborne Precautions sign outside the

room.

If 2 designatednegative pressure room is not available, retify-the-charge-rurse-and-the-bed

coordinaterAdministrative Supervisor of the need for an Airborne Precautions room. Remeve

aryreemmates-and-caliContact Engineering for thea HEPA filter for the current room, until a

negative pressure room is available.. Keep the door closed and post the Airborne

Precautions sign. Staff wear N95 particulate respirators and visitors wear surgical masks when

entering this room. Please note: The patient must be placed in an AlR room within 5 hours

of identification.

Cohorting TB patients:

a. Patients with TB must not be placed together in the same room unless they have

culture- confirmed TB, have drug susceptibility test available on current specimens obtained

during the present hospitalization, have identical drug susceptibility patterns on these
specimens and are on effective therapy.

Reporting:

a. The Unit Secretary notifies Engineering (by placing a worker order) that an Airborne
Precautions room is in use for tuberculosis.

b. On weekends and holidays, the sharge-rurse-orthe-primansnurseCase Manager will
notify the County Public Health TB Control Publis-Health-Nurse by calling esl-phone
number (619) 540-0194. Go
to http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/documents/TB-

67



Infection Control

Asrosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy

Page 6 of 15

216TBSuspectCaseReport.pdf for a copy of the report.

C. Laboratory Results: Hospitals and staff are required by law to report TB to protect the
public. This must be done within one day of identification of the case or suspected case.
d. The Microbiology department will notify the nursing unit and the Infection Preventionist of

a positive AFB smear or culture results. A fax report of all positive AFB smears and
cultures isare sent to the Public Health TB Control.

e. The Infection Preventionist (x-7440-e x 5696) or designee is responsible for reporting to
public health. County Public Health TBTuberculesis-{FB)}-RPprogram Mnurses are
available 8:00am to 5:00pm, 7 days a week and all holidays erat
(619) 540-0194. TB eControl does not have personnel available between the hours of
5:00 pm and 8:00 am. Persons with routine questions erguestions about TB exposure
should call phere-number (619) 632-8610 after 8:00am on the following day.

f. § To report a case of TB after 5:00pm sheuld do one of the following:

i. Call pager (619) 540-0194 after 8:00 am the following day to report directly to TB
Control RN if they feel there is urgency about reporting; or

i Leave a message on the FubereulesisTB Contro! RN voice mail (619) 692-8610
and their calt will be returned on the next working week day. Message should
include patient's name, date of birth, facility name, reporter's name and phone
number, and contact person at facility who will be available for more patient

information.
g. Persons requesting Discharge Approval should:
i Contact TB Control RN between 8:00am and 5:00pm
h. Physicians from emergency rooms requesting recommendations regarding patients they

suspect may be infectious after 5:00pm, should do the following:

i. If patient is homeless or from congregate setting (SNF, school dormitory, etc.)
and has clinical picture consistent with TB, we recommend to admit and rule out
infectiousness.

i. If patient has a home and is otherwise medically stable (not in need of
admission) patient can be sent home, obtain one sputum for AFB smear and
culture prior to release, start on medication if indicated. Direct caller to contact
TB Control RN on phone number (619) 692-8610 after 8:00am on the following
day.

i. Persons calling about patients who are leaving against medical advice (AMA):

i. Have facility get as much locating information as possible on patient {including
address/phone of relatives or friends)

ii. Call intake RN between 8:00am and 5:00pm; after hours call 8:00am the next
day

Staff (fit-tested and approved for use) will wear an N95 respirator when entering the patient’s
room. See the Respiratory Protection Program under the Employee Health & Wellness Policy
Manual.

Pediatric patients with suspected or confirmed TB must be evaluated for potential TB according
to the same criteria, as adults. Parents and other visitors of pediatric patients must be evaluated
for TB as soon as possible. Until they are evaluated, they must wear surgical masks when in
areas of the facility outside of the child's room.

Diagnostic and treatment procedures must be performed in the Airborne Precautions rooms to
prevent transporting to other areas of the facility, If the procedure cannot be done in the
isolation room, the patient must wear a surgical mask during transport. Procedures should be
scheduled at times when they can be performed rapidily and when the areas are less crowded.
Limit the number of persons entering an isolation room to a minimum. All visitors {except staff
who have been fit-tested for an N95 respiratory) wear a surgical mask when entering an
Airborne Precautions room.

Facilities will verify airflow rates and negative pressures at the time the negative pressure room
is established. Negative pressures will be verified daily and a log maintained by Facilities

68



Infection Control

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculesis Control Plan Policy

Page 7 of 15

10.

11.

12.

13.

1.

department.

Cough-inducing procedures will not be performed on patients who have or may have active
Tuberculosis unless the procedures are absolutely necessary and can be performed with
appropriate precautions.

a.
b.

The patient is in an Airborne Precautions room.
The portable air filtration system has been set-up in a regular room.

Staff must wear respiratory protection (N95 respiratory or Powered Air Purifying Respirator-
PAPR) when present in rooms or enclosures in which cough-inducing procedures are being
performed on patients who are being ruled out for Tuberculosis. See High Hazard Procedures.
After completion of the cough-inducing procedures, patients who may have infectious
Tuberculosis will remain in the Airborne Precautions room until the coughing subsides. (If
transport is necessary, patient will be provided with a surgical mask to wear.) Outpatients will
wear surgical masks until they are outside of the hospital.

Before the Pulmonary Function Testing room is used again, after the booth has been in use, the
HEPA filter is kept on and the door to the room closed for 1.5 hours. Staff entering the room
before the 1.5 hours are over will wear an N85 respirator. See High Hazard Procedures.
Bronchoscopy considerations

a.

The bronchoscopy room for all inpatient and outpatient procedures will be a negative
pressure room. The air filtration system will remain in use whenever performed on a
suspect TB patient. Respiratory protection must be worn. An N95 Respirator or Powered
Air Purifying Respirator-PAPR must be worn by staff performing a Bronchoscopy on a
suspect TB patient. The patient waiting for bronchoscopy will be provided a surgical
mask and escorted to a non-communal waiting room.

ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR SELECTED AREAS:

Surgery/Peri-Anesthesia Nursing Services

a.
b.

c.

Postpone non-urgent or elective procedures on suspected/confirmed TB patients untit
the patient is no longer infectious.

If procedures must be performed, they should be done in OR rooms with door closed
and traffic at a minimum.

Procedures should be done when other patients are not present in the operating suite
e.g., end of day) and when minimum number of personnel are present. This applies to
pulmonary and non-pulmonary surgical sites.

Utilize the portable HEPA unit in the operating room during intubation and extubation.
Turn off the HEPA unit during the procedure.

For patients with known or suspected airborne infectious diseases staff must wear a N95
Respirator or Positive Air Purifying Respirator (PAPR). Order PAPRs from SPD (xt 7728)
i. PAPRs cannot be used near the sterile field, wear N95 mask in place of PAPR.
For additional information see Surgery Protocol for Active/Rule Out Tuberculosis (TB).
Airborne Precautions are maintained in the Post Anesthesia Care Unit. Post-operative
patients are placed in a private recovery room with a portable HEPA unit.

69



Infection Control

Aerasol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy
Page 8 of 15

J.

K.

3-2.

Home Health Services

a.
b.

C.

Staff entering the home of a patient with confirmed or suspected TB or ATD should wear
appropriate respiratory protection.

The patient should be taught to cover mouth and nose with a tissue when coughing or
sneezing.

Educate patient regarding importance of taking medication (and administering directly
observed therapy).

Immunocompromised persons or young children living in home with TB patient should
be temporarily relocated until patient is no longer infectious.

Cough-inducing procedures should be performed on patients with infectious tuberculosis
only if absolutely necessary. If their performance is required a well-ventilated area away
from other household members should be used (for example, go outside or open a
window). Staff will wear respiratory protection during the procedure

Specific processes and procedures pertaining to ATDs in the home are found in the
Home Health Care policy manual.

DIAGNOSTIC EVALUATION:
Diagnostic evaluation should include the following:

1.

a.

g.
h.

Medical history and evaluation - The probability of TB is greater among patients who
have positive PPD test results or a history of positive PPD results, who have previously
had TB or who have been exposed to someone with TB, or who belong to a group at
high risk for TB.

Mantoux skin test (PPD skin test) - is placed by the specially trained staff and read at
48- 72 hours after injection. Results are to be documented in the Medical Record.
QuantiFERON-TB Gold (QFT-G) test can be used in any situation a Mantoux PPD skin
test is indicated. A positive result has the same significance as a positive PPD skin test,
and neither a positive PPD nor a positive QFT-G by itself warrants Airborne Precautions.
Chest radiograph - radiographic abnormalities that strongly suggest active TB include
upper lobe infiltrates, particularly if the cavitations are seen, and patchy or nodular
infiltrates in the apical or sub apicai posterior upper lobes or the superior segment of the
lower lobe. The MD may include the words “cavitary lesion”, “granuloma disease” or
“suspected tuberculosis” in the results.

Microscopic examination and culture of sputum or other appropriate specimen. Three
sputum specimens should be collected 8-24 hours apart, and at least one should be an
early morning specimen, induced, or bronchoalveolar lavage (BAL).Although direct AFB
smears are available in house, concentrated smears performed by our reference
laboratory are preferred and are included with orders for a TB culture. Since neither a
direct nor a concentrated smear has sufficient sensitivity to exclude a diagnosis of
tuberculosis, cultures must also be ordered.

Initiating Treatment: Patients who have confirmed active TB or who are considered
highly likely to have active TB should be started promptly on appropriate treatment in
accordance with the current guidelines.

Drug susceptibility should be performed on all initial isolates from patients with TB,
Contact Infection Prevention at Ext. 5696 er7410 for the latest recommendations.

AIRBORNE PRECAUTIONS:
Airborne Precautions can be discontinued as soon as the diagnosis of TB has been ruled out,
when another diagnosis is confirmed, or when the patient is no longer infectious.

1.

a.

Airborne Precautions can be discontinued:

i. In a patient with active tuberculosis when the patient is on effective therapy,
improving clinically, and has had three consecutive negative concentrate sputum
AFB smears

ii. In a patient with suspect tuberculosis as soon as the diagnosis of TB has been
excluded by three negative AFB sputum smears taken 8-24 hours apart with at

70



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy

Page 9 of 15
least one from an early morning specimen, induced specimen, or BAL or when
ancther diagnosis is confirmed
2. Continued isolation throughout the hospitalization should be considered for patients who have
multi-drug resistant tuberculosis (MDR-TB) because of the tendency for treatment failure or
relapse.

L. DISCHARGE:
1. Before leaving the hospital, TB patients must be approved for discharge by the Public Health
Department. A discharge plan must include all of the following prior to approval from the TB
Control Ofﬁcer TB Control can be contacted at: 619-692-8610 or 619-540-0194, Fhe

a. Patients in the Progresswe Care Unlt (PCU): Specrf‘ c notlﬁcatlon(s) must be obtained
prior to discharging justice involved patients:

i. The Department of Health TB Control to the specific county in which the justice
involved patient is residing.

if. The Public Health Department of the prison.

b. For all other inpatient units:

i. Three consecutive negative sputum smears from concentrate or approved living
arrangements so that TB isolation can be maintained. For example, the
accepting facility has an airborne precautions room available or the house and
household contacts have been evaluated and cleared by the TB County public
health nurse.

. A confirmed outpatient appointment (date/time/place) with a provider (name and
phone number) who will manage the patient’s care until cured.

ii. Sufficient medication to take until the outpatient appointment. Contact Pharmacy
for assistance with take-home medications.

iv. Placement into case management (e.g. DOT) or outreach programs of the public
health department.
v. The charge nurse, patients nurse or Case Manager, will notify the Public Health

TB Control Department at (619) 692-8610 prior to the anticipated discharge and
obtain approval.

vi. Public Health requires at least two days prior to discharge to review the case. On
weekends and holidays, obtain approval from the on-call TB County public health
nurse at cell phone number (619) 540-0194

2. Cleaning of the room after a known or suspected TB patient is moved or discharged:
a. If the suspected or confirmed TB patient was NOT in a negative pressure and HEPA
filtered room:;

i Post the Airborne Precautions sign and keep the door ciosed.

ii. Call Engineering for a HEPA filter. To enter the room staff must wear an
appropriate respirator {(i.e. N95 or PAPR). Plug in the filter, turn it on and close
the door. Post a sign that specifies the appropriate time period from the table
below. Staff may enter the room during this time (i.e. to clean) but must wear an
NS5 respirator until the time period has elapsed. After the time period has ended,
discontinue Airborne Precautions and return the HEPA filter to Engineering.

M. ROOM SHUT DOWN TIME:

1. Keep the Airborne Precautions sign posted

2. Leave the HEPA filter running with door closed for specified time. Post a sign that specifies this
time period.
a. AlIR Negative Pressure Room

Length of Time AlIR Negative

AlIR/Negative Pressure Rooms Pressure Room is Closed

1



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Cantrol Plan Policy

Page 10 of 15
ED-C26, 143, 243, 443, 287, 387, 487, NICU 30 min
Bronchoscopy, 200, 201 1 hour
PCU 301,312,326 2 hrs
b. Non-Negative Pressure room
Location in Non-Negative Pressure Length of Time Non-Negative
Rooms Pressure Room is Closed
Surgery 30 min
AN/S, MCH, Pavillion, East/West Tower,
Radiclogy/MRI/CT, ED 1 hour
PCU 3N/5 2 hours
3. Staff may enter the room during this time (i.e. to clean) but must wear an N95 respirator until the
time period has elapsed.
4, After the time period has ended, discontinue Airborne Precautions.
5. If the patient is no longer infectious or TB has been ruled out: No special precautions needed.

The door may be immediately opened and the room cleaned as usual.

N. ANNUAL TUBERCULOSIS SCREENING:

1. Auxiliary and Employees: See the Employee Health & Wellness Policy Manual: TB Surveillance
and Respiratory Protgction policies.
2, Physicians: the Medical Staff Office sends an annual screening survey to each physician on

staff. PPD testing for physicians is required and available in Work Partrers. It is highly
recommended that all active medical staff be fit-tested upon hire and annually.

0. AEROSOL TRANSMISSIBLE DISEASE CONTROL EXPOSURE DETERMINATION:
1. A list of all job classifications in which employees have occupational exposure is available in the
Employee Health & Wellness Policy Manual: Respiratory Protection Program (see Appendix C).

P. ISOLATION PRECAUTIONS:
1. Standard Precautions and Transmission based precautions including cough etiquette, Airborne
Precautions, Droplet Precautions and Contact Precautions are outlined in the Infection Control
Manual: Standard and Transmission based Precautions (IC.5), Type and Duration of
Precautions for Selected Infections and Conditions (IC.5.1); Pregnant staff (IC.5.2).

Q. HIGH HAZARD PROCEDURES:
1. High hazard procedures include but not limited to

a. Intubation and Extubation
b. Sputum Induction
C. Endotracheal & Tracheostomy Tube Care
d. Bronchoscopy
e. Pulmonary Function Tests
f. Aerosolized administration of pentamidine or other medication
g. Autopsy
2. For patients with known or suspected Droplet infectious diseases staff must wear an N95
respirator.
3. For patients with known or suspected airborne infectious diseases staff must wear a N95

Respirator or Positive Air Purifying Respirator (PAPR) except in an operating room or procedure
room during an invasive procedure where there is a sterile field wear a N95 mask.

a. Contact Materials forOrder PAPRs supplies{from-SRD-(x7728)
4, Although Cal OSHA requires PAPRs far high hazard procedures on suspect/confirmed airborne

72



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Paolicy
Page 11 of 15

disease patients, CDPH does allow the use of N95 Respirators instead of PAPRS if it interferes
with the successful performance of the task or the procedure is performed with the patient in a
ventilated enclosure.

R. SOURCE CONTROLS AND ENGINEERING CONTROLS IN SPECIFIC HOSPITAL AREAS:

1. Throughout the facility cough etiquette is used in waiting areas. Signs with instructions are
posted in these areas in Spanish and English. Patients are provided tissues and are asked to
wear surgical masks to prevent droplets from disseminating into the environment. Alcohol hand
hygiene solutions are made available for patient use. Bilingual signs are posted in waiting areas
instructing patients to “Cover your cough.”

2. Emergency Department
a. Engineering Controls during a surge of patients with ATD is addressed in the TCHD

Infection Control Policy IC15.0 Influx of Infectious Patients: Epidemic Influenza or other
respiratory transmitted disease.

b. At the point of triage, ED staff shall screen and identify patients with symptoms of ATD
and implement source control by placing a surgical mask on the patient and asking the
patient to keep the mask on during their visit. If the patient cannot tolerate a surgical
mask, tissues shail be provided and patients shall be instructed to cover their cough.

C. Staff wears PAPRs or N95 Respirator during high hazard procedures (listed above) for
disease spread by the airborne route.

d. N95 respirators or PAPRs are used during patient contact for diseases spread by
airberne route.

e. Surgical masks are used during patient contact for diseases spread by the droplet route.

N95 mask is used by staff during high hazard procedures for disease spread by the
droplet route.

f. Patients with diseases known to be transmitted by the airborne route, including novel
viral infections, will be prioritized for AllR C-26.

g. When room C-26 is not available a private room is used.

h. When there are no private rooms available, patients are asked to keep their mask in

place and use tissues to prevent droplet aerasolization.
Patients may be cohorted in designated rooms or bays when indicated.
Patients suspected of having ATDs are provided with disposable nebulizer units with
expiratory filters or multi-dose inhalers as clinically indicated.
There are no special environmental cleaning recommendations for TB or rio TB patients.
Rooms shall be cleaned between patients using the hospital approved disinfectant.
When used for a patient with ATD, room C-26 shall remain empty with Airborne
Precautions sign posted and door closed for 30 minutes prior to being used by another
patient.
3. Nursing Units

a. Patients who are admitted with airborne transmissible diseases are admitted to AlIRs on

nursing units.

b. Airborne Precautions are initiated and followed in accordance with CDC

sion Based Precautions. AFB-quicklock-is-pested

—Talila - g-aRa-EH BRI O R Ean

—_—

33—~

sirlows

Doors are kept closed.

Patients in Droplet precautions do not need AllRs for routine care. However, high hazard
and cough inducing procedures performed as part of the clinical care of patients in both
Airborne and Droplet Precautions will be done in AlIR. See chart above for selection on

a0

fe.  AlIRs shall remain empty with Airborne Precautions sign posted and door élosed for
designated time when a patient with airborne transmissible disease has occupied the
room. (See Room Shut Down Time )

73



Infection Control

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Conirol Pian Policy

Page 12 of 15

4.

Pulmonary Services

a.

b.
C.

e.

f.

Bronchoscopy for patients in Airborne or Droplet Precautions wilt be performed in an
AllIR.

N95 respirators or PAPRs are used during Bronchoscopy.

In areas where AlIR is not available, aerosolized medications are administered using
disposable nebulizer units with expiratory filters or multi-dose inhalers as clinically
indicated.

Aerosolized medications may be administered using traditional routes while the patient is
in an AlIR. The staff should wear an N95 or PAPR during this treatment (see High
Hazard Procedures).

Bronchoscopy suite will remain closed for the designated time when procedure is
performed on a patient with known or suspected ATD.

Expiratory filters are used for intubated patients with known or suspected ATD during
transport.

Women and NewbornMatermal-Child-Health Services (WNSMCH)

a.

Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)

i. The NICU has a dedicated AlIR.

. Neonates born to mothers with diseases known to be spread by airborne route
are placed in the AlIR until the neonate is found to be non-infectious.

i, Prior to entering the unit, visitors are screened for signs of ADT and
immunization history. Visitors are asked not to visit for duration of iliness.

Labor and Delivery-and-Materral-Child-Health ’

i. Operating Room Suiteskaberrooms may have portable HEPA units installed
for mothers who have suspected ATD.

ii. Staff are to follow Standard and Transmission based Precautions as indicated

using the appropriate N-95 respirators or PAPRs for Airborne Precautions.

=Ta - ot 1o =l mta wTal J=Va

Laboratory Services

a.

b.

Methods of implementation for ATD exposure control in are found in the Laboratory
Medicine Biosafety Plan.

For respiratory protection in Laboratory Services: See Employee Health & Wellness
Policy: Respiratory Protection Program Policy

Facilities Management Staff

d.

b.

Facilities Management staff will wear N-95 respirators when entering an AlIR housing
patient(s) with known or suspected ATD.

NS5 respirators are required when repairing, replacing, or maintaining air systems or
equipment that may contain or generate aerosolized pathogens. -

Personal Protective Equipment

a.

The respiratory protection program policy (Employee Health and Wellness Manual)
describes requirements of PPE used for ATD protection in accordance with
29CFR1910.134 and CCR Title 8, section 5144.

Respiratory Protection including N95 respirators or PAPRs is required in any hospital

location in the following circumstances:

i. Entering an Airborne Precaution Room that is occupied or has been recently
occupied {refer to Section M: Room Shutdown Time) by a patient with suspected
or known Airborne transmitted ATD.

ii. Attending high hazard procedure

Respirator Shortages

i. In the event of reported shortages of N85 respirators the following is
recommended (notification received from supplier but still able to meet historic
usage):

1) TCHD wili maintain a cache of N95 respirators in accordance with the
disaster plan,
2) Materials Distribution staff will perform in-house inventory to determine

74



Infection Contro!

Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Contro! Plan Policy

Page 13 of 15

available stock and develop a timeline for inventory depletion.

3) According to available stock, N95 respirators will be prioritized for
distribution to areas ises, ;
Beparment-for-use-inwhere high hazard procedures are performed.

4) Re-use of N95 respirators is acceptable for known or suspected
Tuberculosis patients over a 12 hour shift unless the respirator is
contaminated (e.g. visibly soiled) or the integrity of the respirator is
disrupted (e.g. torn, cracked nose piece).

5) Reuse of N95 respirators is acceptable during the care of patients with
other ATD's under the following circumstances:

a) A protective face shield (no surgical mask) is donned over the
respirator to protect the respirator from contamination of ATD.

b) The respirator integrity remains intact

c) During the care of intubated and ventilated patients (closed circuit
suction systems).

In severe respirator shortages (less than 30 days of stock avaitable in house,

when supplier cannot meet the demand or can only supply an alternative N95)

the following steps may be considered:

1) Prioritize available N95 for high hazard procedures.

2) Provide surgical grade masks for employees who are not provided a
respirator due to the implementation of prioritized respirator use.

3) Contact Local Public Health Officer for possible acquisition of N95
respirators from local or state stockpiles.

4) Alternate manufacturer's respirators may be used in cases of tuberculosis
and other airborne illnesses. Fit testing will be waived in a declared state
of emergency.

5) Except during high hazard procedures, surgical masks may be used for

H1N1 influenza.

6) PAPRs may be used.

7) The Infection Control Officer, Infection Preventionist, and the Safety
Officer will determine if Internal Disaster Code Orange is warranted based
on patient surge, physical and staffing resources.

8) When there is no option for providing N95 respirators, surgical masks will
be provided to the employee.

Positive Air Purifying Respirators (PAPRs)

1) PAPRs used for bronchoscopy are maintained in Respiratory Care
Department.

2) SPD stores and maintains all other PAPRs.

3) Units are cleaned; disinfected using a hospital approved disinfectant and
tested after each use.

4} Disposable hoods are used.

9. Admissions and transfers of patients with known or suspected airborne transmissible ATD:
Airborne transmissible ATD suspect cases shall be identified, and the individuals shall
be given disposable tissues, hand hygiene materials and the patient will be masked until
an AllR is available. Transfer to an AlIR shall be facilitated within five (5) hours of
identification.

If an AlIR is not available, patients shall be transferred to a facility with AIIR availability,
If the physician determines that transfer to another facility AllIR would be detrimental to
the patient’s condition the patient need not be transferred. In this case, employees will
use N5 respirators when entering the room or area housing the individual. The patient's
condition will be reassessed every 24 hours to determine if transfer is safe and the
determination shall be documented.

10. Influenza Season

From November 1 to March 31, all employees, volunteers, contract workers or others
covered under the ATD standard must wear a standard surgical mask while on duty in

a.

a.

75



Infection Control
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Palicy
Page 14 of 15

the-hospital as directed by the facility. This requirement does not apply to anyone who
nas received the current influenza vaccine as recommended by the County of San Diego
Public Health and Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

b. The enforcement dates are subject to change based on the recommendations of the
hospital's infection Control Committee.
c. Non-compliance with this requirement is subject to discipline as outlined in the hospital's

Human Resources policy.

8. MEDICAL SERVICES:
1. Vaccinations are offered to employees free of charge (Employee Health and Wellness Manual:
Immunization Policy).
2, Medical Services shall be provided to employees who have occupationai exposure to ATDs.
3. Medical Services may include vaccinations, tests, examinations, evaluations, determinations,
procedures and medical management and follow-up.
4 Medical Services shall be conducted in accordance with EHS policies.

T. TRAINING:

1. Training is provided during the New Employee Orientation Process and annually through
computer based education modules.

2, Opportunity is provided for questions to be answered by an infection control professional.

3. Respirator Fit testing
a. Medical screening and training is performed in accordance with Employee Health and

Wellness Manual: Respiratory Protection Program.

u. REVIEW SCHEDULE:
1. The ATD plan will'be reviewed annually by the Infection Control Committee.
2. Employees will assess the effectiveness of the program in their respective areas annually during
the Annual Work Survey and deficiencies will be corrected

V. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Active/Rule Out Tubercuiosis (TB) Surgery Protocol

2 Criteria for Infectiousness and Placement In High Risk Setting Table (PCU Unit Only)
3 Employee Health and Wellness Policy: Immunization

4 Employee Health and Wellness Policy: Respiratory Protection

5. Infection Control Policy: Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan

6. Infection Control Policy: Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak

7 Infection Control Policy: Healthcare Associated Infections, Defined

8 Infection Control Policy: Standard and Transmission-Based Precautions

9. Type and Duration of Precautions - Disease Specific

8-10. Infection Control Policy: Ebola Plan

w. REFERENCE(S):

1. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention, Guidelines for Preventing the Transmission of
Mycobacterium Tuberculosis In Health Care Settings, 2005. MMWR 2005; 54 (No RR-1 7). .

2. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention, Guideline for Environmental Infection Control in
Health Care Facilities, 2003 (last updated 02/15/2017)

3. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention H1N1 guidance, Seasonal Influenza and vaccine

Guidance https://www.cdc.qov/flu/professionals/iindex.htm, Accessed 2/14/19

4. California Department of Public Health, Occupational Health Branch. (2015, August). Respirator
Selection Guide for Aerosol Transmissible
Disease. https.//www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCODPHP/DEQDC/OHB/CDPHY20Document%20

Library/HCResp-ATD-RespSelectGuide.pdf Accassed-2{14/18

5. CDPH Ebola Virus Disease for Healthcare
Professionals httgs:waw.cdQh.ca.govIProgramsICIDIDCDCIPagesIEboIaHealthProfessi




nfection Contral
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Policy
Page 150f 15

onals.aspx

7. Respiratory Hygiene/Cough Etiquette in Healthcare
Settings www.cdc.qov/flu/professionals/infectioncontroliresphygiene.htm Aecessed-2/44/10

078-pdf-Ascessed 2/14419

8:8. CDPH: Cal-OSHA Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Standard, Title 8 CCR Section 5199 August
5, 2009 https.//www.cdph.ca.qov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEQDC/OHB/Pages/ATDStd. aspx
Aesesead-2A4049

40-9. CDC: Tuberculin Skin Testing for TB dated May 11,
20186. hitps://www.cde.govitb/publications/factsheets/testing/skintesting.htm Acsessed-2/44/48

44-10. Cadena, J. (2014) Tuberculosis and other Mycobacteria. In P. Grota (Ed.), APIC Text of
Infection Control and Epidemiology 4" Ed., 95:1-20.

4+2-11. Hospital Respiratory Protection Program Toolkit: U.S. Dept of Labor/CDC/OSHA/NIOSH. Dated
May 2015. https://www.osha.gov/Publications/OSHA3767.pdf Accessed-2/14/18

43-12. CDPH/CTCA: California AdultTuberculosis Risk Assessment: September 2018 Adults-June
2047 https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20Library/TBCB-
CA-TB-Risk-Assessment-and-Fact-Sheet.pdf Accessed-2/14/10

4+4:13. CDPH Respirator Toolkit August 2015 (CDC, OSHA, NIOSH May 2015) page

16 httgs:llwww.cdgh.ca.golerogramsICCDPHPIDEODCIOHBICDPH%ZDDocument%20Libram
{HCResp-CARPPGuide.pdf Accessed-2444/40




ACTIVE/RULE OUT TUBERCULOSIS (TB)

Surgery Protocol

ADMINISTRATIVE
CONTROLS

ENVIRONMENTAL
CONTROLS

RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION

» Postpone non-urgent
procedures on
suspected/confirmed 7B
patients until known to be
non-infectious.

» If necessary to proceed,
schedule procedure as last
case of the day, at low
traffic times, whenever
possible.

WHEN THE CASE IS SCHEDULED
NOTIFY:
* Infection Control-
(Lisa Mattia x5696)

¢ POH (x5452)

» PACU (x7264)

e Engineering (x7148) of
date/time of procedure 10
set up HEPA filters in OR and
PACU

* Anesthesia Charge to assure
anesthesiologist has been fit
tested and knows N95 size

« Notify SPD to have five (5)
PAPR units available

» Notify pathology lab if TB
specimens will be sent to lab.

DAY BEFORE PROCEDURE, IF
POSSIBLE:

Assign staff and assure fit testing
is completed and individuals
know their N85 mask size.

DAY OF SURGERY:

¢ Obtain 3 Airborne Precaution
Signs

e Obtain five PAPR Units or N95

e Prior to transporting the
patient to the OR, send OR
RN to the patient's unit to
pre-op patient and
complete handoff report.

PRE-OP:

» Admit patient directly to the
OR from the floor/unit. Do
not stop in POH.

OR:

» Notify Engineering (x7148) to
place portable HEPA unit in
OR, positioned near the
patient’s head.

« Utilize the portable HEPA unit
in the OR during intubation
and extubation. Turn the unit
OFF during the procedure.

* Keep OR doors closed,
minimize traffic in/out of room
and in surrounding areas.

« Display Airborne Precautions
signs on all doors to OR.

« Close all doors after leaving
the OR and keep room
vacant with HEPA filter
running for ONE (1) HOUR
after patient leaves room,
then perform normal room
turnover.

= Notify Engineering (x7148) to
remove HEPA unit.

POST-OP:

* Notify Engineering (x7148) to
place portable HEPA unit in
PACU cubicle.

» Post Airborne Precautions
signs on cubicle door.

» Place patient in cubicle post-
Op and keep cubicle door
closed.

¢ Close cubicle door after
patient leaves and keep
room vacant with HEPA filter
running for ONE (1) HOUR,
then perform normal room
turnover.

* Notify Engineering (x7148) to
remove HEPA unit.

PATIENT:

» Provide surgical mask for
patient during transport.

* Intubated patients:
Anesthesiologist to place
expiratory filter (from
Anesthesia Workroom) on the
ambu bag (at PEEP vaive)
during transport.

HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS:

* N95 Respirator or Powered Air
Purifying Respirator (PAPR)
required during intubation
and extubation for the
anesthesiologist and anyone
assisting anesthesia at the
head of the table. Order
PAPR's from SPD (x7728).

e PAPR's are not to be used
near the sterite field.

e Once the patient is
intubated, all staff should
wear N95 mask until the
procedure is complete.

Fit testing for N95 mask must
be completed each year.
Healthcare providers who
failed fit testing may not be
scheduled in a sterile
procedure with Airborne
Precautions.

Revision 09/18, 08/19

Infection Control Policy: Aeroscl Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan

Page 10of 1

78



Criteria for Infectiousness and Placement In High Risk Setting Table (PCU Unit Only)

CATEGORY SETTING CRITERIA
TB suspect PCU 3 consecutive respiratory specimens, including
- Not on treatment for suspect one early AM or induced sputum, or BAL,
active TB collected at least § hours apart, are AFB smear
negative
TB case or suspect on PCU 1. 3 consecutive respiratory specimens,
treatment for active TB including one early AM or induced sputum,
-AFB smear positive or BAL, collected at least 8 hours apart, are
-No risk factor for MDR-TB AFB smear negative
2. Atleast 14 daily doses of treatment for TB,
preferably by directly observed therapy
(DOT), taken and tolerated; and
3. Clinical improvement
TB case or suspect on PCU At least 5 daily doses of freatment for TB taken
treatment for TB and tolerated
-AFB smear negative X3
-No risk factor for MDR-TB
TB case or suspect on PCU 1. Obtain direct genetic test, if available, for
treatment for TB Rifampin resistance
-Atincreased risk for MDR-TB 2. If direct genetic test not available, while
phenotypic DST for Rifampin is pending,
other criteria for patients with known MDR-
TB, or criteria for patients not at increased
risk of MDR-TB, ar criteria for patients not at
increased risk of MRD-T8 may be applied,
at the discretion of the local TB controller
Known MDR-TB case PCU 1. 3 consecutive respiratory specimens,

including one early AM or induced sputum,
or BAL, collected at least 8 hours apart, are
AFB smear negative

2. Atleast 14 daily doses of treatment for TB,
preferably by directly observed therapy
(DOT), taken and tolerated; and

3. Clinical improvement

4. At least 2 consecutive negative
sputum cultures without a subsequent
positive culture

Reference: COPH/CTCA (2005). Guidelines for the assessment of tuberculosis patient

infectiousness and placement in high and low risk settings. California Department of Public Health

and California Tuberculosis Controllers Association.

Revisions: 09/18, 08/19

Infection Control Policy: Aercsol Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan

Page 1 of 2

79



Criteria for Infectiousness and Placement In High Risk Setting Table (PCU Unit Only)

Patient has signs and symptoms or chest x-ray compatible with TB

AND AND
Unstable housing or resident in a group setting Stable, non-group housing
OR AND
Acutely ill or needing invasive diagnostic or Not acutely ill or needing invasive diagnostic or
therapeutic procedure therapeutic procedure
, I
Admit to Medicine and place on Discharge the patient with a written plan for
outpatient care & surgical masks to wear

AND
Instruct the patient to remain on home isolation’
until infectiousness is ruled out
For assistance AND

Airborne Precautions

Alert the TB Control Program ASAP, but no
longer than 24 hours.

'Home isofation: Stay alone in a separate room with the door closed, as much as possible. Keep a window
slightly open at all times. When alone in this room, you do not need to wear a mask. Please be sure to sleep
and eat while alone in this room. Persons entering this room need to wear a mask. If you leave the room, you
need to wear a mask. For example, when you use a shared bathroom or go to the doctor’s office wear a mask.

TB Control in San Diego County is avaitable 7 days a week from 0800 to 1700 only. Weekdays call TB
Control at (619) 692-8610 and on Weekends and holidays call cell phore number (619) 540-0194 OR
Leave a message on the Tuberculosis RN voice mail (619) 692-8610 and your call will be returned on the
next working week day. Messages should include patient's name, date of birth, facility name, reporter's
name and phone number, and contact person at facility who will be available for more patient information.
Also leave a message at TCHD Infection Control: call ext. Z448-e¢5696

Revisions: 09/18, 08/19
Infection Control Policy: Aeroscl Transmissible Diseases and Tuberculosis Control Plan Page 2 of 2

80



(@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Infection Control

ISSUE DATE: 10/07 SUBJECT: Mold Abatement
STANDARD NUMBER: IC. 13.3
REVISED DATE(S): 08/14, 08/17

Department Approval: 06/1705/20
Infection Control Committee Approval: 0F4705/20
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04H1708/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 084+ nia
Board of Directors Approval: 0817

A INTRODUCTION:
1. Molds and fungi can be found anywhere inside or outside throughout the year. About 1000
species of mold can be found in the United States with more than 100,000 known species

like-sheese-and-penieillin—without-meld- When excessive moisture or water accumulates
indoors, mold growth often will occur, particularly if the moisture problem remains uncorrected.
While it is impossible to eliminate all molds and mold spores, controlling moisture can control
indoor mold growth. Moisture control is the key to mold control. When water leaks or spills occur
indoors - act promptly. Any initial water infiltration should be stopped and cleaned promptly. A
prompt response (within 24-48 hours) and thorough clean- up, drying, and/or removal of water-
damaged materials will prevent or limit mold growth.

2. Delayed or insufficient maintenance may contribute to moisture problems in buildings. Molds
may cause localized skin or mucosal infections but, in general, do not cause systemic infections
in humans, except for persons with impaired immunity, AIDS, uncontrolled diabetes, or those
taking immune suppressive drugs.

o lo -
L el ==

B. PURPOSE:

1. The purpose of mold remediation is to correct the moisture problem and to remove moldy and
contaminated materials to prevent human exposure and further damage to building materials
and furnishings. Porous materials that are wet and have mold growing on them may have to be
discarded because molds can infiltrate porous substances and grow on or fill in empty spaces or
crevices.

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Infection Preventionist and-Envirenment-of-GareSafety Officer and Manager of Facilities will:
a. Provide consultation during water damage remediation and mold abatement.
b. Inspect abatement areas for compliance with recommended practices.
c. Review indication for environmental cultures or volumetric air sampling.
2. Facility Engineering staff will:
a. Participate in training process for mold remediation activities and construction barrier

containment.

Follow remediation precautions as outlined in this plan.

Notify Infection Preventionist and Safety Officer about water intrusion and remediation.
Follow procedure for containment found in Infection Control Construction Permit: ICRA
Coordinate the remediation of the mold by trained staff,

pooo

81



infection Control

Mold Abatement - IC.13

Page 2 of 5

f.

g.

Wear the appropriate PPE during remediation.
Assess the extent of mold contamination for appropriate remediation activity level.

3. Mold Remediation/Cleanup Methods

a.

A variety of cleanup methods are available for remediating damage to building materials
and furnishings caused by moisture control problems and mold growth. The specific
method or group of methods used will depend on the type of material affected. Water
damaged areas should be dried within 48-72 hours of water exposure. It is
recommended that dehumidifiers be used for this purpose because fans can cause
aerosolization of mold spores. Some methods that may be used include the following:
Wet Vacuum - can be used to remove water from floors, carpets, and hard surfaces
where water has accumulated. They should not be used to vacuum parous materials,
such as gypsum board. Wet vacuums should be used only on wet materials, as spores
may be exhausted into the indoor environment if insufficient liquid is present. The tanks,
hoses, and attachments of these vacuums should be thoroughly cleaned and dried after
use since mold and mold spores may adhere to equipment surfaces.

Damp Wipe - Mold can be removed from nonporous surfaces by wiping or scrubbing
with a hospital approved disinfectant. It is important to dry these surfaces quickly and
thoroughly to discourage further mold growth.

HEPA Vacuum - HEPA (High-Efficiency Particulate Air) vacuums are used for final
cleanup of remediation areas after materials have been thoroughly dried and
contaminated materials removed. HEPA vacuums also are used for cleanup of dust that
may have settled on surfaces outside the remediation area. Care is taken to assure that
the filter is properly seated in the vacuum so that all the air passes through the filter.
When changing the vacuum filter, wear N-95 respirators, appropriate personal protective
clothing, gloves, and eye protection to prevent exposure to any captured mold and other
contaminants. The filter and contents of the HEPA vacuum must be disposed of in
impermeable bags or containers in such a way as to prevent release of the debris.
Disposal of Damaged Materials - Building materials and furnishings contaminated with
mold growth that are not salvageable should be placed in sealed impermeable bags or
closed containers while in the remediation area. These materials can usually be
discarded as ordinary construction waste. Large items with heavy mold growth are
covered with polyethylene sheeting and sealed with duct tape before being removed
from the remediation area.

Use of Biocides - The use of a biocide, such as chlorine bleach, is indicated when
immuno-compromised individuals are present. A dilution of 500 ppm is recommended for
this purpose (dilution to attain this concentration is 1 part bleach to 100 parts water).
Containers shall be labeled appropriately and discarded after use. When you use
biocides as a disinfectant or fungicide, always ventilate the area well and apply
appropriate PPE, including respirators.

Never mix chlorine bleach solution with other cleaning solutions or detergents that
contain ammonia because this produces highly toxic vapors and create a hazard to
workers.

4, Mold Remediation Guidelines

a.

Level I: Small Isolated Areas (10 sq. ft or less) - e.g., ceiling tiles, small areas on walls.

i. Instail Infection Control Containment. Containment fevel to be determined by the
infoctien-contralofficerInfection Preventionist and Eengineering supervisor.

i. Trained workers conduct remediation, coordinated and supervised by the
Engineering department. The staff is trained on proper clean-up methods,
personal protection, and potential heaith hazards.

iii. N-85 disposable respirators are used. Gloves and eye protection are worn,

iv. Contaminated materials that cannot be cleaned are removed from the building in
a sealed impermeable plastic bag. These materials are disposed of as ordinary
waste.

V. The work area and egress area are cleaned with a damp cloth or mop and a

hospital approved disinfectant.

82



Infection Conlrol

Mold Abatement -~ 1C.13

Page 3 of 5

d.

vi.
i.

I

vi.

viil.

viii.

¥All areas are left dry and visibly free from contamination and debris.

Level li: Mid-Sized Isolated Areas (10-30 sq. ft.) - e.g., individual wallboard panels.

i Install Infection Control Containment. Containment level to be determined by the
Infection Preventionistinfestiorcontrol-officer and Eengineering supervisor.
Trained workers conduct remediation, coordinated and supervised by the
Engineering department. The staff is trained on proper clean-up methods,
personal protection, and potential health hazards.

N-95 disposable respirators are used. Gloves and eye protection are worn.
Surfaces in the work area that could become contaminated are covered with a
secured plastic sheet(s) before remediation to contain dust/debris and prevent
further contamination.

Dust suppression methods, such as misting (not soaking) surfaces prior to
remediation, are used.

Contaminated materials that cannot be cleaned are removed from the building in
a sealed impermeabie plastic bag. These materials are disposed of as ordinary

waste.

The work area and egress areas are HEPA vacuumed and cleaned with a damp
cloth or mop and a detergent solution.

All areas are left dry and visibly free from contamination and debris.

Level lll: Large Isolated Areas {30 —100 square feet) - e.g., several wallboard panels.
The following procedures may be implemented depending upon the severity of
the contamination:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)
6)

7

8)
9)

10)

Install Infection Control Containment. Containment level to be determined
by the Infection Preventionistinfestion-contrel-officer and Eengineering
supervisor.

Trained workers conduct remediation, coordinated and supervised by the
Engineering department. The staff is trained on proper clean-up methods,
personal protection, and potential health hazards.

N-95 disposable respirators are used. Gloves and eye protection are
waorn.

Surfaces in the work area and areas directly adjacent that could become
contaminated should be covered with a secured plastic sheet(s) before
remediation to contain dust/ debris and prevent further contamination.
Seal ventilation ducts/grills in the work area and areas directly adjacent
with plastic sheeting.

Dust suppression methods, such as misting (not soaking) surfaces prior
to mediation, are used.

Contaminated materials that cannot be cleaned are removed from the
building in sealed impermeable plastic bags. These materials may be
disposed of as ordinary waste.

The work area and surrounding areas should be HEPA vacuumed and
cleaned with a damp cloth or mop and a detergent solution.

All areas should be left dry and visibly free from contamination and
debris.

Note: If abatement procedures are expected to generate a lot of dust
(e.g., abrasive cleaning of contaminated surfaces, demolition of plaster
walls) or the visible concentration of the mold is heavy (blanket coverage
as opposed to patchy), it is recommended that the remediation
procedures for Level IV be followed.

Level IV: Extensive Contamination (greater than 100 contiguous square feet in an area).
Industrial hygienists or other environmental health and safety professionals with
experience performing microbial investigations and/or mold remediation should
be consulted prior to remediation activities to provide oversight for the project.
The following procedures may be implemented depending upon the severity of
the contamination:

83



Infection Contral

Mold Abatement - 1C 13

Page 4 of 5

1) Personnel trained in the handling of hazardous materiais and equipped
with:

a) Full face piece respirators with HEPA cartridges, disposable
protective clothing covering entire body including both head and
shoes and gloves.

2) Containment of the affected area: Complete isolation of work area from
occupied spaces using plastic sheeting and sealed with duct tape
(including ventilation ducts/grills, fixtures, and other openings). The use of
exhaust fan with HEPA fiiter to generate negative pressurization. Airlocks
and decontamination room. _

3) Removal of infants, persons having undergone recent surgery, immune-
suppressed people, or people with chronic lung disease ie: asthma,
hypersensitivity pneumonitis and severe allergies is recommended from
surrounding work areas. All others may not need to be moved if
contaminant practices effectively prevented mold from migrating from
affected area.

4) Contaminated materials that cannot be cleaned should be removed from
the buiiding in sealed impermeable plastic bags. The outside of the bags
should be cleaned with a damp cloth and a detergent solution or HEPA
vacuumed in the decontamination chamber prior to their transport to
uncontaminated areas of the building. These materials may be disposed
of as ordinary waste.

5) The contained area and decontamination room should be HEPA
vacuumed and cleaned with a damp cloth or mopped with a detergent
solution and be visibly clean prior to the removal of isolation barriers.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

a. Gloves are used to protect the skin from contact with mold and disinfecting agents. Long
gloves that extend to the middle of the forearm are recommended.

b. Eye Protection:

To protect your eyes, use properly fitted goggles or a full face piece respirator. Goggles
must be designed to prevent the entry of dust and small particles. Safety glasses or
goggles with open vent holes are not appropriate in mold remediation.

c. Respiratory Protection - N-95 disposable respirators are available for use during Level |
through Level lll remediation procedures. It is recommended that during Level IV
remediation procedures utilize PAPR units.

d. Protective Clothing

e, Disposable PPE should be discarded after it is used. They should be placed into
impermeable bags, and usually can be discarded as ordinary construction waste.

Sampling for Mold - Air sampling is not a necessary part of a routine assessment because

decisions about appropriate remediation strategies often can be made on the basis of a visual

inspection. The Medical Director of Infection Prevention and Control will be consulted when air
sampling is considered.

Moisture Meters - Moisture meters measure/monitor moisture levels in building materials, and

may be helpful for measuring the moisture content in a variety of building materials following

water damage. Moisture content < 20% as determined by moisture meter readings is
considered to be acceptable.

D. REFERENCE(S):

1.

23.

Centers for Disease Contral and Prevention, Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory
Committee (HICPAP)} Guideline for Environmental Infection Control in Healthcare Facilities,
2003.(Updated July 2019)

CDC: Mold https://www.cdc.gov/mold/default.htm {(accessed 5-6-2020)U-S-Deparmentof

- - i¥ifalla - =T 11K a’ aVEnTata

e 5 210

ASHRAE: Position Document on I'.imitin.g Indoor Mold & Dampness in Buildings: June

84



Infection Control
Mold Abatement - I1C.13
Page Sof 5

27,2018

85



)
(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Women and Newborn Services Manual - NICU

PROCEDURE: PERIPHERALLY INSERTED CENTRAL CATHETERS AND MIDLINE CATHETERS,
INSERTION OF 3 3
Purpose: To outline the procedure for the placement of f PELETE — incorporated into WNS
(PICC) in the neonate by a qualified PICC Red NICU Procedure:_PlCC and Midline
Equipment: 1. PICC kit Catheters, Dressing Change,
2. Appropriately sized catheter Maintenance, and Removal of
3. 26-gauge autoguard introducer
4. Mask, cap, sterile gown, and sterile gloves
5. 1:1 heparinized normal saline
6. Transfer set
Issue date: 09/07
A——PROLICY: DELETE

Perinatal
Department Collaborative Pharmacy and Medical Exacutive Administration Professional Board of
Review PracticeDivision-of Therapautics Committes Affairs Committee | Directors
11/09,
06711,
06/03, 06116, 03/20 10116, 03/20 02/17, 05120 03117, 08120 09/20 04/14, 04/17, nia 08112
0a/14

04/17

86



Womaen's and Children's Services, NICU

Peripherally Insered Central Cathaters and Midline Cathalers, Inserion of
Page 2of 3

87



Women's and Children's Services, NICU
Peripherally Inserted Centra! Catheters and Midiine Cathelars, Insarion of
Page 3 of 3

88



(C?J) Tri-City Medical Center Women’s and Children’s Services Manual - NICU
".| PROCEDURE: RERIRHERALLY INSERTED- CENTRAL CATHETERS- AND MIDLINE-CATHETERS:
BRESSING-CHANGE,-MAINTENANCE -AND-REMOVAL OF
Purpose:
resnates: To provide a consistent approach to the insertio ,» Use and management
of central lines in the NICU,
Equipment: See each section for required equipment
A. INSERTION
1. UMBILICAL CATHETERS- Umbilical Artery Catheter (UAC) & Umbilical Venous Catheter
(UVC)
a. EQUIPMENT
i Umbilical catheter tray (check expiration date)
iii. 2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs (for infants greater than or equal to
30wks)
iii. Povidone-lodine swabs (for infants less than 30 weeks)
iv, Limb restraints
V. Umbilical catheter of appropriate size
vi. 0.45% Normal saline with heparin (1 unit/ml)
vii. A mask, hat and sterile gown and gloves for the physician and assistant
viii. Light source
ix. Transparent dressing to secure lines
b. PROCEDURE:
i. Ensure physician has obtained informed consent from parent or legal
guardian.
iii. Perform hand hygiene and assemble equipment.
jii. Assess patient before procedure. Document any bruising or discoloration
found before procedure begins.
iv. Place on radiant warmer, cardio-respiratory monitor and pulse oximeter.
V. Immobilize patient’s extremities using developmental principles in a supine
position.
vi. Position light source to illuminate umbilical area.
vii. Universal protocol: everyone involved participates in “time out” to verify
patient and procedure.
viii.  Monitor, patient’s condition and vital signs throughout entire procedure.
Notify physician of areas of blanching, dusky toes or legs, or change in
temperature, color and pulse.
ix. During the procedure, verify proper procedural practice by monitoring for
appropriate hand hygiene, maximal sterile barriers, and skin preparation.
Document this on the Central Line Insertion Practices Adherence
Monitoring Tool (CLIP Form).
X. Proper catheter tip placement must be verified by x-ray prior to use unless
ordered by physician.
Xi. Maintain sterility of area until notified by the physician that line placement
is correct.
xii.  Wipe off 2% chlorhexidine gluconate solution from skin using sterile
normal saline wipes.
xiii.  Note centimeter markings at the umbilicus before securing.
l l ] Madical Profasslonal
Troion | priciuabon | Therpesier | Stetbus | amiswaton | Afore | Bowdor
etoeratelegy
| 05?161’?3}112’;’?%1 4| 121403120 05/20 03115, 08/20 09/20 04115, nia 04115

89



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Cenlral Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

Page 2 of 16

Catheter

Xiv.

XV.

Xxvi.

Secure umbilical line by applying a hydrocolloid skin barrier to the side of
the umbilicus, coil line with measurement markings visible on top of
hydrocolloid dressing then secure in place with transparent dressing.
Thirty minutes after procedure is complete, loosen the umbilical tie and
observe for bleeding. The tie may be removed once hemostasis is ensured.
Umbilical tie should be removed within four (4) hours of catheter insertion,
Notify the physician/AHP if hemostasis is not achieved within 4 hours.
Document the procedure in the patient’s medical record. Documentation of
the procedure includes:

1) Date and time of insertion.
2) Size of the catheter.
3) Length of the catheter from insertion site to catheter tip.

4) X-ray reading of tip location
Completion of CLIP form.

DRESSING CHANGE:

5)
A=2.  PICC (Peripherally Inserted Central Catheter} Line/ OR-MLC (Mid-Line
Catheter)DRESSING CHANGE:

a.

I.

.
n.
il

EQUIPMENT

PICC kit

Appropriately sized catheter
26-gauge autoguard introducer

iv. Mask, cap, sterile gown, and sterile gloves

V. 1:1 heparinized normal saline

vi. Transfer set

vii. Transilluminator

PROCEDURE

i. Verify informed consent has been obtained from parent or legal guardian
and review PICC placement orders in EMR.

ii. Ensure patient is comfortable during procedure. Refer to NICU “Pain
Management” policy.

iiii. Perform hand hygiene.

iv, Universal protocol: everyone involved participates in “time out” to verify
patient and procedure.

V. Select vein to be cannulated for procedure.

vi. Measure the desired length of the catheter.

1) For arm placement, measure from the insertion site up to the
shoulder, across the chest to the top of the sternum and then down
to the midpoint of the sternum (the third intercostal space).

2) For leg placement, measure from insertion site following vein track
up to the xiphoid process.

vii. Position patient using developmentally supportive methods and immobilize
the infant securely.

1) Position patient with desired insertion site accessible.

2) For arm insertion, position the patient's head facing toward the
insertion side with chin down, to prevent catheter insertion into the
jugular vein.

viii.  Restrict traffic near the sterile field.

ix. Don a mask, cap, and sterile gown. If assistant will enter the sterile field or
reach over it, they will perform hand hygiene and also wear maximal barrier
precautions (sterile gown, mask, cap, and sterile gloves).

X. Open the PICC kit. Put on sterile gloves, set up, and drape a sterile work
area. Do not touch the part of the catheter to be inserted; use forceps to
manipulate it. Check the catheter and insertion needle for defects,

xi. Fill two 10 mL syringes with 1:1 heparinized flush solution.

xii.  Attach syringe and flush catheter with heparinized saline solution.

90



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

Page 3 of 16

xiii.
Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

xvii.

xviii.
Xix.

XXiii.

XXiv.

Cover the infant with a full-body sterile drape with only the involved skin
area exposed.

Prepare the involved skin area with three 2% chlorhexidine gluconate
swabs per manufacturer’s guidelines.

Insert the introducer bevel up ata 15°-30° angle into the skin a few
millimeters before anticipated entry into the vein. Observe for blood return.
Advance slightly then retract needle.

Advance the catheter through the introducer with small forceps to thread it
into the vessel to the pre-measured length. Apply pressure well above the
tip of the introducer to stabilize the catheter during the removal of the
introducer. Remove the introducer and pull the wings apart to break and
remove them.

Aspirate to verify blood return and flush with heparinized normal saline.
Secure catheter at insertion site with sterile adhesive skin closure strip.
MD to confirm catheter placement on x-ray prior to infusing fluids. it is
optimal to have the infant’s arms in a neutral, flexed position for the x-ray
(not raised above shoulder level).

If catheter tip is not in the desired location, adjust catheter placement to
desired location and confirm with follow-up x-ray.

Cleanse extremity of residual chlorhexidine gluconate with sterile water or
normal saline.

Apply dressing.

1) Secure catheter at insertion site with sterile adhesive skin closure
strip (if not already done).

2) Coil the external catheter in small concentric circles (avoid kinks)
and secure with a second steri-strip.

3) Secure hub with sterile adhesive skin closure strip.

4) Place transparent dressing(s) over the insertion site, length of

catheter and hub
Secure the exit site:
1) Apply sterile adhesive skin closure strip using chevron technique
(v-shaped pattern) and secure to skin above transparent dressing.
Document the procedure in the patient’s medical record, including CLIP
form.

B. CARE AND MAINTENANCE:
1. UMBILICAL CATHETERS:
EQUIPMENT

iv.
V.
PROC
i.

IV administration set and solutions

Pressure transducer system (UAC only)

Split septum T-connector , 3-way stopcock and neutral displacement
connector {only if UVC secondary lumen is to be utilized for blood
sampling)

Mask, cap, sterile gloves

Padded hemostat

EDURE

After verification of correct line placement, prime IV fluids and connect to

the appropriate umbilical catheters using sterile technique (see central line

tubing change below).

Arterial catheters must be connected to a transducer at all times with the

pressure waveform continuously displayed and appropriate alarm limits set

(See attachment A for instructions on priming transducer set up).

1) Zero transducer at least once per shift & PRN.

2) The transducer should be kept at the level of the heart to maintain
an accurate reading.

N



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midling Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

| Page 4 of 16

vi.

vii.

viii.

3) Monitor waveforms and blood pressure.

4) Correlate transducer blood pressure with peripheral blood pressure
tx/shift and PRN.

If the secondary port of the UVC is to be utilized for blood sampling, attach

a split septum T-connector to the catheter hub then place a three way

stopcock between the spiit septum T-connector and the IV infusion set with

a needleless adapter (neutral displacement connector) attached to the 3@

open hub to produce a closed system for blood sampling.

Position and protect the administration set and the catheter to prevent

accidental dislocation or removal of the catheter.

MD to assess line necessity daily and document in medical record (Central

Line Justification Form).

Observe:

1) That the hub is secure and that bending or twisting is not possible.
2) The site for redness, swelling, or drainage.

3) Perfusion of lower body, including the buttocks, presence and

quality of lower extremity puises, and any bleeding from umbilicus
hourly while the umbilical catheter(s) remain in place.

4) Patient’s skin color (noting any blanching, mottling, or dusky
changes), temperature, and peripheral pulses distal to the catheter
insertion site. If the skin discoloration is thought to be catheter
related, apply warm compress to opposite extremity for fifteen (15)
minutes and notify physician.

5) Entire IV setup, ensuring all connections are luer locked and
tightened.

Maintain an airtight system and do not allow air bubbles to infuse into the

infant.

Hourly site checks should be documented in the medical record and

should include the following (notify MD as appropriate):

1) Description of site; any edema or circulatory compromise
2) Cm mark at umbilicus.

3) Description of dressing and occlusiveness.

4) Infusion rate and product

5) Clinical status of patient.

2. PICC ORMLC:
a. All primary fluids infusing through a PICC should be heparinized.

On double lumen PICC lines, the medication port is infused with normal
saline/1u Heparin/mL or TPN at minimum of 0.5 mL per hour,
Check all infusates for precipitates to reduce the risk of occlusion.

b. PROCEDURE:

e
Il.

Verify appropriate dextrose concentration is infusing (based on tip

location) at the correct rate.

1) Central Catheter: up to 25% dextrose.

2) Midline Catheter: up to 12.5% dextrose.

MD to assess line necessity daily and document in medical record (Central

Line Justification Form).

Assess, document and notify MD of (as appropriate) the following:

1) The hub is secure and bending or twisting is not possible.

2) The extremity has no redness, swelling, drainage, palpable cord, or
blanching below the insertion site.

3) The tip location for signs of edema. For central placement, assess
the chest and back, and for peripheral placement, assess the
extremify or neck,

92



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal
Page 5 of 16

4) Entire IV setup, ensuring all connections are iuer locked and
tightened. Catheter intact without leaks.

5) The internal lumen of the IV tubing closest to the patient for
evidence of fungal growth (white fluffy material).

6) Signs of increasing respiratory distress

7) Pallor, faint heart sounds, bradycardia, or progressive hypotension
iv. Hourly site checks should be documented in the medical record and

should include the following {notify MD as appropriate):

1) Description of site, including any edema or circulatory compromise

of the extremity.

2) Description of the area at tip location.

3) Description of dressing and occlusiveness.

4) Infusion rate and product, if not heparin locked.

5) Clinical status of patient.

c. Routines of Care:
i The following routines of care may only be deviated from with a written

physician’s order.

1) Administration of medications following aseptic procedure through
PICC or MLC.

2) Blood products should not be infused through a PICC or MLC.

3) Never use a 1 mL syringe for IV push with a PICC or MLC. The
pressure generated by a 1 mL syringe is excessive and may rupture
the catheter.

4) Connect all lines with luer-locking devices to prevent accidental
disconnection.
d. Suspected Occlusion:

i Examine the entire length of the catheter and tubing for kinking, patency,
or occlusion in isolette doors or other bedside equipment.
ii. Consider other causes:
1) A kink of the catheter under the dressing.
2) A leak in the catheter
3) Blood backing up.
4) Precipitate of infusate.
5) Fungal occlusion.
iiii. For unexplained occlusions requiring removal of the catheter, send the
catheter tip for culture per physician’s/AHP order.
iv. Observe for leaks by checking the dressing for dampness or drainage of
blood or IV fluid.
kv, Clear a blood occlusion by infusing heparinized saline directly into the
catheter with a 5 mL or larger syringe.
b-e.  PICC or MLC Dressing Change:
i. The PICC or MLC dressing only needs to be changed when it has become
excessively soiled, damp, loose, or non-occlusive. Give special attention when
removing the old dressing to Onc i i

secured by transparent dressing.

ii. EQUIPMENT
1} PICC dressing change kit
&2) Cap(2)

b-3) Mask (2)
64) Non-sterile gloves

93



Wamen's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Cathetars and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Remavai

| Page 6 of 16

é-5) Sterile gloves

e:6) Sterile towels

£7)  Adhesive skin closure strips

g-8)  Transparent dressings (2)

h:9) 2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs

PROCEDURE:

1) Perform hand hygiene.

2) Perform hand hygiene.

3) Don mask, cap, and non-sterile gloves. Assistant also dons mask, cap,
and gloves.

2}4)  Organize supplies utiizing-drossing-changekit-ason sterile field.

5) Position patient using developmentally supportive methods and
immobilize the infant securely. Have a second person hold the infant, if

necessary.
316)  Place the extremity with the PICC onto a sterile towel.
47) Remove old dressing, i taking care
not to dislodge or tear the catheter. Peel the edges from the periphery to
the insertion site. Place one finger ver the

insertion site (on top of the transparent dressing) at all times while
peeling up the dressing to prevent the catheter from dislodging.

6)8) Change to sterile gloves.

9) Remove the adhesive skin closures carefully only if soiled or no longer
completely adhered to the skin.-

6110) Use chlorhexidine gluconate swabs to clean the area and remove any
blood, allowing it to air dry for 30 seconds. Wipe skin with saline or sterile
water and let dry.

#11) Assess site for presence of erythema, edema, tenderness and/or
drainage; assess integrity of catheter.

8)12) Note measurement at insertion site

8)13) Apply dressing:
aa)  Secure catheter at insertion site with sterile adhesive skin closure

strip (if not already done).
b-b)  Coil the external catheter in small concentric circles (avoid kinks)
and secure with a second sterile adhesive skin closure strip.

irritationfbreakdewn—Secure hub with sterile adhesive skin closure
strip.

dd) Place transparent dressing over the insertion site, length of
catheter and hub

&c)

H314) Apply sterile adhesive skin closure strip using chevron technique (v-
shaped pattern) and secure to skin above transparent dressing.
Document the dressing change on PICC line documentation sheet and in
the patient's medical record.

4+2}15) If concerned that PICC catheter moved there-is-any-question-ofRICC
satheterrrovement-with the dressing change notify the MD and obtain-
AP and lateral chest x-rays may-be-necessary-to confirm placement.

C. OBTAINING BLOOD SPECIMENS:
1. UAC with VAMP Jr. transducer

C.

. Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system.
b.

Perform hand hygiene.
Don clean gloves.

94



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

Page 7 of 16

d.
e.

@ ™

ol

33

2 Do

Close the distal shut off valve by turning the handle perpendicular to the tubing.
Stowly, smoothly and evenly pull up on the reservoir plunger to draw the required
amount of clearing volume consistent with the patient’s clinical condition and
patient’s size {approx. 1-2ml at a rate of 1ml every 10-15 seconds).

Close the proximal shut off valve.

Swab proximal sample site with 2% chlorhexidine gluconate.

Using 1 mL or 3 mL syringe with needleless blunt attachment, (ensure plunger is
fully depressed) push blunt attachment into the proximal sample site.

Slowly withdraw amount of blood required for performance of ordered lab tests.
Remove the syringe from the sampling site by pulling straight out.

Open the proximal shut-off valve by turning handle parallel to tubing.

Slowly, smoothly and evenly, push down on reservoir plunger until it is fully
closed. (Recommended rate is 1ml every 10-15 seconds.)

Swab distal access port with 2% chlorhexidine gluconate.

To flush the line after the blood sample is obtained, use a pre-filled 1:1
heparinized flush syringe with needleless blunt attachment. Ensure the syringe
and cannula are free of air bubbles then insert blunt attachment into the distal
access port.

Slowly flush the line with solution while monitoring for air bubbies.

Remove flush syringe from the distal port by pulling straight out then open the
distal shut-off valve,

Place blood for laboratory testing into the appropriate blood collection devices
and label correctly per hospital policy.

Discard syringes, gloves, and supplies in the appropriate receptacles.

r.
UVC w
a.

"m0 apym

=@

=~

ith Closed Needleless (CN) Micro-Draw Device

EQUIPMENT:

i. CN Micro-Draw device

ii. Aspiration syringe or specimen collection syringes

fiil. Non-Sterile gloves

iv. Labels

V. 2% chlorhexidine gluconate (CHG) swabs

Identify correct neonate using two patient identifiers.

Verify lab orders and labels.

Perform hand hygiene and don non-sterile gloves.

Prepare rubber injection port using CHG for 30 seconds.

Open and inspect CN Micro-draw device. Make sure vent plug is in place on the
extension lines with the blue and red clamps. The protective cover should be on
the CN Micro-draw blunt tube.

Clamp both extension tubing clamps on the CN Micro-draw device.

Remove white vent plug from extension line with blue clamp. Pre-attach an
aspirating syringe of desired size to the female luer lock for collection of
holding/clearance blood.

Remove white vent plug from extension line with red clamp. Pre-attach an
aspirating syringe of desired size to the female luer lock for collection of blood
sample for testing.

Using the T-Connector slide clamp, clamp the T-connector tubing closed.
Remove the protective cover on the CN micro-draw device blunt tube. Fully insert
CN Micro-draw blunt tube into the center of the split septum T-connector hub until
it is entirely inserted through the septum and rests with its tip inside the catheter
hub. Stop inserting when resistance is met.

Unclamp the blue clamp on the extension tube and holding the syringe in an
upright position, aspirate the desired volume of clearance blood into the syringe
(0.5ml to 1.0ml is sufficient to clear the umbilical catheter). Inmediately close the
blue clamp.

95



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Cantral Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Remova

| Page 8 of 16

n.

s.
t.

m.

Unclamp the red clamp and slowly aspirate the desired blood sample volume into
the syringe. Close the red clamp after blood sample is drawn.

Unclamp the blue clamp on the waste/hold extension tubing. While holding the
syringe in an upright position, slowly return the clearance blood to the patient.
Close the blue ctamp.

Holding the T-connector hub securely, slowly remove the CN Micro-draw device
with both the waste and blood sample syringe attached.

Remove sample syringe from the microdraw device and set aside for testing.
Flush the UVC catheter with 0.5ml of ordered flush solution administered through
a stopcock attached to the T-connector.

Unclamp the slide clamp from the T-connector tubing and resume normal venous
line flow.

Dispose of the CN Micro-draw device in a sharps container.

See attachment B for step by step pictorial.

3. PICC Line — Physician/AHP ordered Blood Culture ONLY

a.

app

bl 1]

“Lab draws from a PICC line are done only with a written physician/AHP order.
Routine labs are not drawn from the PICC Line.

Perform hand hygiene

Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system per policy.

Position patient using developmentally supportive methods and immobilize the
patient securely.

Pause the infusion pump

Don sterile gloves and place a sterile 4x4 under the injection port and prep with
2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs using vigorous friction prior to each entry.
Detach IV infusion set from catheter hub and set aside on sterile filed maintaining
sterility of the connection tip.

Flush PICC catheter with at least 0.5 mL of normal saline using a 5mi or 10ml|
syringe to clear the line.

Using a sterile 3mL syringe, withdraw one mL of blood.

After obtaining the blood sample, use a SmL or 10mL syringe with 1:1 heparinized
normal saline to flush the catheter well using a pulsatile method.

Reconnect the IV infusion set to the PICC catheter and resume infusion.

Perform hand hygiene.

Document in patient’s medical record.

96



Women's and Children’s Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal
l Page 9 of 16

| B:D. RICCCENTRAL LINE TUBING CHANGE:

1. Equipment:
a. Mask
b. Cap
() Non-sterile gloves
d. Sterile gloves
e. IV Wbingfilter—medicationtubing-{as-reeded)Administration Set
f. Sterile 3x3 or 4x4- gauze sponges
g. 1:1 heparinized normal saline flush (PICC only)
h. Transfer set

| i 5ml or 10mi sterile syringes

2. Procedure:
a. Perform hand hygiene.
b. Don mask, cap, and non-sterile gloves.
C. Prime new IV tubing using aseptic technique. Ensure that the connection ends of

the IV tubing remain sterile.

d. Change-tsDon sterile gloves.
e.

Set up sterile field. utiizing-glove-wrappes-Place gauze sponges, 2% chlorhexidine
gluconate swabs and 10 ml syringe on field.

f. PICC Only: Using sterile technique, draw-uptransfer 1:1 heparinized normat saline into
syringe.

g. Use sterile gauze sponges to hold tubing.

h. Swab connection sites with 2% chlorhexidine giuconate using friction for 30 seconds,

and then let dry for 30 seconds.

i. Disconnect old IV tubing.
' j- PICC only: Attach prepared flush syringe and perform a turbutent flush with 1 mi
of the 1:1 heparinized normal saline using

| i-k. Connect new IV tubing keeping all connections sterile.



Women's and Children’s Services Manual - NICU

Peripherally Inserted Ceniral Catheters and Midline Catheters, Drassing ¢hange/Maintenance/Removal
Page 10 of 16

k. Ensure |V fluids are running at proper rate.
km.  Place appropriate date-change stickers on 1V tubing.
m:n. Document tubing change in the patient's medical record.

98



Waomen'’s and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

Page 11 0of 16
L E.

REMOVAL OF A-RICCDISCONTINUATION OF CENTRAL LINES:

1. UMBILICAL LINES

i
iii.
iii.
iv.
V.

i.
ii.
iiii.
iv.
V.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.

xi.

Xii,
xiii.

Xiv.
XV.

XVi.
Xvii.

xviii.
E-xix.

2. PICC Line

a. EQUIPMENT:

Suture removal kit
Padded hemostat
Umbilical tape
Sterile 4x4 gauze
Sterile gloves

b. PROCEDURE:

Verify physician’s order to remove the catheter.

Perform hand hygiene and gather supplies.

Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system per policy.

Turn off infusions or move the infusions to alternate catheters.

UAC: Disconnect transducer from the monitor.

Verify centimeter marking at umbilicus with those previously documented.
Open suture removal set and sterile gauze.

Remove dressing.

Don sterile gloves,

Cut sutures, being careful not to cut catheter.

UACs: Grasp catheter firmly with one hand - use other hand to stabilize
cord - gently pull until 5 cm mark is reached. Stop and observe for 5 — 15
minutes. The artery will usually spasm and close, but have hemostat and
gauze ready in case needed. Gently withdraw remaining catheter, 1
cm/minute. If pulsations are present, delay withdrawal until they stop.
UVCs: slowly withdraw in one motion.

If bleeding occurs, clamp the artery with a thumb and forefinger or
hemostat. Umbilical tape may also be tightened around the umbilical
stump. If unable to grasp the artery, apply pressure with sterile 4x4 gauze.
Pressure should be applied for 3 — 5 minutes until bleeding stops.

Check that catheter is intact.

Position the infant to altow for observation of the umbilical area. Qozing or
recurrence of bleeding may occur.

Do not cover the artery or place the patient prone for 1hr after removing the
catheter.

Discard gloves and supplies in appropriate receptacle.

Perform hand hygiene.

Document removal, patient’s tolerance of procedure, any blood loss or
oozing, and evaluation of extremities and umbilicus after the procedure in
the patient’s medical record.

Ha. Equipment:
&, Cap
b-ii.  Mask
&iii. Non-sterile gloves
eiv. Sterile gloves
ev. 2% chlorhexidine gluconate swabs
fvi. Sterile gauze
g-vii. Hemostat
2}b.  Procedure:
a-i. Perform hand hygiene.
bdi.  Verify written order from physician to remove PICC.

e——Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system. Referte-Ratient-Care

99



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal
Page 12 of 16

&iii.  Position patient using developmentally supportive methods and immobilize the
patient securely.

e-dv.  Put on cap, mask, and non-sterile gloves.

fv. Remove transparent dressing by peeling the edges from the periphery to the
insertion site.

gvi. Puton sterile gloves and use-the-gleve-wrapperas-acreate sterile field.

h-vil.  While applying chlorhexidine gluconate swabs apply gentle traction on the
catheter and remove it.

kviii.  If the catheter becomes stuck, apply a warm compress for 30 minutes and then
firmly massage the catheter along the vein track and attempt to remove the
catheter. Notify the attending-physisiaaMD if still having difficulty removing the
catheter.

Fix.  If the catheter is severed during removal, use a hemostat to grasp any visible
catheter to prevent loss. Immediatefy apply a tourniquet to the extremity and
check the patient’s circulation frequently. Notify the attending-physisiaaMD and
obtain an order for an x-ray of the appropriate body part to determine where the
severed portion of the catheter is located.

k:x.  Refer to the PICC insertion documentation for the measurement of total catheter
length and measure the length of catheter removed.

kxi.  Apply pressure with sterile gauze to control any bleeding.

mexii. Once bleeding has stopped, clean the area with chlorhexidine gluconate swabs
and allow to air dry for 30 seconds. Then wipe clean $-is-ther+emeved-with
saline wipes.

A:xiil. Document the removal of the PICC line in the patient's medical record.

ATTACHMENT(S):

1.

2.

Attachment A - In Line Blood Sampling, Venous Arterial Blood Management and
Protection (VAMP) Jr
Attachment B ~ Hummi Micro Draw UVC Blood Draw Guidelines with Aspirating Syringes

REFERENCES:

1.

2.
3.

4,
5.

46.

29,

3-10.
411,

812,

Beauman, S.S. & Bowles, S. (2019). Policies, procedures, and competencies for neonatal
nursing care, 6" edition. Chicago, IL: National Association of Neonatal Nurses.

CPQCC quality improvement toolkit, hospital-acquired infection prevention.

Edwards Lifesciences package instructions Vamp Jr. Venous/Arterial Blood Management
Protection System.

Gorski, L. et al. (2016). Journal of Infusion Nursing: Infusion Therapy Standards of
Practice. Norwood, MA: Infusion Nurses Society

MacDonald M. & Ramagethu J. (2007). Atlas of procedures in neonatology, 5" Ed.
Lippincott Williams & Wilkins.

Marino, C., Aslam, M. Kamath, V., Rosenberg, H.K., Rajegowda, B.K. (2006). Life threatening
complication of peripherally inserted catheter (PICC) in a newborn. Neonatal Intensive Care,
19(2), 63-65.

Merenstein G.B. & Gardner S.L. (2016). Handbook of neonatal intensive care, 8" Ed. St.
Louis, MO. Elsevier Inc.

Mosby’'s Nursing skills 2014

Nobuhara, K K., Gilbert, J.C., & MacDonald, M.G. (2002). General principles of central venous
(3% Ed., pp 195-21 3). Philadelphia: Lippincott, Williams & Wilkins.

Pettit, J. (2002). Assessment of infants with peripherally inserted catheters: Part I. Detecting the
most frequently occurring complications. Advances in Neonatal Care, 2, 304-315,

Pettit, J. (2003a). Assessment of infants with peripherally inserted catheters: Part II. Detecting
less frequently occurring complications. Advances in Neonatal Care, 3, 14-26.

Pettit, J. (2003b). Assessment of the infant with a peripherally inserted device. Advances in
Neonatal Care, 3, 230-240.

100



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU

Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Remaval
Page 13 of 16

613. Pettit, J. & Wyckoff, M. (2007). Peripherally inserted central catheters: Guidelines for practice.
Glenview, IL: National Association of Neonatal Nurses.

14.  Verklan, T., Walden, M. (2015). Core curriculum for neonatal intensive care nursing (5"
ed.,pp. 290-299). St Louis, MO: Saunders

15. Wyckoff, M., Sharpe, E. (2015). Peripherally inserted central catheters: guidelines for
practice {3 ed.). Chicago, IL: National Association of Neonatal Nurses.

101



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Ceniral Catheters and Midiine Cathelers, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal
Page 14 of 16

Attachment A - In Line Blood Sampling System, Vamp Jr.
DEFINITIONS:

A.

Reservoir plunger: a component of the Vamp Jr. blood sampling system, used for drawing and
retaining diluted blood from the umbilical catheter and proximal segment of the connecting
tubing for the purpose of obtaining undiluted blood samples from an in-line sampling site..
Vamp In-line blood sampling site: an in-line needle-less sampling site proximal to the reservoir
plunger used for drawing blood samples.

Vamp In-line Access/Flush site: an in-line needle-less access site distal to the reservoir plunger
used to clear the line after blood sample has been drawn.

Vamp Needle-less cannula: an access device that is attached to a luer lock syringe which can
be used to obtain blood samples from Vamp in-line blood sampling site or to clear the line from
the Vamp access/flush site.

PROCEDURE:

A. Equipment

N o o o 2

Heparinized IV fluid for priming tubing.

0.45% Normal saline flushing solution with 1 unit/ml pf heparin added (standard flushing solution)
IV tubing, filter, luer/Lock stop cock, nonvented caps

Infusion pump

Padded hemostats (at bedside)

Transducer pressure monitoring device

Vamp Jr. blood sampling system with one 3 ml Vamp Jr. reservoir, two shut-off valves, one Vamp
needle-less sampling site, and one Vamp needle-less access/flush site.

The use of lipids with the Vamp Jr. blood sampling system is not recommended.

B. Setup

1.
2.

Using aseptic technique, remove Vamp Jr. sampling kit from sterile package.

Attach distal end of Vamp Jr. kit with female luer-lock connector to transducer stopcock.
(Preprime transducer, transducer stopcock and vented cap prior to connecting).

3. Ensure all connections are secure.

Open reservoir plunger to approximately %2 ml

5. Filt Vamp Jr. sampling kit with the shut-off valves in the open position, indicated by the shut off

valve handle in a position parallel to the tubing.

Hold the Vamp Jr. kit vertically and deliver IV priming solution slowly to fill the reservoir, while
pulling on yellow priming “pig tail” on transducer.

Push reservoir plunger down and continue filing the remainder of the kit.

Remove all air bubbles to prevent emboili.

102



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserled Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal
Page 15 of 16

9. Connect the proximal(patient end) of the Vamp kit with the male luer-lock connector to the

=h

a.

e o

o

T @

preflushed umbilical catheter.

10. There should be a fluid to fluid-to-fluid connection between the umbilical catheter and Vamp Jr.
kit, with no air bubbles.

11. To remove air bubbles in line between the patient connection and the proximal sampling site
once connected:

Close proximal shut-off valve by turning handle perpendicular to the line.

b. Prep needle-less sampling site with an alcohol swab using back and forth friction motion 15

seconds. Allow port to dry before entering.

Insert needle-less cannula with syringe attached into proximal sampling site.
Invert Vamp kit

Aspirate bubbles from sampling site into syringe.

Turn Vamp Kit upright.

Tap side of syringe so that bubbles rise to the top of the syringe.

Reinfuse blood from syringe, taking care not to pushback in the bubbles at the plunger.
Remove cannula/syringe by holding cannula and pulling cannula and syringe straight out. do
not twist when removing and discard.

Open proximal shut-off valve by turning handle parallel to the IV tubing.

Calibrate transducer with line placement, every shift and prn when BP is questioned or wave
is dampened for an unknown reason:

1. Open transducer stopcock to air by turning if OFF to the baby

Remove non-vented cap from transducer stopcock while maintaining sterility
Maintain transducer at the level of the infant's right atrium

Press zero button on monitor

Replace non-vented cap on transducer stopcock

o m op oW N

Close stopcock to air by OPENING stopcock to infant

103



Womaen's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters and Midline Catheters, Dressing change/Maintenance/Removal

Pags 16 of 16

Attachment B — Hummi Micro Draw UVC Blood Draw Guidelines with Aspirating Syringes

Hummi Micro-Draw UAC & UVC Blood Draw Guidelines
with Aspirating Syringes

Step 1

Prep Split-septum T-connector

Step 3

Wearing approprinle proteclive
altire, prep the split-seplum
T-connector necording to
instilutional policy

Clamp both extension tubing clamps
onthe Henumi Micro-Draw

Ulewse 1o Clarmp.
Clone Blue clamp.

Close Both Red and Blue Gln-l-l‘.li;.;}. N3

Step 2 Open und inspect Hummi-Micro Draw Device

Open the [ i Micro-Drasw deviee and
inspect Muke sure venl pluy is inplace on
exlension with Bluc clang. Make sure
vert plug is in place mi extension with
Hed elamg.

The prolective cover shonld be on (e
thami AMicro-Draw hlunt tube

Step 4 Attach Blood Holding Syringe and Blood
Sample Syringes to Appropriate Extension

Remwwe the while vent plug and utach
Asparaling Syringe for vollection of
holding ‘elcarance blood 1o the Bloe clumg
exfeipio

Retwve winle vent plig on Hed Clnp
extension amd sltach Aspirafing Synnge
for collection of blood sumple,

Step 6  Fully Insert Blunt T'ube to Catheter Hub

Clamp the split-scphun
T-comnector tbing at this mine wsing
the attached slide clamp

Thas will stop the line low into the
urterial catheter and T-connzclor

step 7 Unclamp Blue Clamp and Aspirate

Remove the protective cover on the
Huteni blumt tuts

Huld the T-conneelor bub securcly and
SLOWLY insert the blunt tube into the
T-connector split-septum i o 20 degiee
angle to the septum,

(Kezp straight on insertion)

step 8 Unclamp Red Clamp and ;\-spimle

Unclung the Blue clunm on ilie
exsension abing ad aspirae tha
required holding ‘clearance blood
volutne (minisem 0.5nL) and
te~clarmy  close the Blue clamp

Required Volume of Glearance Blood

LN nrg )
AxFimeld o A TRE

Required Blood Sample Velume

.\ =%
Unelarop th= Ked clamp with the bload ‘.:‘.r.::?};r
sample syninge and asprate the required Ll
approprinte bloud sunple volume, then
re-clnp - close the Kol clamp

Gn 1o Helding ‘clearance axtension
wiih Blue clump. Holling the syringe
in un upnghl position, open the Bloe
camp and Slowly retum the holding
‘clenrance blood to the patien! overa
15 second penod and re-claopchose
Blue clitp.

1 fyp
MY O AMT
MRt R~ ] AR

b

Iold the T-connecior hub securely and
remove Humm muero-Druw devive slowly
from T-commector.(picture top)

Uneclump the T-conrecton und flush 3
the line with ¢.3mL of dush solution o4 g
forclear the calheler. {pichae botom) e = L

e S T A R

| Step 12

Clean T-connector Split-septum

Rerove sample syringe Fom exiension [t \
mbing with Hed clamp

Cap thz blood sample syringe und sat
astcke tor lesting

Stap 11 Remove Sample Syringe frem Humami Extenston

appropriate sharps container.

Clean the T-connector splhit-seprum with
appropriats anti-microbial and resume
nemial arterial monitoring

L -

Discard the Humind-Micro Drow deviee it

104



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT FORENSIC-CLINIGSPECIALTY SERVICES CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 3/11 SUBJECT: Adverse Reaction (Medication Event)

REVISION DATE(S): 03/20/2020

Department Approval: 03/20
Medical Staff Department or Division: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 05/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval; 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

A. PURPOSE:
1. Patient medication events including adverse reactions must be reported appropriately and acted
upon in a timely manner. This policy defines the procedure to be followed by the Clinic when a
medication error/reaction/event occurs.

B. POLICY:
1. The Clinic will adhere to the hospital's pharmacy policy(s) related to medication events/adverse
reaction and utilize appropriate hospital reporting forms.
2. All adverse drug reactions/medication events will be reported immediately and will include
notification to the practitioner who ordered the drug, the California Department of Corrections or
San Diego Sheriff's Department, and Rehabilitation Officers, and the Primary Care Physician at
the institution where the patient came from.

3. Appropriate documentation will be recorded in the medical record and RL Solutions.
4. The pharmacy will report serious adverse drug reactions to the Food and Drug Administration, as
required.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. The RN, Medical Assistant, or Manager shall:

a. Notify the attending physician of the medication event/reaction.

b. Notify the California-Bepartment-of-Corroctions-and-Rehabilitatia P-Officer who
accompanied the patient and the institution where the patient came from regarding the
incident.

c. Notify the Primary Care PhysicianCBCR-RGR- at the institution where the patient came
from.

d. Document the event/reaction, the orders received, and the effect/condition of the patient in
the patient's medical record.

e. Document the adverse reaction in RL Solutions.

105



2
(co) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT SPECIALITY SERVICES FORENSIC-CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 0511 SUBJECT: Medical Administration and
Pharmacy Monthly Inspections
REVISION DATE(S):

Outpatient Specialty Services ClinicaBepartment Approval: 03/20
Medical Staff Department or Division: nfa

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 07/20

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval; 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla

Board of Directors Approval:

A. PURPOSE:
1. To ensure proper medication administration procedures are followed when medications are
administered to patients in the Clinic.

B. POLICY:

1. The Clinic will adhere to Tri-City the Medical Center's standards, protocols, procedures, and
state laws when administering medications to the patients.
a. See Patient Care Service Policy: Physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) Orders,

Outpatient Services

4+b.  See Patient Care Service Policy: Medication Administration Policy

+2.  Explanations of the medications and how they are administered will be explained to the patient prior
to administration.

2:3. Documentation of the medication given will be recorded in the medical record on the health record

Clinical Care-Netes.

iminicterad

b4.  The following department personnel may administer medications (see belew-forAdministration
specific mMedication Specific Routes) per their Scope of Practice:
ia. Registered Nurse
irb.  Licensed Vocational Nurse
.  Medical Assistant under physician guidance

106



Outpatient Speciality Services Clinic
Maedical Administration and Phamnacy Monthly Inspections

Page 2 of 3

Delivery System

A% w

5.

a. Obtaining Medication Orders: Medication orders are obtained from the Physician or
Physician Assistant in the form of written orders documented on the Physician Notes per.
Patient Care Service Policy: Physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) Orders,
Outpatient Services

b. Stock Medications: Stock medications are maintained within the department in a locked
medication cart in the Jocked medication room.. Content is determined by the physicians
working in the clinic according to the procedures they will be performing.

g Adrminisirati

&6. Special Safety Concerns: Access to medications, needles, and syringes are limited to appropriate
staff via locked access.

8:7. Waste/Unusables

a. Disposal of partial tablets or wasted medications {not the vial or bottle) shall be disposed
of in PharmaSafety Waste Medication Container per Administrative Policy: Handling
of Pharmaceutical Waste, Expired Medications and Expired IV Solutions 276..
Exceptions are epinephrine, nitroglycerine ointments, pourable ftammables or inhalers.

10-8. Outpatient Forensic Clinic Weekly Inspections

a. The RN or Medical Assistant shall conduct weekly inspections of the medications that are
stored in the refrigerator and medication cart.

b. The review of the medications will be documented on the medication checklist
(attachment) to note the quantity of each medication, signature and date of the clinician
who is conducting the inspection.

C. The medication checklist will be used to determine if any medications need to be ordered.

d. Any medications that are expired will be disposed of in the PharmaSafety Waste
Medication Container, with the exception of epinephrine, nitraglycerine ointments,
pourable flammabiles or inhalers. Those will be disposed of in the RCRA Waste Bin.

4+9. Pharmacy Monthly Inspections

a.

The pharmacy department will conduct unannounced monthly inspections and document

any deficiencies within the following:

i, Disinfectants and drug for external use are stored separately from internal and
injectable medications.

107



Cutpatient Speciality Services Clinic
Medical Administration and Pharmacy Monthly Inspections
Page 3 of 3

ii. Biologicals and other thermotabile medications for dating and correct storage
requirements, (e.g. insulin).

ii. Medication refrigerator contains no non medication items.

iv. Date opended note on High/Low control Solution/Strips.

V. Any outdated drugs.

vi. All medication floorstock for correct content, quantity, and security checked.

vii. Floorstock items are properly labeled and clearly marked.

viii, Metric-apothecary conversion charts are posted on each unit.
b. Any expired medications found during the inspection will be taken back by the Pharmacist
to the Pharmacy for proper disposal.
Any other corrections identified must be corrected right away.
A signed copy of the Pharmacy Coordinated Nursing Inspection Report from the
Pharmacist conducting the inspection will be given to the Manager of the Clinic to be kept
on file.

oo

P:.C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Administrative Policy: Handling of Pharmaceutical Waste, Expired Medications and
Expired IV Solutions 276
Patient Care Service Policy: Physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) Orders, Outpatient
Services
1:3. Patient Care Service Policy: Medication Administration Policy

o

ADMINISTERING MEDICATION
SPECIFIC ROUTES

X = indicates who may v v v (PO | SQ ]| IM SL Intra- | Topical | Inhalant
administer PUSH | PB dermal Aerosol
Registered Nurse X X X X X X X X X X
Licensed Vocational Nurse X X X X X X X X X
Medical Assistant under X X X X X

physician guidance

108



o)
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

OUTPATIENT SPECIALITY SERVICESEQRENSIC CLINIC

ISSUE DATE: 05/11 SUBJECT: Removal of Skin Lesions using

Liquid Nitrogen

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval: 03/20
Medical Staff Department or Division: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 05/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval; 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla

Board of Directors Approval:

A.

n

PURPOSE:
1. Treatment for benign skin lesions which are suitable for freezing using Liquid Nitrogen (LN2):
a. Actinic Keratosis
b. Solar Lentigo
c. Seborrheic Keratosis
d. Viral Warts
e. Verrucae
f. Molluscum Contagiosum
g. Dermatofibroma
POLICY:
1. Removal of skin lesions using a controlled dispensing unit CRY-AC3 of Liquid Nitrogen (LN2) - via

open spray or contact probe techniques performed only by a Licensed Physician.

EQUIPMENT:

1. CRY-AC 3 Liquid Nitrogen Dispenser filled with at least 40% of liquid nitrogen (LN2) and no more
than 70% of liquid nitrogen.

Large Cotton-Tip Applicators

Cryoplate

Face shields

Gloves

Alcohol wipes

oapLN

PROCEDURE:
1 Explanatlon of the procedure w1|| be explamed by the physmlan

7—:3. Any hqmd nitrogen left over in the dlspenser WI|| be returned to the Dewar
84. Liquid Nitrogen will be refilled /replaced every 4-5 weeks per product policy.

DOCUMENTATION:

2-1. RN will document all information on the Clinical Care Notes.
1

109



Outpatient Specialty Services Clinic
Removal of Skin Lesions using Liquid Nitrogen
Page 2 of 2

3:2.  MD will document on the Physician Notes.
4:3.  MD will document the procedure and any recommendations on the Request for Service RFS form

that will accompany the patient back to the institution.
84. All documents, including any medical records, will be sent to Medical Records for scanning into
the encounter for that visit.

110



2
(C‘P Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Medications in Surgery

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05; 07/11; 44/14201/13

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/20
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/20
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nfa

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 05/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa

Board of Directors Approval: 0113

A PURPOSE:

1. To outline the access to medications in surgery.
B. POLICY:
1. OR STOCK DRUGS:

a. BPrugs-Medications used in the-Operating-ReomSurgery are dispensed from a PYXIS
Medstation.-da#t- This computerized Medstations system is linked to the Hospitals’ main
pPharmacy. It provides a control system for dlspensmg nareehes—medlcatlons and
contains an approved menu of rReR-cer S
medications prescribed by a surgeon or used by an anesthesmloglst

ab. Emergency medications are stored in the Crash Cart, Difficult Airway Cart, and

Malignant Hyperthermia Cart. Medications are stocked in these carts by Pharmacy
and a yellow numbered lock is applied to the medication drawer by the Pharmacist.
Dally checks are performed for lock mtegrlty and verification of lock number

2. AUTHORIZED ACCESS:

Regular-Nursing staff and aAnesthesiologists are assigned an access code for the PYXIS
Medstataon Unlt by pharmacy

Fechnical-Surgical and Anesthesia Technicians staffhaveare issued PYXIS
Medstation access codes allowing access to non-narcotic medications that-are-usedto
be removed for surgical procedureseases and room stocking.

Ancillary personnel {(including, but not limited to, Perioperative Aides, Environmental
Service workers, and Maintenance workers) are not granted codes for PYXIS Medstation
ormedisationrefrigeratorsicabinets; and do not have access to medications in the
Surgery@pera&ng—Reem

3. PROCUREMENT

a.

Mrmmum-Medlcatlon mventory Ievels |n PYXIS Medstatlon are mamtamed by the
Pharmacy. z

111



Surgical Services

| RelisyFile-Medications in Surgery
Page 2 of 2
|

84, DOCUMENTATION

a. Administration of narcotics by the anesthesiologist is documented in the anesthesia record
and in the Anesthesia Pyxis.
b. Non-Controlled drugs obtained by a nurse and used by a surgeon will be documented on

the Perloperatlve Nursmg Record.

8:5. OTHER:
a. Each PYXIS unit will be connected to the hospital's Emergency Power Source generator,
for backup power, in the event of a power outage.

112



DELETE — covered by

@Tri-City Health Care District Physician Orders

Oceanside, California

Women and Newborn Services

ISSUE DATE: 02/10 SUBJECT: Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome,
Pharmacological Treatment of

REVISION DATE(S): 02/10 POLICY NUMBER: 8710-559

Medical Staff Department Approval: 044210/19

Perinatal Collaborative Practice: 04/4711/19

Department of Pediatrics Approvat: 06/4705/20

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 058M4705/20

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/1708/20

Administration Approval: 09/20

Professional Affairs Committee Approvai: 0647 n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 0717

113



Women and Newbomn Services
Neonatal Narcotic Withdrawal Syndrome, Pharmacological Treatment of — 8710-559
Page 2 of 2

114



(@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

GENTERFOR-WOUND CARE CENTER&

HYPERBARIC CENTERMEDICINE
RPOLIGY-MANUAL
ISSUE DATE: 06/07 SUBJECT: Physician Orders
REVISION DATE(S):
Wound Care Department Approval: 02/20
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 05/20
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/20
Administration Approval: 09/20
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

A

PURPOSE

1.

This policy defines the circumstances in which a physician's orders - verbal, telephone or written
— will be accepted and implemented by the clinical staff.

POLICY

1.

Only physicians/healthcare professionals granted hospital and wound care & hyperbaric medicine
medical staff privileges may provide written, telephone or verbal orders for patients being seen at
the Center,

2. The clinical staff will take orders only from the Center staff physician.

3. Any treatment/procedure may not be performed without the physician's written, verbal or
telephone instruction unless defined by policy and/or falls within the scope of nursing practice, as
mandated by the State of California.

4, Orders for patients not being seen by the physicians at the Center may not be accepted or
implemented by the clinical staff.

5. Hospital policy will be followed when implementing physician's orders.

PROCEDURE

1. When the physician is on site, orders will be written and signed by the physician after each clinic
visit.

2. Verbal orders are discouraged but may be taken by the licensed clinical staff at the direction of the
clinic physician caring for the patient.

3. Physicians must sign telephone or verbal orders within the timeframe specified in the hospital
Medical Staff Bylaws and application regulations/standards.

4, All physician orders will be noted by a registered nurse/PT according to hospital policy.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

41.

Patient Care Services Policy: Physician / Allied Health Professionals (AHP) Orders for
Outpatient Services

115



Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
(No meeting held in

September, 2020)

116



Finance, Operations &
Planning Committee
(No meeting held in September, 2020)

17



Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
(No meeting held in
September, 2020)

118



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

August 27, 2020 - 2:30 o'clock p.m.
Via Teleconference

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via
teleconference at 2:30 p.m. on August 27, 2020.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via
teleconference:

Director George W. Coulter
Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director Leigh Anne Grass
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock
Director Tracy Younger

Also present via teleconference were:

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer
Scott Livingstone, Chief Operations Officer
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer
Candice Parras, Chief Nurse Executive

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer

Roger Cortez, Chief Compliance Officer
Jeremy Raimo, Senior Director, Business Development
Jeff Scott, Board Counsel

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairperson, Director Grass, called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. via
teleconference with attendance as listed above. Director Chavez led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Public Comments — Announcement

Chairperson Grass read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.
There were no public comments.

There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

Approval of agenda

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the agenda as presented. Director
Chavez seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0) by a roll call

vote.

Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session

119



Chairperson Grass made an oral announcement of the items listed on the August 27,
2020 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed Session
which included Reports Involving Trade Secrets with various disclosure dates,

5. Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Chavez and seconded by Director Schallock to go into
Closed Session at 2:35 p.m. The motion passed unanimously (7-0) by a roll call

vote.
6. At 3:00 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted.
7. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.

Chairperson Grass reported the Board in Closed Session received a report and
discussed new programs and services in the District. The Board took no action.

8. New Business
a) Consideration for approval to execute a lease agreement for 6185 Paseo Del Norte

The Chairperson opened the floor for discussion regarding any questions on the
proposed transaction.

It was moved by Director Nygaard that the Tri-City Healthcare District Board
of Directors approve execution of a lease agreement between NextMed III
Owner, LLC and Tri-City Healthcare District for 6185 Paseo del Norte, Suite
100, Carlsbad, CA. Director Schallock seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

b} Consideration for approval to execute a lease agreement for 2095 W. Vista Way.

The Chairperson opened the floor for discussion regarding any questions on the
proposed transaction.

It was moved by Director Schallock that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors approve execution of a lease agreement between Tri-City
Healthcare District and San Ysidro Health, Inc. at 2095 W. Vista Way, Vista,
CA. Director Chavez seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard, Reno,
Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors:  None

ABSTAIN: Directors; None
ABSENT: Directors: None

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- August 27, 2020

120



9. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:09 p.m.

Leigh Anne Grass

Chairperson
ATTEST:

Julie Nygaard
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -3- August 27, 2020

121



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

August 27, 2020 - 3:30 o’clock p.m.
Meeting Held via Teleconference

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held via
teleconference at 3:30 p.m. on August 27, 2020.

The foltowing Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via
teleconference:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Leigh Anne Grass
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were;

Steven Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Scott Livingstone, Chief Operations Officer
Candice Parras, Chief, Patient Care Services
Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Medical Officer

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Anna Aguilar, Vice President/Human Resources
Dr. Mark Yamanaka, Chief of Staff

Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

The Board Chairperson, Leigh Anne Grass, called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m.
via teleconference with attendance as listed above.

Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Reno to approve the agenda as presented. Director
Chavez seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously {7-0) via roll
call vote.

Pledge of Allegiance

Director Chavez led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Public Comments — Announcement

Chairperson Grass read the Public Comments section listed on the August 27, 2020
Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

122



5. July, 2020 Financial Statement Results — Mr. Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands).
First month of this fiscal year.

» Net Operating Revenue - $24,343
» Operating Expense - $26,532

> EBITDA ~($191)

» EROE - ($1,489)

Mr. Rivas reported on current month Key Indicators as follows:

> Average Daily Census — 143
» Adjusted Patient Days - 8,305
> Surgery Cases — 453
» ED Visits — 3,762
> Net Patient Accounts Receivable - $34.8
» Days in Net A/R - 51.1
Mr. Rivas stated we are doing a good job at managing our liquidity at $52
million.
Chairperson Grass questioned if elective surgery volume is back to normal.
Mr. Rivas responded that we are seeing a high percentage of outpatient
surgeries however inpatient surgery volume is still down by approximately
30%.
6. New Business - None
7. Old Business — None

8. Chief of Staff

a) Consideration of August 2020 Credentialing Actions Involving the Medical Staff
as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on August 24, 2020.

Dr. Yamanaka, Chief of Staff presented the August 2020 Credentialing actions for
the Board's consideration which included 10 initial appointments.

There were no questions or comments by Board members.
It was moved by Director Chavez to approve the August 2020
Credentialing Actions Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by
the Medical Executive Committee on August 24, 2020. Director Nygaard
seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
m

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 2- August 27, 2020

123



ABSENT: Directors: None
b) Consideration of Rules & Regulations:
1) Department of Emergency Medicine

Dr. Yamanaka also presented the Department of Emergency Medicine
Rules and Regulations for the Board's consideration.

It was moved by Director Reno to approve the Department of
Emergency Medicine Rules & Regulations as recommended by the

Medical Executive Committee on August 24, 2020. Director Chavez
seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

¢) Consideration of Privilege Card:
1) Urology
Dr. Yamanaka presented the Urology Card for the Board’s consideration.
It was moved by Director Reno to approve the Urology Privilege Card
as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on August 24,

2020. Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

d) Consideration of Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) Eligible to Apply for
Clinical Privileges

Lastly, Dr. Yamanaka presented the AHP's Eligible to Apply for Clinical
Privileges for the Board's consideration.

It was moved by Director Reno to approve the Allied Health
Professionals Eligible to Apply for Clinical Privileges as
recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on August 24,
2020. Director Younger seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

- =

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 3- August 27, 2020

124



AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors: None

Dr. Yamanaka reported the July Credentialing Actions and Reappointments,
as well as the Department of Medicine and Division of General Vascular
Surgery and General & Vascular Surgery Privilege Card were also included in
the agenda packet for information only as they were previcusly approved by
the Board Chair, CEO and Chief of Staff through e-mail communication due to
the cancellation of the July Board meeting.

On behalf of the Medical Staff, Dr. Yamanaka expressed his appreciation for
all the Board member's character, work ethic and support over the past four
years and stated those who will be leaving the Board in November will be
missed.

9. Consideration of Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Chavez to approve the Consent Agenda.
Director Reno seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno, Schallock and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

10. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar

There were no items pulled from the Consent Calendar however Director Reno
abstained from the July Regular and Special Meeting minutes.

11. Commenis by Members of the Public
There were no comments by members of the public
12. Comments by Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO presented a brief report related to COVID-19. He reported the
following:

» 6,000 patients have been tested with a positive rate of 3.5%;

» The hospital has had 240 positive inpatients, many with very good
outcomes; and

» Currently there are 14 COVID-19 positive inpatients.

Mr. Dietlin thanked the entire TCMC Team, the Medical Staff, Nursing, Board
of Directors, Foundation, Auxiliary and the community for their support and
diligent efforts during this pandemic.

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 4- August 27, 2020

125



Mr. Dietlin reminded the public that Tri-City Hospital is a safe environment to
get care. We have a dedicated team and every surgical patient is tested prior
to surgery.

In closing, Mr. Dietlin recognized long-time Emergency Department physician,
Dr. Stephen Karras who was acknowledged at a Retirement Celebration held
earlier today honoring is 45 years of service.

13. Board Communications
Director Younger expressed her appreciation to the Tri-City family and their efforts
every single day.
Directer Chavez expressed his appreciation to staff and physicians for their
professionalism during this COVID environment. He commented on the fact that Tri-
City appears to be well prepared and have adequate PPE.
Director Coulter echoed Director Chavez's comments and stated he believes we are
in good hands thanks to leadership and tremendous collaboration of our Tri-City staff
and physicians.
Director Reno expressed her appreciation to all the employees for their loyalty,
dedication and quality care.
Director Nygaard expressed her thanks to staff for doing a “yeoman’s job”. She also
stated that it is encouraging to see more people wearing masks.
Director Schallock reiterated fellow Board members comments regarding the handling
of the COVID-19 pandemic and exiended his appreciation as well.

14, Report from Chairperson
Chairperson Grass expressed her appreciation to all employees and physicians for
their service.

15. Move to adjourn
It was moved by Director Schallock and seconded by Director Chavez to
adjourn the meeting. The motion passed unanimously {(7-0) by a roll call vote.

16.  There being no further business Chairperson Grass adjourned the meeting at 4:00
p.m.

Leigh Anne Grass, Chairperson
ATTEST:
Julie Nygaard, Secretary
TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting - 5- August 27, 2020

126



Lél

Performance compared to prior year:

Spine Surgery Cases

FY20
FY19 16

19

Mazor Robotic Spine Surgery Cases

FY20
FY19 9

FY19 23 33

Major Joint Replacement Surgery Cases {Lower Extremities)

Growth - Page 2 of 6



821

Performance compared to prior year:

Inpatient Behavioral Health - Average Daily Census (ADC)

FY20 . - F 2 . - . : -

Same

FY19 - - - - - - - - :

Acute Rehab Unit - Average Daily Census (ADC)

5.0

FY20

FY19

Jul Aug

142.5 139.5

FY19 143.4 143.6

Deliveries

FY19 168 171

Inpatient Cardiac Interventions

Growth - Page 3 of 6



621

Performance compared to prior year: _ Same

Outpatient Cardiac Interventions

FY20 1.88 1.81 1.85
FY19 1.85 1.89 191 1.86 1.86 179 1.80 1.80 1.81 1.69 1.81 1.84 1.87

Growth - Page 4 of 6



0¢l

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center FOR U

Financial Infermation

TCMC Days in Accounts Receivable {A/R)
_Jul Aug Sep B NOV LT Dec B __Feb. g May__ .
Fy21 51.1 209 51.0 48-52
FY20 52.8 56.4 59.2 612 61.9 6.6 61.5 58.7 53.1 50.5 56.4 54.6

TCMC Days in Accounts Payable {(A/P)

i ubl - Augl . Sep. ___ No Dec 3 : i . fay

FY21 107.1 103.1 105.1 75-100
FY20 93.0 89.9 aa€(X.8 98.4 928 B85.5 BaS 94.3 889 97.3 105.5 914

TCHD EROE $ in Thousands (Excess Revenue over Expenses}) c/im

= __YTD Budget
FY21 ($1,489) ($923) (62,412} | $ (5,000)
FY20 {5476) {$494) ($759) {3311) ($1,036)  ($1,040) ($860) {5735}  (54,467) 51,921 {$2,982) {$970) H

TCHD EROE % of Total Operating Revenue Cc/m

ul ) Ot _Nov i 3 Mar . ' Y10 Budget
FY21 -6.12% -3.74% -4.92% -10.80%
FY20 -1.65% -1.66% -2.71% -1.08% -3.91% -3,75% -2 85% -269%  -17.32% 9.94% -14.31% -1.66%

Page 5of 6



ADVANCED HealLTH CARE

erAYOU

_Jul Aug Sep._ _DOct Nov __ Dec lan_ _Feb Mar_ ____ Apr iy ' !
{3191} $353 5

Fy21 (2,714)

FY20

5686

5681

5412

5683

$62

5128

$367

5551

{53,164)

53,159

(51,774)

51,367

TCHD EBITDA % of Total Operating Revenue

Jul

1.43%

/M
__YTD Budget

FY20

2.38%

2.30%

1.47%

2.36%

0.24%

0.46%

1.22%

2.02%

-12.27%

16.35%

-8.51%

2.34%

TCMC Paid FTE (Full-Time Equivalent} per Adjusted Occupied Bed

21

5.38

5.66

552

c/m

__YTD Budget

6.94

FY20

7.04

6.80

6.21

6.58

6.44

6.71

6.82

7.02

7.27

5.61

6.92

TCHD Liquidity $ in Millions {Cash + Available Revolving Line of Credit)

Jul  Aug __ Sep Oct Nov Dec __dan _Feb Mar Apr May Jun |
FY21 $59.5 $57.4
FY20 $52.4 $44.8 $43.7 545.6 $38.2 531.9 $35.2 535.8 $34.8 %51.2 562.3
Page 6 of 6

LEL



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Building Operating Leases
Month Ending Aug 31, 2020

ADVAMNMCED HEALTH CARE

SENOU)

Hase
1 Rate per| | Total Rent per, LeaseTerm
__ Lessor _|_8q.Ft. | Sq.FL current month | ‘Beginning  Ending Services & Location Cost Canter
6121 Paseo Del Norts, L1LC
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 QSNC - Carisbad
Cartsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Paseo Del Norte, Sulte 200
V#83024 8,552 $3.59 [{a) 47,421.57 07/0117| 06/30/27|Carsbad, CA 92011 7095
Cardiff Investments LLC
2729 Ocean St OSNC - Oceanside
Carisbad, CA 92008 Approx 3905 Waring Road
Vi#83204 10,218 $2.58 |(a} 35,388.70 07/04117)  06/30/22 QOceanside, CA 92056 7095
Creek View Medical Assoc
1926 Vla Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81881 6,200 $2.70 ){a) 19,810.00 07/01/20] 06/30/25]Vista, CA 52081 7090
CreekView Orhopaedic Bldg, LLC
1958 Via Centre Driva OSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1958 Via Centre Drive
V#83025 4,995 $2.50 |(a) 16,592.85 07/01/47] 06/30/22)VIsta, Ca 92081 7085
JDS FINCOLLC
499 N EL Camino Real La Costa Urology
Encinitas, CA 82024 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 4
V#33694 2,460 $2.15 J(a) 7.011.00 04/01/201  03/31/21|Oceanside, CA 92056 7082
JDS FINCO LLC
499 N EL Camino Real TCMC Cardiology Clinic
Encinitas, CA 92024 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 3
V#83694 2,172 $2.15 |(a} 6.330.29 07/01/20]  04/30/21 Oceanside, CA 52056 7580
Melrose Plaza Complex, LP
c/o Five K Management, Inc
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 Approx 510 West Vista Way
V#43849 7,347 $1.35 {(a) 10,707.03 07/01/16]  06/30v21|Vista, Ca 92083 7320
OPS Enterprises, LLC |North County Oneotogy Medical
3617 Vista Way, Bidg. 5 Clinic
Oceanside, Ca 92056 Approx 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#VB1250 7.000 $4.12 |{a) 40,182.00 10/01/12]  10/01/22)|Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
SCRIPPSVIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES
P O Box 234296 IEncinitas Medical Center
Encinitas, CA 234296 Apprax 351 Santa Fe Drive, Suite 351
V#83589 3.864 $3 45 |{a) 13.356.32 08/08/19]  05/31/21|Encinitas, CA 92023 7085
TCMC, A Joint Venture
3231 Waring Court, Suit D Pulmonary Specialists of NC
Oceanside, CA 92056 Approx 3231 Waring Court Suit D
VH#BI685 1,444 $2.59 |jg) 3,754 00 02/01/20] 08/31/20 Oceanslde, CA 52056 7088
$ 200,553.76

(a) Total Rent Includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, atc.

132



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center YOU

Education & Travel Expense

Month Ending August 2020
Cost
Centers Description Invoice # Amount Vendar # Attendees
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMO RENEWAL 61720 EDU 103.00 83250 CHRISTINE BWAMBOK
7500 LEADERSHIP COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES 80820 EDU 726.25 82866 TARA EAGLE
8381 CRCST SPD CERTIFICATE 31120 €DUY 125.00 83690 DONNA FELKINS
8631 ICHCSMM SPD CERTIFICATION 80520 £DU 125.00 83751 ARIEL BALUBAR
8754 HEALTHCARE RISK MANAGEMENT ASHRM 80420 EDU 135.00 83312 MICHAEL D LEVINE

**This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon reguest.

-

133





